
 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

City of New Prague 
Monday, May 20, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers - 118 Central Ave N 

 

 
OPTIONAL ONLINE CONNECTION. MEETINGS ARE IN PERSON. 

Log in information for city councilmembers, staff and members of the public: 
Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone: https://meet.goto.com/952042973 

You can also dial in using your phone: Access Code: 952-042-973 | United States: +1 (872) 240-3212 
Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts: https://meet.goto.com/install 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

a. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
(The following agenda items are considered to be non-controversial and routine in nature. They will be 
handled with one motion of the City Council. Council members may request that specific items be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and be acted upon separately.) 
a. Meeting Minutes 

i.     May 6, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Claims for Payment: $290,962.01 
c. LG220 MN Lawful Gambling Application for Exempt Permit for Church of St. Wenceslaus on August 11, 

2024, involving bingo, pull-tabs, and a raffle at 215 Main Street East 
d. 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for Giesenbrau - Ribfest on June 14, 2024, at Holy Trinity 

Lutheran Church, 1300 Main Street East 
e. 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for Midwest Country Music Organization on June 1, 2024 
f. Appointment of Police Officer 
g. Purchase of Police Department Duty Handguns 
h. Quarterly Financial Summary Report 

 
4. VIOLATION APPEAL 

a. 210 Central Avenue N 
 

5. CITY ENGINEER PROJECTS UPDATE 
a. May 20, 2024 

 
6. PRESENTATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2023 ANNUAL FINANCIAL (AUDIT) REPORT 

a. Abby Schmidt, Abdo 
 

7. PUBLIC INVITED TO BE HEARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
(Speakers limited to 5 minutes.) 
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8. PUBLIC HEARING(S) – 6:00 PM 
a. Ettlins Cafe at 208 4th Avenue SW - Approval of the Issuance of an On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License 

and Sunday Liquor License 
 

9. ORDINANCE(S) FOR INTRODUCTION 
 

10. ORDINANCE(S) FOR ADOPTION 
a. Ordinance #349 - Repealing Chapter 152 of the New Prague City Code and Replacing It with a New 

Chapter 152 Regarding Floodplain Regulations 
 

11. RESOLUTIONS 
a. Resolution #24-05-20-01 - Approving Publication of Ordinance #349 by Title and Summary 

 
12. GENERAL BUSINESS 

a. Appointment of Board/Commission Members 
i.      EDA Board 
ii.     Golf Board 
iii.    Park Board 
iv.    Planning Commission 
v.     Utilities Commission 
 

13. MISCELLANEOUS 
a. Public Hearing for Draft Lower Minnesota River East Comprehensive Watershed Management Plan 
b. Meeting Minutes 

i.      Park 
c. Discussion of Items not on the Agenda 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS AND NOTICES: 
 

May 22   6:30 p.m. Planning Commission 
May 27   Holiday – City Offices Closed 
May 28   3:30 p.m. Utilities Commission 
May 28   6:30 p.m. Golf Board 
June 3   6:00 p.m. City Council 
June 10   12:00 p.m. Community Center Board 
June 11   6:00 p.m. Park Board 
June 12   7:30 a.m. EDA Board 
June 12   6:30 p.m. Cedar Lake Water & Sanitary Sewer District 
June 17   6:00 p.m. City Council 
June 19   Holiday – City Offices Closed 
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CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

City of New Prague 
Monday, May 06, 2024 at 6:00 PM 

City Hall Council Chambers - 118 Central Ave N 

 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

Councilmember Maggie Bass called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
PRESENT 
Councilmember Shawn Ryan 
Councilmember Maggie Bass 
Councilmember Rik Seiler 
Councilmember Bruce Wolf 
 
ABSENT 
Mayor Duane Jirik 
 
Staff present: City Administrator Josh Tetzlaff, Planning/Community Development Director Ken Ondich, 
Finance Director Robin Pikal, Police Chief Tim Applen, Public Works Director Matt Rynda, and Fire Chief 
Steve Rynda 
 
a. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. APPROVAL OF REGULAR AGENDA 

Motion made by Councilmember Seiler, Seconded by Councilmember Ryan to approve the Regular Agenda. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion made by Councilmember Wolf, Seconded by Councilmember Seiler to approve the Consent Agenda. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
a. Meeting Minutes 

i.     April 15, 2024, City Council Meeting Minutes 
b. Claims for Payment: $262,164.79 
c. Call for Public Hearing on the Issuance of an On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License and Sunday Liquor 

License for Ettlins Cafe 
d. Rusty Spoke Liquor License 
e. Select Contractor to Install the Dog Park Fence 

 
4. SMALL AREA PLAN UPDATE 

a. Presented by MSA 
Mike Lamb presented to the Council and addressed questions.  
 

5. PUBLIC INVITED TO BE HEARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
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6. CITY ENGINEER PROJECTS UPDATE 

a. May 6, 2024 
City Engineer Chris Knutson provided updates.  
 

7. 2025 STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
a. Proposal for Professional Services - Feasibility Study 
b. Resolution #24-05-06-01 - Ordering Preparation of Report on Improvement 

City Engineer Knutson gave an overview. Motion made by Councilmember Ryan, Seconded by 
Councilmember Wolf to approve Resolution #24-05-06-01. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING(S) – 6:00 PM 
 

9. ORDINANCE(S) FOR INTRODUCTION 
a. Ordinance #349 - Repealing Chapter 152 of the New Prague City Code and Replacing it with a New 

Chapter 152 Regarding Floodplain Regulations 
Planning/Community Development Director Ondich provided a summary. Motion made by 
Councilmember Ryan, Seconded by Councilmember Bass to approve the first reading of Ordinance 
#349. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 
Planning/Community Development Director Ondich left the meeting at approximately 6:50 p.m. 
 

10. ORDINANCE(S) FOR ADOPTION 
 

11. RESOLUTIONS 
a. Awarding the Sale of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2024A, in the Original Aggregate Principal 

Amount of $4,745,000; Fixing Their Form and Specifications; Directing Their Execution and Delivery; 
and Providing for Their Payment 
i.      Standard & Poors Bond Rating and Official Statement (OS) 
ii.     Bid Results of Bond Sale 
iii.    Resolution #24-05-06-02 - Awarding the Sale 
Doug Green with Baker Tilly gave a brief presentation. Motion made by Councilmember Wolf, 
Seconded by Councilmember Seiler to approve Resolution #24-05-06-02. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 

12. GENERAL BUSINESS 
a. Resolution #24-05-06-03 - Approving the Purchase of Real Property 

City Administrator Tetzlaff provided a brief overview. Motion made by Councilmember Seiler, 
Seconded by Councilmember Wolf to approve Resolution #24-05-06-03. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 

b. Police Station Update - Next Steps 
City Administrator Tetzlaff provided background. Discussion was had. Motion made by Councilmember 
Seiler, Seconded by Councilmember Wolf to move on to the next phase. 
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Voting Yea: Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Voting Nay: Councilmember Ryan 
Motion carried (3-1). 

c. Personnel Handbook Updates 
Finance Director Pikal explained the update. Discussion was had and questions were addressed by 
both Finance Director Pikal and City Administrator Tetzlaff. Motion made by Councilmember Bass, 
Seconded by Councilmember Ryan to approve the addition of Sick Leave Donation to the Personnel 
Policy Handbook. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 

13. MISCELLANEOUS 
a. Meeting Minutes 

i.      Utilities 
ii.     Planning 
iii.    EDA 
iv.    Golf 

b. Discussion of Items not on the Agenda 
- Finance Director Pikal advised that City staff met with the auditors and are waiting for the final 

draft of the audit report. She will send it to Council once she receives it.  
- City Administrator Tetzlaff provided updates regarding emerald ash borer and the removal of trees 

throughout the city. He shared that emerald ash borer is spreading far faster than staff thought 
possible. City staff have reached out to surrounding cities to inquire how they are each handling it, 
and they’re all going about it differently. Staff has been applying for grant funding. The city 
received cost estimates of upwards of $40,000 per year for treating trees. 

 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion made by Councilmember Ryan, Seconded by Councilmember Seiler to adjourn the meeting at  
7:43 p.m. 
Voting Yea: Councilmember Ryan, Councilmember Bass, Councilmember Seiler, Councilmember Wolf 
Motion carried (4-0). 
 

 
 

ATTEST:       
       
        ____________________________ 

Duane J. Jirik 
           Mayor 
         
                     
___________________________  
Joshua M. Tetzlaff 
City Administrator 
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

5/20/2024

VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL

FUND 101 - GENERAL FUND

RURAL FIRE - TO BE REIMBURSED

ADVANCED FIRST AID INC AED BATTERY $158.00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PRINTER $100.44

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $90.15

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $221.11

GRAINGER BATTERIES $23.06

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - RURAL $21.04

TOTAL: $613.80

OTHER - TO BE REIMBURSED

NORTH AMERICAN SAFETY INC JASON BIRDSELL-UNIFORM $316.94

NORTHLAND RECREATION LLC PARK BENCH - BLONIGEN $1,880.00

TOTAL: $2,196.94

RURAL FIRE - TO BE REIMBURSED

STAR GROUP LLC. ENGINE REPAIRS $356.31

VERIZON WIRELESS TABLETS $45.08

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $284.47

TOTAL: $685.86

COUNCIL

AMERICAN LEGAL INTERNET RENEWAL $500.00

KCHK RADIO BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AD $255.00

SUEL PRINTING COUNCIL MINUTES $2,787.50

TOTAL: $3,542.50

ADMINISTRATION

ABDO 2023 AUDIT SERVICES -$403.10

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES MAILING LABELS $24.96

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $101.65

VETERAN SHREDDING CONTRACTED SERVICES $8.50

TOTAL: -$267.99

ELECTIONS

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $9.98

LE SUEUR COUNTY COURTHOUSE ELECTIONS CART $85.49

NEW PRAGUE AREA SCHOOLS FAC RENTAL - ELECTION $105.00

TOTAL: $200.47

ATTORNEY

SCOTT COUNTY ATTORNEY'S OFFICE APRIL COURT FINES $1,952.05

TOTAL: $1,952.05

PLANNING

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $46.07

GRAINGER BATTERIES $4.52

METRO SALES INC COPIER  LEASE $111.45

SUEL PRINTING FLOODPLAIN ORD. $80.00

TOTAL: $242.04

GOVERNMENT BUILDING

ALLIED PRODUCTS MN FLAG $65.26

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $696.66

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - CITY HALL $86.79

TOTAL: $848.71

POLICE

AAI GARAGE DOOR GARAGE DOOR SPRINGS $620.00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BATTERIES $19.99

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BUSINESS CARD HOLDER $24.99

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PUBLUIC SAFETY GRANT $349.95

PAGE  1
6

Section 3, Item b.



CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

5/20/2024

VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL

APPLIED CONCEPTS INC REPAIRS $308.50

AT&T MOBILITY WIRELESS CELLS $566.47

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $107.77

BOUND TREE MEDICAL LLC PUBLIC SAFTEY GRANT - O2 BAG $195.47

GRAINGER BATTERIES $12.50

NORTH MEMORIAL HEALTH CARE EMR REFRESHER $500.00

OFFICE OF MN IT SERVICES LANGUAGE LINE $5.25

SONS OF LIBERTY GUN WORKS RIFLES $2,910.00

STREICHER'S AMMO $464.00

STREICHER'S MAGAZINE/COUPLER/GRIP $202.88

STREICHER'S UNIFORMS - ORRIE $408.92

STRYKER SALES LLC REPLACEMENT BATTERY $169.07

TACTICAL SOLUTIONS LIDAR $2,152.00

TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE TLO CHARGES $75.00

VETERAN SHREDDING CONTRACTED SERVICES $42.50

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $1,101.69

TOTAL: $10,236.95

FIRE

ADVANCED FIRST AID INC AED BATTERY $158.00

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PRINTER $100.44

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $90.15

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $221.10

GRAINGER BATTERIES $23.05

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - FIRE $21.03

STAR GROUP LLC. ENGINE REPAIRS $356.32

VERIZON WIRELESS TABLETS $45.08

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $187.69

TOTAL: $1,202.86

BUILDING INSPECTOR

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $28.47

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $46.07

METRO SALES INC COPIER  LEASE $111.45

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $85.21

TOTAL: $271.20

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES SIREN CABLE $43.36

TOTAL: $43.36

STREET

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $26.98

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES ADAPTER - '24 FL $10.04

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $76.57

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $432.46

FASTENAL TINTED SAFTEY GLASSES $42.75

GEMPLER'S RUBBER GLOVES $40.98

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - STREETS $122.70

METRO SALES INC COPIER  LEASE $179.02

MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO FIRE EXTINGUISHER SIGN $4.22

NORTH AMERICAN SAFETY INC STREETS UNIFORMS $74.63

PARKVIEW MEDICAL CLINIC HEB B $108.00

RIVER COUNTRY COOP DIESEL $1,878.45

STAMPCRETE MN LLC SIDEWALK SEALER & TINT $2,720.40

STAR GROUP LLC. OIL DRY / DEGREASER $44.26

TRENCHERS PLUS INC WOODCHIPPER $80.70

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $449.53

ZORO TOOLS INC. TAR REMOVER $110.99

TOTAL: $6,402.68

PAGE  2
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

5/20/2024

VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL

SWIMMING POOL

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES OFFICE SUPPLIES $64.50

TOTAL: $64.50

PARKS

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $1,276.09

ALLIED PRODUCTS 6 X 10 US FLAG $149.27

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES BALL VALVE $14.98

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES FENCE PARTS $80.73

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $34.28

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $222.65

GEMPLER'S RUBBER GLOVES $40.98

GRAINGER TOILET REPAIR PARTS $68.70

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - BALLFIELD $230.27

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - PARKS $175.35

MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO FIRE EXTINGUISHER SIGN $4.22

MTI DISTRIBUTING INC HUB WHEEL $191.90

MTI DISTRIBUTING INC WORKMAN - GASKET $47.89

NORTH AMERICAN SAFETY INC PARKS UNIFORMS $74.62

RENT N SAVE PORTABLE SERVICES PORTABLE RESTROOM $620.00

STAR GROUP LLC. BATTERY $286.68

TRENCHERS PLUS INC WOODCHIPPER $121.05

VERIZON WIRELESS IPADS $10.02

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $279.98

WM. MUELLER & SONS INC. ASPHALT $555.66

TOTAL: $4,485.32

PARK BOARD

CENTRAL AG LLC DOG PARK - FENCE $11,921.75

TOTAL: $11,921.75

LIBRARY

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $141.72

BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 4' LED BULBS $111.00

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $246.66

TOTAL: $499.38

UNALLOCATED

FINANCE & COMMERCE CITY ROOF DAMAGE $346.92

SEH CITY ROOF DAMAGE $1,400.00

TOTAL: $1,746.92

GENERAL FUND TOTAL: $46,889.30

FUND 233 - SPECIAL REVENUE - CRIME PREVENTION

CHOOSE NOT TO USE GOLF SPONSORSHIP $2,500.00

TOTAL: $2,500.00

FUND 324 - DEBT SERVICE - CIP 2024

S&P GLOBAL RATINGS 2024A STREET IMPROVEMENTS $7,713.00

TOTAL: $7,713.00

FUND 422 - CAPITAL PROJECTS - CIP 2023

SEH CIP 2023 - SUNRISE / SUNSET $1,976.50

TOTAL: $1,976.50

FUND 423 - CAPITAL PROJECTS - CIP 2024

BCM CONSTRUCTION INC. CIP 2024 PAY AP #1 $125,822.85

CHOSEN VALLEY TESTING INC CIP 2024 $600.00

MUNIPLATFORM 2024A BOND $450.00

SEH CIP 2024 $23,580.05

TOTAL: $150,452.90

PAGE  3
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

5/20/2024

VENDOR DESCRIPTION AMOUNT TOTAL

FUND 602 - ENTERPRISE - SANITARY SEWER

ABDO 2023 AUDIT SERVICES -$205.63

ACE HARDWARE & PAINT SUPPLIES $369.22

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES EAR PLUGS $53.90

AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES PHONE CASE - JOSH $21.95

BEVCOMM TELEPHONE $208.76

BLACKBURN MFG. CO. MARKING FLAGS $161.11

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $8,175.43

CRANE ENGINEERING SLUDGE PUMP DIAPHRAGM - 400-ACN-12 $1,808.68

FASTENAL GREEN MARKING PAINT $68.89

GEMPLER'S RUBBER GLOVES $92.15

GRAINGER GAUGE GUARD $143.54

JOHN HENRY FOSTER QUINCY AIR COMPRESSOR - REPAIR $1,220.25

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - WWTP $370.46

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INSURANCE WORKERS COMP CLAIM $1,940.65

METRO SALES INC COPIER  LEASE $55.41

MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY SMITH - TRAINING $585.00

MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY TYPE IV RENEWAL $15.00

MN POLLUTION CONTROL AGENCY WW OPERATOR CERTIFICATE $23.00

MN VALLEY TESTING LABS TESTING ANALYSIS $136.50

MSC INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY CO FIRE EXTINGUISHER SIGN $4.22

NORTH AMERICAN SAFETY INC WWTP UNIFORMS $74.62

PARKVIEW MEDICAL CLINIC PRE-EMPLOYMENT PHYSICAL $110.00

POLYDYNE INC CLARIFLOC $13,616.00

RIVER COUNTRY COOP LP GAS - FORKLIFT $35.75

ROBERT HALF TEMP UTILITY BILLING EMPLOYEE $617.40

S&P GLOBAL RATINGS 2024A SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENTS $2,625.00

SMITH, JOSH MWOA MEETING $20.00

STAR GROUP LLC. V-BELT $360.48

TOM SOUKUP MWO SW SECTION - SOUKUP $20.00

UTILITY CONSULTANTS INC. SAMPLES $1,461.29

VERIZON WIRELESS IPADS $7.52

VETERAN SHREDDING CONTRACTED SERVICES $8.50

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $62.23

TOTAL: $34,267.28

FUND 606 - ENTERPRISE - STORM UTILITY

ABDO 2023 AUDIT SERVICES -$16.28

BLACKBURN MFG. CO. MARKING FLAGS $161.11

FASTENAL GREEN MARKING PAINT $68.89

ROBERT HALF TEMP UTILITY BILLING EMPLOYEE $154.35

S&P GLOBAL RATINGS 2024A STORM SEWER IMPROVEMENTS $1,558.00

VERIZON WIRELESS IPADS $7.52

VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS MOTOR FUELS $6.63

TOTAL: $1,940.22

FUND 651 - ENTERPRISE - AMBULANCE

ABDO 2023 AUDIT SERVICES -$1.78

CENTERPOINT ENERGY NATURAL GAS $221.11

LAKERS NEW PRAGUE SANITARY TRASH - AMBULANCE $21.04

TOTAL: $240.37

TOTAL ACCOUNTS PAYABLE FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL: $245,979.57

PAGE  4
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE GOLF PAYABLES - DUE 5/15/24 Page      1 

Vendor Name Net  

Invoice Amount 

ACUSHNET COMPANY 
          CLOTHING  $1,003.11 

          CLOTHING - DISCOUNT  $24.70- 

          GOLF MERCHANDISE  $606.30 

          GOLF MERCHANDISE - DISCOUNT  $9.96- 

          SPECIAL ORDER  $401.89 

BERRY COFFEE COMPANY 
          COFFEE  $338.40 

          FINANCE CHARGE  $45.71 

BEVCOMM 
          TELEPHONE / CABLE / INTERNET  $426.52 

BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 
          4' LED BULBS  $111.00 

CALLAWAY GOLF 
          GOLF MERCHANDISE  $518.40 

          SPECIAL ORDER  $466.93 

CENTRAL MCGOWAN INC 
          CO2 RENTAL  $77.31 

CINTAS 
          TOWELS / LINENS  $247.28 

CIT GROUP 
          CLOTHING  $1,507.57 

CLESENS 
          PVC COUPLING  $44.04 

          SPRINKLER INTERNAL ASSY  $1,054.28 

COLLEGE CITY BEVERAGE 
          ALCOHOL  $1,115.16 

          BEER/ALCOHOL  $532.35 

          BEVERAGES-NON-ALCOHOLIC  $61.50 

DR. FRESH TAP 
          TAP LINE CLEANING  $75.00 

ECOLAB INC 
          DISHWASHER RENTAL  $233.49 

GFSI LLC 
          CLOTHING  $956.51 

GOLF PROFESSIONAL ENTERPRISES LLC 
          APRIL MANAGEMENT FEE  $8,347.50 

HERITAGE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY GROUP 
          BENT GRASS SEED  $865.12 

          WINFIELD CREDIT  $119.67- 

HERMEL WHOLESALE 
          CLEANING SUPPLIES  $829.01 

          FOOD  $5,469.10 

          SUNDRIES  $1,558.34 

          SUPPLIES  $475.98 

JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL 
          TRANSMITTER RECEIVER  $1,334.07 

JOYCE CASSIDY 
          FOOD - COBORNS  $11.63 

LAU'S BAKERY 
          BUNS  $38.90 

          FOOD  $95.75 

LE SUEUR - WASECA PUBLIC H 
          LICENSE RENEWAL  $900.00 

MACH LUMBER INC 
          PLYWOOD  $58.79 
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE GOLF PAYABLES - DUE 5/15/24 Page      2 

Vendor Name Net  

Invoice Amount 

MGA 
          ANNUAL MEMBER DUES  $180.00 

MTI DISTRIBUTING INC 
          BRACKET  $18.42 

          ORINGS  $39.16 

          VALVES  $509.16 

          VALVES DIAPHRAM ORING  $519.35 

          VALVES DIAPHRAMS TURRET  $597.46 

          VALVES ORING  $431.11 

NEW PRAGUE UTILITIES 
          UTILITIES  $2,668.04 

SANDY EATON 
          FLOWERS  $44.99 

SHAKOPEE BREWHALL 
          ALCOHOL  $100.00 

SKLUZACEK'S QUALITY MEATS LLC 
          FOOD   $123.40 

ST. ANDREWS PRODUCTS CO. 
          GOLF MERCHANDISE  $1,030.97 

          GOLF PENCILS  $217.50 

          MERCHANDISE BAGS  $187.64 

          TEES  $158.00 

STAR GROUP LLC. 
          AIR FILTER  $27.09 

          FUEL FILTER  $10.08 

          SPARK PLUGS FLOOR DRY CARB CLEANER  $71.55 

STASNEY ELECTRIC 
          REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE  $436.40 

SWANNIES GOLF APPAREL 
          CLOTHING  $1,622.00 

THE TESSMAN COMPANY 
          BALL WASHER, CUPS CUP SETTER  $987.85 

          CUP SETTER, POLES, CLIPS  $529.06 

          FLAGS  $1,874.86 

TOW DISTRIBUTING CORP 
          BEER/LIQUOR  $662.70 

US BANK EQUIPMENT FINANCE 
          COPIER LEASE  $452.55 

VERSATILE VEHICLES INC. 
          BATTERIES  $1,307.82 

          BATTERY CABLES, FILTERS  $162.44 

          CARB, HOSE  $135.23 

VW GOLF 
          GOLF MERCHANDISE  $225.00 

          Grand Totals   $44,982.44 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: JOSHUA TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: CHURCH OF ST. WENCESLAUS - MINNESOTA LAWFUL GAMBLING LG220 

APPLICATION FOR EXEMPT PERMIT 

DATE:  MAY 8, 2024 

Attached is a Minnesota Lawful Gambling LG220 Application for Exempt Permit for Church of St. 

Wenceslaus to conduct bingo, pull-tabs, and a raffle at an event on August 11, 2024, at 215 Main Street 

East, New Prague.  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the Lawful Gambling Permit for Church of St. Wenceslaus and 

recommends requesting a waiver of the waiting period. 

 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: JOSHUA TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: GIESENBRAU BIER CO. – 1-DAY TEMPORARY ON-SALE LIQUOR LICENSE  

DATE: MAY 10, 2024 

Attached is an application for a 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License from Giesenbrau Bier Co., 

requesting permission to serve alcoholic beverages at Ribfest on June 14, 2024, at Holy Trinity Lutheran 

Church, 1300 Main Street East, New Prague.   

 

All of the conditions of the Temporary On-Sale Liquor License application have been met by the applicant.  

 

The Temporary On-Sale Liquor License is issued with the understanding that the Licensee is responsible 

to adhere to all liquor provisions found in Chapter 340A and any other statutes or rules that may apply in 

serving alcohol.  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the application and issuing a 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License 

to Giesenbrau for Ribfest on June 14, 2024. 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: JOSHUA TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: MIDWEST COUNTRY MUSIC ORGANIZATION – 1-DAY TEMPORARY ON-SALE 

LIQUOR LICENSE  

DATE: MAY 14, 2024 

Attached is an application for a 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License from Midwest Country Music 

Organization, requesting permission to serve alcoholic beverages at an event on June 1, 2024, at The Broz, 

212 Main Street West, New Prague.   

 

All of the conditions of the Temporary On-Sale Liquor License application have been met by the applicant.  

 

The Temporary On-Sale Liquor License is issued with the understanding that the Licensee is responsible 

to adhere to all liquor provisions found in Chapter 340A and any other statutes or rules that may apply in 

serving alcohol.  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the application and issuing a 1-Day Temporary On-Sale Liquor License 

to Midwest Country Music Organization for an event on June 1, 2024. 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Honorable Mayor, Duane Jirik; Members of the City Council, Shawn Ryan, 
Maggie Bass, Bruce Wolf, Rik Seiler and  
City Administrator, Joshua Tetzlaff 

  
From: Tim Applen, Chief of Police/Emergency Manager   
  
Date: Wednesday, May 16, 2024 
  
Subject: Appointment of Taylar Wickman for the Police Officer position. 

 
On January 19, 2023, City Staff advertised for a Police Officer position in the New Prague Times, on the League 
of Minnesota Cities website, MN Police Officer’s Opportunity Line. (MN POST website), and the City of New 
Prague Website. The posting remained ongoing until positions were able to be filled. 
 
In an ongoing effort to fill open Police Officer positions interviews are conducted as qualified applications are 
received. Three applications were received in March, all three applicants were invited for oral interviews the 
week of April 1st, 2024. After speaking with Taylar Wickman, a pre-employment background investigation was 
completed. A conditional offer was made and accepted by Ms. Wickman. The conditional offer is based on 
successful completion of all elements outlined in the conditional offer. 
      
With Ms. Wickman’s training, education, demeanor, and personality, she will make a great addition to the New 
Prague Police Department. She will serve the citizens of New Prague in a professional manner, with integrity.  
 
I would recommend the appointment of Ms. Taylar Wickman to Police Officer position with an effective starting 
date of June 4, 2024, based on the successful completion of all elements in the conditional offer.  
  
An initial starting wage of $35.66 per hour/Step 1 ($74,172.80 per year) on the 2024 Police Union 
Agreement Schedule “A”. Vacation accrual schedule is based on length of service and can be found in the 
LELS Labor Agreement Article 11.1.  80 hours of vacation will be prorated based on the employment start 
date and credited to the leave bank.  
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Appointment of Ms. Taylar Wickman as a Police Officer per the recommendation 

listed above. 
 

 
 
 
 

 New Prague Police Department  
 

City of New Prague    In the Counties of Scott & Le Sueur 
 

 118 CENTRAL AVENUE NORTH, SUITE 3, NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 56071 
 

 Phone: (952) 758-2791              Fax: (952) 758-6279 

 

  Website: www.ci.new-prague.mn.us  
   

 Tim Applen, Chief of Police  
 

20

Section 3, Item f.



 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To: Honorable Mayor, Duane Jirik, members of the City Council, Shawn Ryan, 
Maggie Bass, Bruce Wolf, Rik Seiler and  
City Administrator, Joshua Tetzlaff  

  
From: Tim Applen, Chief of Police/Emergency Manager 
  
Date: May 16, 2024 
  
Subject: Purchase of Police Department Duty Handguns 

 

Throughout the last several years the Police Department has recognized the need to replace 
Sworn Officers duty handguns. Part of the discussion for the replacement was funding the 
replacement purchase. The City of New Prague was awarded Public Safety funds in December 
2023 to assist Law Enforcement and Public Safety agencies with a variety of expenditures. One of 
the approved expenditures is purchasing equipment. During staff discussions about the use of the 
Public Safety funding, it was determined that replacing Officer Duty Weapons would be a good use 
of the funds. Previously, the council was provided with a Public Safety Funds worksheet with 
proposed expenditures that included the purchase of new handguns. Staff estimated the cost of 
the new handguns with RMR (red dot) sights would be approximately $10,000.  
 
City staff obtained a quote for the handguns from Kiesler Police Supply that includes the cost of 14 
Glock 45 MOS GEN5 9mm handguns, and trade in credit for the current duty handguns. This 
quote also includes RMR (red dot) sights. The quote from Kiesler Police Supply for the new duty 
handguns and RMR sights is $10,598.80. This price includes the credit for trade in value of the 
current handguns. Kiesler Police Supply is an authorized Law Enforcement dealer and offers the 
best pricing for both the guns and RMR sights. The Police Department would like to purchase new 
Officer Duty Weapons through Kiesler Police Supply for $10,598.00.   
 
  
 
Recommended Action: Purchase 14 Glock 45MOS GEN5 9mm Duty Handguns with RMR sights 
from Kiesler Police Supply in the amount of $10,598.80.  
 

 New Prague Police Department  
 

City of New Prague    In the Counties of Scott & Le Sueur 
 

 118 CENTRAL AVENUE NORTH, SUITE 3, NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 56071 
 

 Phone: (952) 758-2791              Fax: (952) 758-6279 

 

  Website: www.ci.new-prague.mn.us  
   

 Tim Applen, Chief of Police  
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Unaudited Income Statement

Through March 31, 2024

Percent of year complete: 25%

Prior Year 2023 Actual 2023/2024 Current 2024 2024 % Actual 

Thru Thru Variance Month Adopted Budget compared 

3/31/2023 3/31/2024 YTD 3/31/2024 Budget Balance to Budget

General Fund
REVENUES

   Property Taxes -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                     3,749,628$              3,749,628$          0.00%

   Local Government Aid -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                     1,183,527$              1,183,527$          0.00%

   Licenses and permits 80,303.13$          149,266.45$        68,963.32$          80,430.65$        250,255$                  100,989$             59.65%

   Intergovernmental 60,334.00$          63,180.50$          2,846.50$            1,000.00$           383,672$                  320,492$             16.47%

   Charges for services 1,875.66$             5,674.85$             3,799.19$            4,079.60$           81,164$                    75,489$               6.99%

   Fines 6,253.25$             4,244.92$             (2,008.33)$           1,070.43$           20,000$                    15,755$               21.22%

   Interest Income 66,289.78$          99,778.90$          33,489.12$          30,633.18$        125,000$                  25,221$               79.82%

   Miscellaneous revenue 44,845.04$          21,858.48$          (22,986.56)$        13,411.90$        200,500$                  178,642$             10.90%

   Transfers In 11,250.00$          9,999.99$             (1,250.01)$           3,333.33$           425,894$                  415,894$             2.35%

     TOTAL REVENUES 271,150.86$        354,004.09$        82,853.23$          133,959.09$      6,419,640.00$        6,065,635.91$    5.51%

EXPENSES

   Council 24,690.33$          24,059.87$          (630.46)$              6,162.84$           76,142$                    52,082$               31.60%

   Administration 128,007.71$        149,659.38$        21,651.67$          74,112.70$        461,644$                  311,985$             32.42%

   Tech Network 101,240.06$        45,221.07$          (56,018.99)$        8,286.41$           207,383$                  162,162$             21.81%

   Elections 1,214.00$             4,862.54$             3,648.54$            3,628.58$           15,900$                    11,037$               30.58%

   Assessor -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                     45,700$                    45,700$               0.00%

   Attorney 17,233.18$          7,124.22$             (10,108.96)$        1,070.43$           70,000$                    62,876$               10.18%

   Engineer 680.00$                113.00$                (567.00)$              -$                     20,000$                    19,887$               0.57%

   Planning 63,264.57$          77,043.24$          13,778.67$          34,678.32$        405,723$                  328,680$             18.99%

  Government Building 23,368.22$          82,759.89$          59,391.67$          32,130.41$        174,138$                  91,378$               47.53%

   Police 529,125.51$        630,550.28$        101,424.77$       224,302.97$      2,196,296$              1,565,746$          28.71%

   Fire 42,276.10$          55,355.12$          13,079.02$          15,251.38$        252,332$                  196,977$             21.94%

   Building Inspector 67,989.81$          85,828.77$          17,838.96$          37,524.41$        341,054$                  255,225$             25.17%

   Emergency Management 2,008.85$             1,855.60$             (153.25)$              1,855.60$           2,637$                      781$                     70.37%

   Animal Control 3,900.00$             3,900.00$             -$                      -$                     15,750$                    11,850$               24.76%

   Public Works 29,030.43$          33,262.14$          4,231.71$            13,630.40$        116,637$                  83,375$               28.52%

   Streets 327,924.30$        264,043.32$        (63,880.98)$        86,601.28$        892,825$                  628,782$             29.57%

   Street Lights 20,635.22$          19,004.43$          (1,630.79)$           5,659.20$           72,333$                    53,329$               26.27%

   Outdoor Swimming Pool -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                     -$                          -$                      0.00%

   Aquatic Center 13,129.14$          13,186.14$          57.00$                  329.00$              116,251$                  103,065$             11.34%

   Municipal Band -$                       -$                       -$                      -$                     4,484$                      4,484$                  0.00%

   Parks 344,722.34$        310,413.11$        (34,309.23)$        203,022.66$      621,815$                  311,402$             49.92%

   Park Board -$                       11,633.93$          11,633.93$          11,633.93$        180,000$                  168,366$             6.46%

   Library 10,989.94$          11,227.77$          237.83$               6,068.72$           33,265$                    22,037$               33.75%

   Unallocated 19,629.50$          16,026.28$          (3,603.22)$           13,284.00$        97,331$                    81,305$               16.47%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 1,771,059.21$     1,847,130.10$     76,070.89$          779,233.24$      6,419,640.00$        4,572,509.90$    28.77%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (1,499,908.35)$   (1,493,126.01)$   6,782.34$            (645,274.15)$     -$                          1,493,126.01$    
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Unaudited Income Statement

Through March 31, 2024

Percent of year complete: 25%

Prior Year 2023 Actual 2023/2024 Current 2024 2024 % Actual 

Thru Thru Variance Month Adopted Budget compared 

3/31/2023 3/31/2024 YTD 3/31/2024 Budget Balance to Budget

Ambulance
     TOTAL REVENUES 7,256.17$             7,693.66$             437.49$               1,776.57$           20,100$                    12,406$               38.28%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 7,359.62$             7,843.02$             483.40$               4,781.25$           12,366$                    4,523$                  63.42%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (103.45)$               (149.36)$               (45.91)$                (3,004.68)$         7,734.00$                7,883.36$            

EDA
     TOTAL REVENUES 1,391.93$             2,348.81$             956.88$               264.26$              75,250.00$              72,901$               3.12%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 24,046.78$          14,611.54$          (9,435.24)$           6,527.76$           75,250.00$              60,638$               19.42%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (22,654.85)$         (12,262.73)$         10,392.12$          (6,263.50)$         -$                          12,262.73$          

EDA-INDUSTRIAL
     TOTAL REVENUES 614.95$                1,036.90$             421.95$               116.91$              -$                          (1,037)$                0.00%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 601.37$                608.97$                7.60$                    (601.37)$             1,773$                      1,164$                  34.35%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES 13.58$                  427.93$                414.35$               718.28$              (1,773.00)$               (2,200.93)$           

WATER FUND
     TOTAL REVENUES 377,615.03$        400,131.38$        22,516.35$          131,253.00$      1,877,961.00$        1,477,829.62$    21.31%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 389,976.37$        458,091.24$        68,162.80$          139,746.24$      1,589,904.00$        1,131,830.95$    28.81%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (12,361.34)$         (57,959.86)$         (45,646.45)$        (8,493.24)$         288,057.00$            345,998.67$       

ELECTRIC FUND
     TOTAL REVENUES 2,388,709.43$     2,606,075.38$     217,365.95$       776,943.24$      10,474,072.00$      7,867,996.62$    24.88%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 2,279,363.37$     2,300,028.20$     20,664.83$          776,891.79$      10,076,660.00$      7,776,631.80$    22.83%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES 109,346.06$        306,047.18$        196,701.12$       51.45$                397,412.00$            91,364.82$          
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Unaudited Income Statement

Through March 31, 2024

Percent of year complete: 25%

Prior Year 2023 Actual 2023/2024 Current 2024 2024 % Actual 

Thru Thru Variance Month Adopted Budget compared 

3/31/2023 3/31/2024 YTD 3/31/2024 Budget Balance to Budget

SANITARY SEWER
     TOTAL REVENUES 923,607.23$        1,000,470.12$     76,862.89$          332,704.54$      3,677,947.00$        2,677,476.88$    27.20%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 1,317,116.65$     1,312,676.93$     (4,439.72)$           344,989.67$      4,057,592.00$        2,744,915.07$    32.35%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (393,509.42)$       (312,206.81)$       81,302.61$          (12,285.13)$       (379,645.00)$          (67,438.19)$        

GOLF
     TOTAL REVENUES 160,664.73$        257,557.94$        96,893.21$          121,770.03$      1,392,982.00$        1,135,424.06$    18.49%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 209,693.46$        229,415.63$        19,722.17$          96,242.26$        1,408,833.11$        1,179,417.48$    16.28%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES (49,028.73)$         28,142.31$          77,171.04$          25,527.77$        (15,851.11)$             (43,993.42)$        

STORM SEWER
     TOTAL REVENUES 104,185.29$        108,728.21$        4,542.92$            34,953.22$        401,040.00$            292,311.79$       27.11%

     TOTAL EXPENSES 103,808.74$        129,372.76$        25,564.02$          31,784.96$        403,445.00$            274,072.24$       32.07%

     EXCESS REVENUES OVER

       EXPENSES 376.55$                (20,644.55)$         (21,021.10)$        3,168.26$           (2,405.00)$               18,239.55$          
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Unaudited Income Statement

Through March 31, 2024

Percent of year complete: 25%

Prior Year 2023 Actual 2023/2024 Current 2024 2024 % Actual 

Thru Thru Variance Month Adopted Budget compared 

3/31/2023 3/31/2024 YTD 3/31/2024 Budget Balance to Budget
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

ASSETS

101-10101 CLAIM ON CASH (            745,557.06)

101-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 389,132.78

101-10121 MONEY MARKET-WELLS FARGO 24,994.39

101-10122 MONEY MARKET-ROUNDBANK 33,418.74

101-10123 WELLS FARGO MARKET VALUE 25,916.72

101-10124 WELLS FARGO MONEY FUNDS 1,770.30

101-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 4,470,215.00

101-10129 MONEY MARKET.STATE BANK - FUTU 133,752.00

101-10160 MONEY MARKET-ROUNDBANK - 350 1,302.26

101-10200 PETTY CASH 198.91

101-10201 PETTY CASH POLICE DEPT 100.00

101-10406 WELLS SELECT INVESTMENT 108,000.00

101-10450 INT. RECEIVABLE - INVESTMENTS 94,946.58

101-10700 TAXES RECEIVABLE-DELINQUENT 28,049.12

101-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 17,170.00

101-11501 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - FLEX 11,146.90

101-11521 BUSINESS LICENSE AR 3,437.50

101-11531 BANK CLEARING ACCT ( 12,284.15)

101-11535 CLEARING ACCOUNT - RURAL FIRE 2,920.60

101-11536 CLEARING ACCOUNT-GENERAL 288.58

101-11537 MISC PROPERTY MAINT 592.71

101-12100 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-CURRENT 2,523.76

101-12200 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-DELINQUEN 1,982.15

101-13109 DUE FROM RETIREE/COBRA (      3.50)

101-15501 PREPAID OTHER 574.26

TOTAL ASSETS 4,594,588.55

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

101-20204 AP OTHER 45.00

101-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 370,988.55

101-20800 DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTS 970.16

101-21600 ACCRUED WAGES 121,881.35

101-21706 INSURANCE PAYABLE 10,152.22

101-21714 ACCRUED POLICE DUES 45.00

101-21716 HSA EMPLOYEE AMOUNTS 5,629.41

101-21800 ESCROW - BLDG PERMITS 70,415.25

101-22000 DEPOSITS 17,495.00

101-22022 HOLDING FUNDS-DEVELOPERS/OTHER 2,673.00

101-22200 DEFERRED REVENUE 10.00

101-22202 DEFERRED REVENUE - ASSMNTS 4,505.91

101-22206 DEFERRED REVENUE - AR 5,055.35

101-22207 DEFERRED REVENUE - BP .65

101-22210 DEFERRED REVENUE - TAXES 28,049.12

TOTAL LIABILITIES 637,915.97

FUND EQUITY
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

GENERAL FUND

101-25311 COMMITTED:  ATHLETIC FIELD 143,987.00

101-25312 ASSIGNED: RENOV/REPL PUB FAC 834,002.00

101-25313 ASSIGNED: ACQ OF EQUIP & VEHIC 330,059.00

101-25314 COMMITTED:  PUB FAC INFRAS 500,000.00

101-25999 COMMITTED:  EMERG/DIASTER 100,000.00

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

101-25300 UNDESIGNATED:  FUND BALANCE 3,547,394.50

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (         1,498,769.92)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 2,048,624.58

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,956,672.58

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 4,594,588.55
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

WWTP

ASSETS

602-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 1,585,045.77

602-10106 DESIGNATED FOR MEMB REPLACEMEN 210,000.00

602-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 575,645.59

602-10121 MONEY MARKET-WELLS FARGO 44,609.15

602-10122 MONEY MARKET-ROUNDBANK 44,932.37

602-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 5,906,956.96

602-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 22,760.47

602-11710 CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 276,879.33

602-12300 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-DEFFERED 258,519.56

602-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 3,889.00

602-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 101,203.00

602-16100 LAND 56,980.00

602-16200 BUILDINGS 27,964,821.77

602-16210 ACCUM. DEPRECIATION-BUILDINGS (       11,901,007.92)

602-16300 INFRASTRUCTURE 7,897,920.09

602-16310 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - INF (         2,830,358.07)

602-16400 EQUIPMENT 13,873,363.08

602-16410 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - EQU (         8,306,861.75)

602-16420 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 40,455.10

TOTAL ASSETS 35,825,753.50

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

602-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 137,869.70

602-21500 ACCRUED INTEREST 337,860.71

602-21650 ACCRUED WAGES-VAC & COMP 29,965.66

602-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 19,506.00

602-22000 DEPOSITS 65,619.27

602-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 7,361.00

602-22299 GERF DEFERRED INFLOWS 103,397.00

602-22500 BOND PAYABLE - CUR PORT 1,208,999.45

602-23100 BONDS PAYABLE 2,386,651.27

602-23101 PFA BOND PAYABLE 22,202,000.00

602-23400 BOND PREMIUM 248,105.00

602-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 323,468.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 27,070,803.06

FUND EQUITY

602-25999 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (            651,969.00)

602-27200 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 5,565,947.85

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

602-25300 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 4,153,068.40

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (            312,096.81)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 3,840,971.59

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 8,754,950.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 35,825,753.50
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

GOLF COURSE

ASSETS

603-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 97,413.73

603-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 157,831.92

603-10200 PETTY CASH 2,000.00

603-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - GOLF A/R 10,781.73

603-14100 MATERIAL  INVENTORY 91,016.74

603-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 872.00

603-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 71,391.00

603-16150 OTHER IMPROVEMENTS (LAND) 910,289.85

603-16160 ACCUMULATED DEPR - OTHER IMPRO (            903,860.86)

603-16200 BUILDINGS 1,094,511.44

603-16210 ACCUM. DEPRECIATION-BUILDINGS (            653,607.38)

603-16400 EQUIPMENT 1,564,004.79

603-16410 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - EQU (         1,235,662.92)

TOTAL ASSETS 1,206,982.04

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

603-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 72,359.37

603-21500 ACCRUED INTEREST 3,152.00

603-21650 ACCRUED WAGES-VAC & COMP 11,206.35

603-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 4,375.00

603-22000 DEPOSITS 51,669.58

603-22001 DESIGNATED - JR GOLF FUND 20,263.52

603-22004 DESIGNATED- GOLF MAINT. FUND 648.12

603-22211 DEFERRED REVENUE-GIFT CERTIFIC 13,256.15

603-22213 DEFERRED REVENUE-MEMBER CREDIT 21,563.37

603-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 1,651.00

603-22299 DEFERRED (GERF) INFLOW 60,854.00

603-23106 BOND PAYABLE-2015 EQUIPMENT 10,000.00

603-23107 BOND PAYABLE-2016 EQUIPMENT 18,000.00

603-23110 BOND PAYABLE-2022 EQUIPMENT 170,000.00

603-23400 BOND PREMIUM 23,486.93

603-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 218,084.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 700,569.39

FUND EQUITY

603-25999 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (            117,578.00)

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

603-25300 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 595,952.14

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 28,038.51

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 623,990.65

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 506,412.65

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,206,982.04
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

WATER

ASSETS

604-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 1,151,647.37

604-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 400,901.15

604-10406 F.I.S.T. INVESTMENTS 881,850.46

604-10407 INVEST  ALLOW-UNREALIZED  LOS ( 44,321.78)

604-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 711.07

604-11502 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NSF 660.06

604-11525 ACCRUED    REVENUE 88,871.79

604-11600 ALLOWANCE DOUBTFUL ACC'T ( 4,000.00)

604-11710 CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABL 118,467.54

604-12100 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-CURRENT 150.00

604-12200 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC-DELINQUENT 183.96

604-12300 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-DEFFERED 478,878.00

604-14100 MATERIAL  INVENTORY 50,621.15

604-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 3,872.00

604-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 75,379.00

604-16100 LAND 79,519.50

604-16200 BUILDINGS 2,449,284.55

604-16201 WELLS,  PUMPS  &  PUMP  HOUSE 2,197,186.11

604-16202 WATER  TREATMENT 53,116.88

604-16203 WATER  TREATMENT  EQUIPMENT 1,253,269.45

604-16211 ACCUM  DEPR-PRODUCTION  PLANT (         4,273,616.48)

604-16301 ELEVATED  TOWER 1,988,569.68

604-16303 RESERVOIR 732,530.15

604-16304 DISTRIBUTION TO SYSTEM 7,212,617.25

604-16305 PRU  VALVES 902.95

604-16306 MAIN STREET TREATMENT UPGRADE 215,848.13

604-16308 WATER METERS 1,123,147.08

604-16311 ACCUM  DEPR.-TRANS-DISTRIBUTI (         4,426,508.18)

604-16312 ACCUM.  DEPR-GENERAL  PLANT (            278,858.09)

604-16314 SCADA 218,511.67

604-16401 BLDG  IMPROVEMENT  OFFICE 5,533.95

604-16402 DEFERRED  MAINTENANCE  CHARGE 24,794.02

604-16403 OFFICE  FUNITURE  &  FIXTURES 29,980.37

604-16404 TRANSPORTATION/EQUIPMENT 266,271.51

604-16405 MISCELLANEOUS  EQUIPMENT 39,308.45

604-16406 SHOP  EQUIPMENT 1,417.62

604-16507 SCADA UPGRADE 133,434.07

604-16508 10TH AVE WATER MAIN 81,459.69

TOTAL ASSETS 12,331,592.10

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

WATER

LIABILITIES

604-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 11,486.10

604-21503 ACCRUED INTEREST 45,129.04

604-21650 ACCRUED WAGES-VAC & COMP 53,414.10

604-21712 DUE WATER TESTING PROGRAM .69

604-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 19,420.00

604-22000 DEPOSITS 34,116.37

604-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 7,329.00

604-22299 DEFERRED (GERF) INFLOW 95,644.00

604-22500 BOND PAYABLE - CUR PORT 34,999.97

604-23400 BOND PREMIUM 353,397.35

604-23511 2011 CIP 44,455.00

604-23516 2013B-REFUNDING 2005-2007 80,000.00

604-23517 CIP 2014 60,000.00

604-23518 2020A - REFUNDING 319,923.58

604-23519 CIP 2020-2021 1,360,000.00

604-23520 2021 UTILITY BUILDING 415,000.00

604-23521 CIP 2022 275,000.00

604-23522 CIP 2023 460,000.00

604-23523 CIP 2024 ( 150.00)

604-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 293,737.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,962,902.20

FUND EQUITY

604-25999 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (            274,691.48)

604-26730 RESERVED  FOR  INVESTMENT  AL (     .40)

604-27200 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 7,413,634.52

604-28000 INVESTED  IN  UTILITY  PLANT 1,287,688.93

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              57,941.67)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE ( 57,941.67)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 8,368,689.90

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 12,331,592.10
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

ELECTRIC

ASSETS

605-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 2,148,387.90

605-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 1,473,782.81

605-10200 PETTY  CASH 300.00

605-10405 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 151,318.10

605-10406 F.I.S.T. INVESTMENT 2,509,882.07

605-10407 INVEST  ALLOW-UNREALIZED  LOS (            126,146.61)

605-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 6,042.00

605-11502 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE - NSF 5,478.06

605-11510 ACOUNTS RECEIVABLE - SMMPA 100,853.97

605-11525 ACCRUED    REVENUE 506,996.11

605-11530 CLEARING  ACCOUNT 163.99

605-11531 BANK CLEARING ACCT 948.65

605-11600 ALLOWANCE DOUBTFUL ACC'T ( 10,000.05)

605-11710 CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABL 710,629.10

605-11720 BUDGET A/R 223.58

605-12100 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-CURRENT 150.00

605-12200 SPECIAL ASSESS. REC.-DELINQUEN 661.88

605-14100 MATERIAL  INVENTORY 1,183,566.68

605-15501 PREPAID OTHER 858.06

605-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 5,538.00

605-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 185,794.00

605-16100 LAND 41,647.88

605-16205 STRUCTURE & IMPROV. BLDGS 3,787,143.00

605-16206 GENERATORS 5,527,533.57

605-16211 ACCUM  DEPR-PRODUCTION  PLANT (         6,743,954.21)

605-16301 TRANSMISSION STATION EQUIPMENT 601,832.72

605-16302 TRANSMISSION POLES & CONDUCTOR 87,734.24

605-16303 DISTRIBUTION STATION EQUIPMENT 832,233.96

605-16304 POLES-TOWERS-FIXTURES 204,140.34

605-16305 OVERHEAD  CONDUCTORS-DEVICES 678,998.06

605-16306 UNDERGROUND  CONDUCTORS-DEVICE 6,038,780.12

605-16307 LINE TRANSFORMERS 2,057,276.01

605-16308 SERVICES 379,201.70

605-16309 ELECTRIC METERS 1,073,652.50

605-16310 FIBER OPTIC 89,759.87

605-16311 ACCUM  DEPR.-TRANS-DISTRIBUTI (         7,727,634.86)

605-16312 ACCUM DEPR - GEN PLANT (         1,555,459.82)

605-16313 LOAD MANAGEMENT 97,714.51

605-16314 SCADA 123,864.82

605-16315 STREET  LIGHTS 1,717,237.14

605-16316 STRUCTURE  &  IMPROVEMENTS  E 224,058.67

605-16403 TOOLS  &  WORK  EQUIPMENT 237,583.03

605-16404 TRANSPORTATION/EQUIPMENT 1,840,995.77

605-16405 MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 97,109.01

605-16406 SHOP  EQUIPMENT 56,994.23

605-16420 OFFICE EQUIPMENT 89,730.18

605-16510 JOB #2 (URD) GIS MAPPING 15,837.34

605-16511 JOB #2 (TRAN) GIS MAPPING 106.23

605-16512 JOB #2 (SERV) GIS MAPPING 355.18

605-16518 JOB #3 (URD) NE STREET RECONS 323.55

605-16519 JOB #3 (TRANS) NE STREET RECON 268.32

605-16522 JOB #3 (S.L.) NE STREET RECONS 626.08

605-16525 JOB #4 (OH) FEEDER #1 4,441.14

605-16526 JOB #4 (URD) FEEDER #1 128,417.08

605-16527 JOB #4 (TRANS) FEEDER #1 8,208.28

605-16528 JOB #4 (SERV) FEEDER #1 35,757.15

605-16529 JOB #4 (METER) FEEDER #1 230.33

605-16530 JOB #4 (S.L.) FEEDER #1 9,428.26
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

ELECTRIC

605-16531 JOB #4 (FIBER) FEEDER #1 571.96

605-16542 JOB #6 (URD) FEEDER #4 & #6 370.64

605-16550 JOB #7 (URD) FEEDER #8 3,731.75

605-16568 JOB #9 (SERV) FUTURE GENERATIO 1,910.00

605-16598 JOB #13 (URD) PARKS BUILDING 89.72

605-16600 JOB #13 (SERV) PARKS BUILDING 96.40

605-16638 JOB #18 (URD) BELZER EV CHARGE 29,075.42

605-16646 JOB #19 (URD) WEST SUB PLC 10,139.21

605-16648 JOB #19 (SERV) WEST SUB PLC 40,455.13

TOTAL ASSETS 19,004,039.91

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

605-20200 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE-SMMPA 484,044.84

605-20202 AP REFUSE 14,954.39

605-20204 AP OTHER 65,576.86

605-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 22,190.70

605-20801 STATE SALES TAX 11.86

605-20802 SC TRANSIT TAX 2.30

605-20803 LS TRANSIT TAX .08

605-21650 ACCRUED WAGES-VAC & COMP 122,384.98

605-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 27,780.00

605-22000 DEPOSITS 136,877.27

605-22001 ENERGY ASSISTANCE CONTRACTS 847.00

605-22022 HOLDING FUNDS-DEPOSITS 2,950.00

605-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 10,484.00

605-22299 DEFERRED (GERF) INFLOW 235,737.00

605-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 723,987.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,847,828.28

FUND EQUITY

605-25999 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (            890,763.35)

605-26300 CONTRIBUTED  CAPITAL (       .19)

605-26720 RESERVED  FOR  BONDS 321,700.00

605-27200 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 12,995,463.40

605-28000 INVESTED  IN  UTILITY  PLANT 4,423,834.26

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 305,977.51

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 305,977.51

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 17,156,211.63

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 19,004,039.91
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

STORM WATER UTILITY

ASSETS

606-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 321,456.35

606-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 63,257.92

606-10122 MONEY MARKET.COMM SEC BK 4,508.00

606-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 622,991.50

606-11710 CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 32,175.88

606-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 625.00

606-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 14,498.00

606-16300 INFRASTRUCTURE 8,282,527.19

606-16310 ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION - INF (         4,071,175.62)

606-16400 EQUIPMENT 29,295.57

606-16410 ACC. DEP. - EQUIPMENT ( 22,651.43)

TOTAL ASSETS 5,277,508.36

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

606-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 1,581.48

606-21500 ACCRUED INTEREST 21,870.23

606-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 3,134.00

606-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 1,183.00

606-22299 GERF DEFERRED INFLOWS 14,813.00

606-23100 BONDS PAYABLE 1,318,220.66

606-23400 BOND PREMIUM 142,254.71

606-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 46,339.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 1,549,396.08

FUND EQUITY

606-25999 PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT ( 36,253.00)

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

606-25300 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 3,785,009.83

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              20,644.55)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 3,764,365.28

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 3,728,112.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,277,508.36
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

AMBULANCE

ASSETS

651-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 58,864.33

651-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 12,933.57

651-10121 MONEY MARKET-WELLS FARGO 416.28

651-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 113,093.34

651-10127 MONEY MARKET.STATE BANK - 1206 5,643.56

TOTAL ASSETS 190,951.08

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

651-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 4,706.03

TOTAL LIABILITIES 4,706.03

FUND EQUITY

651-27200 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 162,640.15

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

651-25300 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 23,754.26

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (   149.36)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 23,604.90

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 186,245.05

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 190,951.08
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

EDA

ASSETS

680-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 155,546.42

680-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 25,667.72

680-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 246,794.57

680-11500 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3,296.80

680-15696 DEFERRED OUTFLOW - OPEB 174.00

680-15699 GERF DEFERRED OUTFLOW 8,406.00

TOTAL ASSETS 439,885.51

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

680-20210 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 669.16

680-21717 OPEB LIABILITY 870.00

680-22296 OPEB DEFERRED INFLOW 329.00

680-22299 GERF DEFERRED INFLOW 8,588.00

680-23999 GERF PENSION LIABILITY 26,867.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 37,323.16

FUND EQUITY

680-27200 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED 602,744.97

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

680-25300 FUND BALANCE-UNDESIGNATED (            187,919.89)

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD (              12,262.73)

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE (            200,182.62)

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 402,562.35

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 439,885.51
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE

BALANCE SHEET

MARCH 31, 2024

EDA-INDUSTRIAL PARK

ASSETS

681-10101 CLAIM ON CASH 77,672.83

681-10120 MONEY MARKET-FIRST BK & TRUST 12,834.52

681-10125 MONEY MARKET-4M 108,909.24

681-16100 LAND 453,940.38

681-16300 INFRASTRUCTURE 88,675.68

681-16310 ACCUM. DEPRECIATION-INFRASTR ( 12,982.38)

681-16500 CONSTRUCTION-IN-PROGRESS 667,880.00

TOTAL ASSETS 1,396,930.27

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

LIABILITIES

681-20610 CIP RETAINAGE PERCENTAGE 6,286.00

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,286.00

FUND EQUITY

UNAPPROPRIATED FUND BALANCE:

681-25300 FUND BALANCE 1,390,216.34

REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES - YTD 427.93

BALANCE - CURRENT DATE 1,390,644.27

TOTAL FUND EQUITY 1,390,644.27

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 1,396,930.27
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Engineers  |  Architects  |  Planners  |  Scientists 

Short Elliott Hendrickson Inc., 11 Civic Center Plaza, Suite 200, Mankato, MN 56001-7710 

507.388.1989  |  877.316.7636  |  888.908.8166 fax  |  sehinc.com 

SEH is 100% employee-owned  |  Affirmative Action–Equal Opportunity Employer 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 Joshua Tetzlaff, City Administrator 
 
FROM: Chris Knutson, PE (Lic. MN) 
 
DATE: May 16, 2024 
 
RE: Project Updates 
 
 
See below for updates on current SEH Projects for the City of New Prague. 
 
2023 STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS 
Final paving is occurring today, and final completion will soon be reached. Punchlist items will still need to 
be addressed. 
 
2024 STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
The contractor continues to work on utilities on Lyndale Avenue this week and should be done with 
services by the end of this week. Construction of the street section is scheduled for the end of May and 
first two weeks of June. The  
 
2025 STREET AND UTILITY IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
Notices to residents of the upcoming project have been sent out. Topographic survey will occur in June. 
An RFP for geotechnical investigation will be sent out soon for approval next month.  
 
 
 
 
cdk 
x:\ko\n\newpr\common\council meetings\052024 cc project updates.docx 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: JOSHUA TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

  ROBIN PIKAL, FINANCE DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF 2023 ANNUAL FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT 

DATE:  MAY 13TH, 2024 

Abby Schmidt of Abdo will present at the May 20th, 2024 City Council meeting.  

 

Ms. Schmidt will review their audit findings as it pertains to the General Fund, Other Governmental Funds and 

Enterprise Funds through a PowerPoint presentation (attached).  

 

At the conclusion of the presentation, City Council will be asked to take action to accept the 2023 Annual 

Financial Report.  

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends the approval of the 2023 Annual Financial Audit Report as presented. 

 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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Executive Governance 
Summary

City of New Prague 
New Prague, Minnesota 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 
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April 30, 2024 
 
 
Management, Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of New Prague, Minnesota 
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New Prague, 
Minnesota (the City), for the year ended December 31, 2023.  Professional standards require that we provide you with 
information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, as 
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information 
in our letter to you dated December 5, 2023. Professional standards also require that we communicate the following 
information related to our audit. 
 
Significant Audit Findings  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did  identify one deficiency in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses described in 
the following pages as item 2023-002, and 2023-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.  
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2023-001 Segregation of Duties  
 
Condition:   During our audit we reviewed internal control procedures over payroll, disbursements, cash 

receipts, utility billing and investments and found the City to have limited segregation of duties in 
these areas as noted below. 

 
Criteria:   There are four general categories of duties:  authorization, custody, record keeping and 

reconciliation.  In an ideal system, different employees perform each of these four major 
functions.  In other words, no one person has control of two or more of these responsibilities. 

 
Effect:   The existence of this limited segregation of duties increases the risk of fraud 
 
Cause:   Currently, the Finance Director has control of payroll checks, sets up and maintains all employee 

records, issues checks to employees, initiates payroll transfers for direct deposit, and approves 
payroll. The Accounting Technician runs the payroll, posts activity to the general ledger and 
prepares the payroll tax returns. The Finance Director and Accounting Technician alternate the 
reconciliation of bank accounts.   

 
Recommendation:   We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 
 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes approval of expenditures, regular review of financial statements and 
budget comparisons. 
 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 
 
No update from the prior year. 
 
Internal Control Over Disbursements 
 
Cause:  The Accounting Technician maintains the signature plate, sets up and maintains vendors, posts 

to the general ledger, prepares checks, and maintains accounts payable records. The Planning 
Technician Receptionist opens mail and mails checks to vendors. The Purchase/Inventory Clerk 
matches invoices to purchase orders and maintains the purchase journal. The Finance Director 
and Accounting Technician alternate the reconciliation of the bank accounts. 

 
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 
 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes approval of expenditures, regular review of financial statements, regular 
review of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons.  The duties of setting up and maintain vendors, opening the mail, 
maintaining the general ledger, preparing checks, and mailing the checks have been separated as much as allowed with 
the limited number of staff.   
 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 
 
No update from the prior year. 
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2023-001  Segregation of Duties (Continued) 
 
Internal Control Over Cash Receipts 

 
Cause:  The Planning Technician Receptionist opens mail and takes deposits to the bank. The Billing 

Clerk receives and endorses checks/currency  and prepares the deposit.  
  
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 

 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes review of deposits, regular review of financial statements, regular review 
of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons. 

 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 

 
No update from the prior year. 
 
Internal Control Over Utility Billing 

 
Cause:  The Billing Clerk sets up and maintains customers and rates, generates billing statements, mails 

billing statements, and prepares the deposit.  
  
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 

 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes review of deposits, regular review of financial statements, regular review 
of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons. 

 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 

 
No update from the prior year. 
 
Internal Control Over Journal Entries 
 
Cause:  The accounting technician posts all journal entries, which have not been through an approval 

process. 
 
Recommendation:  SAS No. 145 required evaluating the design and implementation of certain controls including 

journal entries and other adjustments. Through our audit testing we determined there were lack 
of controls related to journal entries. We recommend implementing a formal approval process for 
all manual journal entries. 

Management response:  
 
The City will implement an approval process for manual journal entries going forward. 
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2023-002 Material Audit Adjustments  
  
Condition:   Adjustments were needed to record and adjust the beginning EDA balances, coding of bond 

proceeds coded to the incorrect fund, debt service fund tax revenues, and capital project activity. 
 
Criteria:   The financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. 
 
Cause:   The financial statements required material audit adjustments to be reasonably stated. 
 
Effect:   This indicated that it would be likely that a misstatement may occur and not be detected by the 

City’s system of internal control. The audit firm cannot serve as a compensating control over this 
deficiency. 

 
Recommendation:   We recommend that management review bond proceed coding to ensure they are recorded in the 

proper project fund, review tax levy revenue recorded compared to the approved levy, and review 
large capital projects that are done in conjunction with outside agencies for portions owned by 
the City.  

 
Management response:  
 
The City will review the adjustments necessary and try to eliminate these entries in the future. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters  
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
financial statements.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of 
our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards.  
 
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 
 
Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting 
policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted 
and the application of existing policies were not changed during the year ended December 31, 2023. We noted no 
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All 
significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period. 
 
Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on 
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumption about future events. Certain 
accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of 
the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive 
estimates affecting the financial statements include depreciation on capital assets, allocation of wage expenses, liability 
for the City’s pension, and the liability for the City’s other postemployment benefits (OPEB). 
 

• Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on estimated useful lives of the assets.  Depreciation is 
calculated using the straight-line method. 

 

• Allocations of gross wages and payroll benefits are approved by the City Council within the City’s budget and are 
derived from each employee’s estimated time to be spent serving in the respective function of the City.  These 
allocations are also used in allocating accrued compensated absences payable. 
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• Management’s estimate of its pension liability is based on several factors including, but not limited to, anticipated 
investment return rate, retirement age for active employees, life expectancy, salary increases and form of annuity 
payment upon retirement.  

 

• Management’s estimate of its OPEB liability is based on several factors including, but not limited to, anticipated 
retirement age for active employees, life expectance, turnover, and healthcare cost trend rates. 

 
We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that they are reasonable in 
relation to the financial statements as a whole.  The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and 
clear. Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users.  
 
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 
 
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.  
 
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements  
 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such 
misstatements.  We proposed several journal entries that we consider to be audit entries or corrections of management 
decisions of which the following we consider to be material audit adjustments: 
 

• To correct beginning EDA balances. 
 

• To correct the coding of tax receipts. 
 

• To adjust capital asset balances. 
 

• To correct the coding of bond proceeds. 
 
Disagreements with Management 
 
For purposes of this letter professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, 
reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial 
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our 
audit. 
 
Management Representations  
 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter 
dated April 30, 2024. 
 
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 
 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters, 
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations.  If a consultation involves application of an accounting 
principle to the City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on 
those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts.  To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.  
 
Written Policies and Procedures 

 
The City has documented some of its accounting policies and procedures during the year.  We recommend that the staff 
continue creating and adopting written accounting policies and procedures.  
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Other Audit Findings or Issues 
 
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with 
management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal 
course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention. 
 
The following item did not materially affect the financial statements, however we feel should be brought to your attention 
for future improvements: 
 

• The City’s budget did not match the budget approved by the Council. 
 
Other Matters 
 
We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) (Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis, the Schedules of Employer’s Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability 
(Asset) and Related Ratios, the Schedules of Employer’s Contributions and the Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total 
OPEB Liability and Related Ratios), which is information that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures 
consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information 
for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we 
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on the RSI. 
 
We were engaged to report on the supplementary information (combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules), which accompany the financial statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, 
we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to 
determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, 
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in 
relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the 
underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
 
We were not engaged to report on the introductory or statistical sections, which accompany the financial statements but 
are not RSI. We did not audit or perform other procedures on this other information and we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 
 
Future Accounting Standard Changes 
 
The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been issued and may have an impact 
on future City financial statements: (1) 

 
GASB Statement No. 100 - Accounting Changes and Error Corrections                                        Effective: 12/31/2024 
 
GASB Statement No. 101 - Compensated Absences                                                              Effective: 12/31/2024 
 
GASB Statement No. 102 – Certain Risk Disclosures                                                                           Effective: 12/31/2025 
 
Further information on upcoming GASB pronouncements.  
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*   *   *   *   *   *   *    
 

Restriction on Use 
 
This purpose of this communication is solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the City 
and is not intended to be, and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 
 
Our audit would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system because it was based on selected tests of the 
accounting records and related data. The comments and recommendations in the report are purely constructive in nature, 
and should be read in this context. 
 
If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter, please feel free to contact us at your 
convenience. We wish to thank you for the continued opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy and cooperation 
extended to us by your staff.  

 
Abdo 
Mankato, Minnesota 
April 30, 2024  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 

 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of New Prague  
New Prague, Minnesota 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
Opinions 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New 
Prague, Minnesota, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major 
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of December 31, 2023, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the budgetary comparison for the General fund for the 
year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Basis for Opinions  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions. 
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, 
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve 
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt 
shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial 
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on 
the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test
basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the 
audit. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis starting on page 17 and the Schedules of Employer’s Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedules of 
Employer’s Contributions, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios, and the Schedule 
of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios starting on page 88 be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited 
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Supplementary Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements. The accompanying combining, individual fund financial statements and schedules are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.  Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and related directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing 
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying combining, 
individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic 
financial statements as a whole.  
 
Other Information 
 
Management is responsible for the other information in the annual report. The other information comprises the 
introductory and operational statistics and supplementary schedules section but does not include the basic financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statement do not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. 
 
In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and 
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements or the 
other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an 
uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 30, 2024 on our 
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is solely to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 
and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 
Abdo 
Mankato, Minnesota  
April 30, 2024   
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

 
As management of the City of New Prague, Minnesota, (the City), we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.   
 
Financial Highlights 
 

• The assets and deferred outflows or resources of the City exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources at the close of the most recent fiscal year as shown in the summary of net position on the following 
pages. The unrestricted net position may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors. 

 

• The City’s total net position increased as shown in the summary of changes in net assets table on the following 
pages. This increase was due to an increase in charges for services in the business-type activities and decreased 
public works expenditures due some larger capital projects coming to a close. 

 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds fund balances are shown in the Financial 
Analysis of the City’s funds section of the MD&A. The total fund balance increased in comparison with the prior 
year.  This increase was mainly due to the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A to cover ongoing 
project costs. The total of assigned and unassigned fund balance as shown in the governmental fund balance 
table is available for spending at the City’s discretion. 
 

• Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund, as shown in the financial analysis of the City’s funds section, 
decreased from the prior year. 
 

• The City’s total bonded debt increase during the year. The increase was due to the issuance of General Obligation 
Bonds, Series 2023A.   

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements.  The City’s 
basic financial statements comprise three components:  1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial 
statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  This report also contains other supplemental information in 
addition to the basic financial statements themselves. 
 
The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide 
more detailed data.  The statements are followed by a section of combining and individual fund financial statements and 
schedules that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements.  Figure 1 reflects how the 
required parts of this annual report are arranged and relate to one another.  In addition to these required elements, we 
have included a section with combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules that provide details about 
nonmajor governmental funds, which are added together and presented in single columns in the basic financial 
statements.   
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Figure 1 
Required Components of the 

City’s Annual Financial Report 
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Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the City government 
they cover and the types of information they contain.  The remainder of this overview section of management’s 
discussion and analysis explains the structure and contents of each of the statements. 
 

Figure 2 
Major Features of the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

 

  Fund Financial Statements 

Government-wide 
Statements 

Governmental Funds Proprietary Funds 

Scope Entire City government 
(except fiduciary funds) 
and the City’s component 
units 

The activities of the City 
that are not proprietary or 
fiduciary, such as police, 
fire and parks 

Activities the City 
operates similar to private 
businesses, such as the 
water and sewer system 

Required financial 
statements 

• Statement of Net 
Position 

• Statement of Activities 
 
 

• Balance Sheet 

• Statement of 
Revenues, 
Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund 
Balances 

• Statements of Net 
Position 

• Statements of 
Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Net 
Position 

• Statements of Cash 
Flows 

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Modified accrual 
accounting and current 
financial resources focus 

Accrual accounting and 
economic resources focus 

Type of asset/liability 
information 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Only assets expected to 
be used up and liabilities 
that come due during the 
year or soon thereafter; no 
capital assets included 

All assets and liabilities, 
both financial and capital, 
and short-term and long-
term 

Type of deferred 
outflows/inflows of 
resources information 

All deferred 
outflows/inflows of 
resources, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid. 

Only deferred outflows of 
resources expected to be 
used up and deferred 
inflows of resources that 
come due during the year 
or soon thereafter; no 
capital assets included 

All deferred 
outflows/inflows of 
resources, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Type of inflow/outflow 
information 

All revenues and expenses 
during year, regardless of 
when cash is received or 
paid 

Revenues for which cash 
is received during or soon 
after the end of the year; 
expenditures when goods 
or services have been 
received and payment is 
due during the year or 
soon thereafter 

All revenues and expenses 
during the year, regardless 
of when cash is received 
or paid 
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Government-wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with 
a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources and 
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position.  Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or 
deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed during the most recent 
fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items 
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities).  The governmental activities of 
the City include general government, public safety, streets and highways, culture and recreation, economic development 
and miscellaneous.  The business-type activities of the City include water utility, sewer utility, electric utility, storm water 
utility, golf and ambulance. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City itself (known as the primary government), but also a 
legally separate Economic Development Authority and Housing and Redevelopment Authority for which the City is 
financially accountable.  Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial 
information presented for the primary government itself. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found starting on page 33 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of the funds of the City 
can be divided into two categories:  governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as 
well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year.  Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful 
to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact 
by the government’s near-term financing decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental 
fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.   

The City maintains numerous individual governmental funds, many of which are Debt Service funds, which are reported as 
one major fund for the government-wide financial statements.  Information is presented separately in the governmental 
fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for 
the General, Debt Service funds and the CIP 2023 fund, all of which are considered to be major funds.  Data from the other 
nonmajor governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation.  Individual fund data for each of these 
nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements or schedules elsewhere in this report. 

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General fund and several special revenue funds.  A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the these funds to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found starting on page 38 of this report. 
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Proprietary Funds.  The City maintains one type of proprietary fund.  Enterprise funds are used to report the same 
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements.  The City uses enterprise 
funds to account for its water utility, sewer utility, electric utility, storm water utility, golf and ambulance operations. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for each of the enterprise funds which are 
considered to be major funds of the City. 

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found starting on page 43 of this report. 

Notes to the Financial Statements.  The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of 
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be 
found starting on page 49 of this report. 

Supplementary Information.  In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of New Prague’s share of net pension liabilities 
(assets) for defined benefits plans, schedules of contributions, progress in funding its obligation to provide pension 
benefits and other postemployment benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary information can be found starting 
on page 88 of this report. 

Other Information.  The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are 
presented following the notes to financial statements.  Combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules 
can be found starting on page 100 of this report. 

Government-wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position In the case of 
the City, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by at the close 
of the most recent fiscal year.   

A large portion of the City’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, infrastructure, 
machinery and equipment and vehicles), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.  The 
City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending.  Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the 
resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be 
used to liquidate these liabilities. 
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City of New Prague’s Summary of Net Position 
 

Increase Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease) 2023 2022 (Decrease)

Assets
Current and other assets 19,434,599$   19,649,828$   (215,229)$      22,890,773$   20,622,196$   2,268,577$     
Capital assets 23,667,404     19,965,174     3,702,230       51,747,280     51,777,827     (30,547)           

Total Assets 43,102,003     39,615,002     3,487,001       74,638,053     72,400,023     2,238,030       

Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,687,547       2,933,368       (245,821)         463,061          743,634          (280,573)         

Liabilities
Long-term liabilities 

outstanding 13,264,941     14,361,293     (1,096,352)      33,667,198     34,232,013     (564,815)         
Other liabilities 1,029,932       1,893,861       (863,929)         2,138,019       1,911,474       226,545          

Total Liabilities 14,294,873     16,255,154     (1,960,281)      35,805,217     36,143,487     (338,270)         

Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,440,138       268,449          2,171,689       538,453          54,606            483,847          

Net Position
Net investment in

capital assets 13,597,101     10,774,937     2,822,164       19,996,938     20,253,591     (256,653)         
Restricted 8,981,063       7,881,407       1,099,656       -                       -                       -                       
Unrestricted 6,476,375       7,368,423       (892,048)         18,760,506     16,691,973     2,068,533       

Total Net Position 29,054,539$   26,024,767$   3,029,772$     38,757,444$   36,945,564$   1,811,880$     

Net Position as a Percent of Total
Net investment in

capital assets 46.8                % 41.4                % 51.6                % 54.8                %
Restricted 30.9                30.3                -                     -                     
Unrestricted 22.3                28.3                48.4                45.2                

100.0              % 100.0              % 100.0              % 100.0              %

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
An additional portion of the City’s net position represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they 
may be used.  The remaining balance of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to 
citizens and creditors. 
 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net position, both 
for the City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.   
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Governmental Activities.  Governmental activities increased the City’s net position, as shown below. This increase was 
mainly due to a decrease in public works expenses.  Key elements of this increase are as follows: 
 

City of New Prague’s Changes in Net Position 
 

Increase Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease) 2023 2022 (Decrease)

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for services 566,661$        611,044$        (44,383)$         17,570,505$   16,278,637$   1,291,868$     
Operating grants and contributions 774,529          369,697          404,832          -                       -                       -                       
Capital grants and contributions 2,874,352       3,250,969       (376,617)         341,666          342,437          (771)                

General Revenues
Property taxes/tax increments 4,853,414       4,739,933       113,481          -                       -                       -                       
Franchise taxes 94,949            98,409            (3,460)             -                       -                       -                       
Grants and contributions not 

restricted to specific programs 1,532,098       971,119          560,979          199                  9,646               (9,447)             
Investment earnings 696,255          130,968          565,287          612,568          (206,809)         819,377          
Other 67,298            31,202            36,096            -                       -                       -                       
Gain on sale of capital assets 73,602            -                       73,602            23,945            30,000            (6,055)             

Total Revenues 11,533,158     10,203,341     1,329,817       18,548,883     16,453,911     2,094,972       

Expenses
General government 1,409,875       1,290,362       119,513          -                       -                       -                       
Public safety 2,764,556       2,591,794       172,762          -                       -                       -                       
Public works 2,757,709       4,728,591       (1,970,882)      -                       -                       -                       
Culture and recreation 1,067,252       992,550          74,702            -                       -                       -                       
Economic development 109,139          128,858          (19,719)           -                       -                       -                       
Miscellaneous 86,379            26,694            59,685            -                       -                       -                       
Interest on long-term debt 227,206          232,507          (5,301)             -                       -                       -                       
Water utility -                       -                       -                       1,484,765       1,510,608       (25,843)           
Sewer utility -                       -                       -                       4,010,713       3,831,411       179,302          
Storm water utility -                       -                       -                       404,204          382,057          22,147            
Electric utility -                       -                       -                       9,406,677       8,534,062       872,615          
Golf -                       -                       -                       1,498,240       1,309,955       188,285          
Ambulance -                       -                       -                       13,674            14,188            (514)                

Total Expenses 8,422,116       9,991,356       (1,569,240)      16,818,273     15,582,281     1,235,992       

Increase (Decrease) in Net 
Position Before Transfers and Contributions 3,111,042       211,985          2,899,057       1,730,610       871,630          858,980          

Capital contributions -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Transfers (81,270)           (81,270)           -                       81,270            81,270            -                       

Change in Net Position  3,029,772       130,715          2,899,057       1,811,880       952,900          858,980          

Net Position - January 1 26,024,767     25,894,052     130,715          36,945,564     35,992,664     952,900          

Net Position - December 31 29,054,539$   26,024,767$   3,029,772$     38,757,444$   36,945,564$   1,811,880$     

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

 
The decrease in capital grants and contributions and public works expenses relate to the completion of the 2022 street 
project that was in conjunction with MNDOT.
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The following graphs depict various governmental activities and show the revenue and expenses directly related to those 
activities. 
 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental Activities 
 

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 $3,500,000

General
Government

Public Safety Public Works Culture and
Recreation

Housing and
Economic

Development

Miscellaneous Interest on
Long-term

Debt

Expenses Program Revenues
 

 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Charges for 
Services

4.9%

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions
6.7%

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions
24.9%

Property 
Taxes/Tax 
Increments

42.1%

Other Taxes
0.8%

Grants and 
Contributions 
Unrestricted

13.3%

Investment 
Earnings

6.0%

Miscellaneous
1.3%

 

24 77

Section 6, Item a.



 

 

Business-type Activities.  Business-type activities increased the City’s net position as shown in the changes in net 
position table in the pages above. Key factors for the increase are as follows: 
 

• Charges for services for business-type activities increased due to increases in rates and usage during the year.  
 

• Total expenses for business-type activities increased due to rising costs for materials. 
 

• Investment earnings increased due to rising interest rates. 
 

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business - type Activities 
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Financial Analysis of the City’s Funds 

As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal 
requirements.   

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows 
and balances of spendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing requirements.  In 
particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for 
spending at the end of the fiscal year. The table below outlines the governmental fund balances for the year ending 
December 31, 2023: 

Other
General Debt Service CIP Governmental Prior Year Increase/

Fund Fund 2023 Funds Total Total (Decrease)

Fund Balances

Nonspendable -$      -$  -$  -$  -$  3,650$   (3,650)$          

Restricted 359,753         4,878,058      - 1,538,008 6,775,819       5,895,229       880,590         

Committed 743,987         - - - 743,987          743,987          - 

Assigned 1,198,162      - - 2,844,393      4,042,555       4,859,572       (817,017)        

Unassigned 3,189,952      - 258,309 (401,689)        3,046,572       2,670,709       375,863         

5,491,854$    4,878,058$    258,309$       3,980,712$    14,608,933$   14,173,147$   435,786$       

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances shown 
above. Additional information on the City’s fund balances can be found in Note 1 starting on page 51 of this report. 

The General fund is the chief operating fund of the City.  At the end of the current year, the fund balance of the General 
fund is shown in the table above. As a measure of the General fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare unassigned 
fund balance to total fund expenditures.  The total unassigned fund balance as a percent of total fund expenditures is 
shown in the chart below along with total fund balance as a percent of total expenditures. 

Current Year Prior Year Increase/
Ending Balance Ending Balance (Decrease)

General Fund Fund Balances

Nonspendable -$      3,650$     (3,650)$        

Restricted 359,753 - 359,753 

Committed 743,987 743,987 - 

Assigned 1,198,162         1,954,814         (756,652)           

Unassigned 3,189,952         3,225,620         (35,668) 

5,491,854$       5,928,071$       (436,217)$        

General Fund expenditures 7,565,722$       5,454,082$       
Unassigned as a percent of expenditures 42.2% 59.1%
Total Fund Balance as a percent of expenditures 72.6% 108.7%

The fund balance of the City’s General Fund decreased during the current fiscal year as shown in the table above. The 
decrease was due to increased capital outlay in the parks department related to the purchase of a building. 
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Other major governmental analysis is shown below: 
 

December 31, December 31, Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease)

Debt Service fund 4,878,058$     4,553,537$     324,521$        
The Debt Service fund increase in fund balance during the year was due to increased
investment earnings during the current year.

CIP 2023 258,309$        (102,185)$       360,494$        
The CIP 2023 total fund balance increased during the due to the issuance of 
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A to cover ongoing project costs.

 
Proprietary Funds.  The City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail.  Net position of the City’s proprietary funds increased or (decreased) as follows: 
 

December 31, December 31, Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease)

Water Utility 8,426,635$     7,787,863$     638,772$        
The Water Utility fund increase in fund balance during the year was due to increased
charges for services revenue during the current year.

Electric Utility 16,850,237$   15,688,321$   1,161,916$     
The Electric Utility fund increase in fund balance during the year was due to increased
charges for services revenue during the current year.

Sewer Utility 9,067,046$     9,152,471$     (85,425)$         
The Sewer Utility total fund balance decreased during the due to increased
supply expenses incurred in the current year.

 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 

Original Final
Budgeted Budget Budgeted Actual Variance with
Amounts Amendments Amounts Amounts Final Budget

Revenues 6,084,690$     31,400$          6,116,090$     7,009,688$     893,598$        
Expenditures 6,383,455       1,191,000       7,574,455       7,565,722       8,733               

Excess of Revenues 
Over Expenditures (298,765)         (1,159,600)      (1,458,365)      (556,034)         902,331          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of capital assets -                       -                       -                       11,102            11,102            
Transfers in 225,385          (400)                224,985          229,985          5,000               
Transfers out (121,270)         -                       (121,270)         (121,270)         -                       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 104,115          (400)                103,715          119,817          16,102            

Net Change in Fund Balances (194,650)         (1,160,000)      (1,354,650)      (436,217)         918,433          

Fund Balances, January 1 5,928,071       -                       5,928,071       5,928,071       -                       

Fund Balances, December 31 5,733,421$     (1,160,000)$   4,573,421$     5,491,854$     918,433$        

 
The City’s overall budget was amended during the year as shown above. The budget amendment increased revenues 
relating to ARPA funds and increased expenses related to parks capital outlay. Actual revenues and expenditures were 
under the final budget amounts as shown above.  
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The City’s overall budget was amended during the year as shown above. The budget amendment increased revenues 
relating to ARPA funds and increased expenses related to parks capital outlay. Actual revenues and expenditures were 
under the final budget amounts as shown above. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital Assets.  The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of  
December 31, 2023, is shown below in the capital assets table (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in 
capital assets includes land, structures, improvements, machinery and equipment, vehicles, roads, highways and bridges. 
The total increase in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was is shown in the table below. 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

• Parks Department
o Sidewalk machine
o Parks garage
o Toro Z-master lawn mower

• Street Department
o Freightliner plow truck and sander
o F-550 pickup with dump box

• Police Department
o 4 squad SUV’s

• Fire Department
o 2 Chief’s vehicles

• Enterprise Funds – Electric
o Forklift
o 2 Chevy Silverado pickup trucks
o F-550 dump truck

• 2023 CIP road construction project – Sunrise and Sunset Ave

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3C starting on page 62 of this report. 

City of New Prague’s Capital Assets 
(Net of Depreciation) 

Increase Increase Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease) 2023 2022 (Decrease) 2023 2022 (Decrease)

Land 2,013,415$     2,013,415$     -$      178,148$        178,148$        -$  2,191,563$      2,191,563$      -$       
Land Improvements 669,187          535,193          133,994          6,820               8,383               (1,563)             676,007            543,576            132,431          
Buildings and 

Improvements 3,255,463       3,402,025       (146,562)         20,992,742     18,619,877     2,372,865       24,248,205      22,021,902      2,226,303       
Infrastructure 12,459,048     9,804,574       2,654,474       23,153,533     18,593,095     4,560,438       35,612,581      28,397,669      7,214,912       
Furniture and Equipment 1,993,263       1,584,551       408,712          7,035,351       7,400,778       (365,427)         9,028,614         8,985,329         43,285            
Construction in Progress 3,277,028       2,625,416       651,612          380,686          6,977,546       (6,596,860)      3,657,714         9,602,962         (5,945,248)      

Total 23,667,404$   19,965,174$   3,702,230$     51,747,280$   51,777,827$   (30,547)$         75,414,684$    71,743,001$    3,671,683$     

Percent increase (decrease) 18.5% -0.1% 5.1%

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Long-term Debt.  At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding consisting of special 
assessment debt, revenue related debt, and general obligation debt as noted in the table below.  While all of the City’s 
bonds have revenue streams, they are all backed by the full faith and credit of the City. 

28 81

Section 6, Item a.



City of New Prague’s Outstanding Debt 

Increase Increase
2023 2022 (Decrease) 2023 2022 (Decrease)

General Obligation Bonds 1,730,000$     2,135,000$     (405,000)$      -$      -$  -$       
G.O. Improvement Bonds 7,797,846       6,276,160       1,521,686       - - - 
General Obligation

Revenue Bonds - - - 30,741,154     30,643,840     97,314 
Revenue Bonds - - - 262,000          365,000          (103,000)         
Indenture of Trust 132,000          143,000          (11,000)           - - - 

Total 9,659,846$     8,554,160$     1,105,686$     31,003,154$   31,008,840$   (5,686)$           

Percent increase (decrease) 12.9% 0.0%

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities

The City’s total debt increased during the current fiscal year as shown in the table above.  The key factor in this increase 
was the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, Series 2023A. 
Minnesota statutes limit the amount of net general obligation debt a City may issue to 3 percent of the market value of 
taxable property within the City.  Net debt is debt payable solely from ad valorem taxes.  The current debt limitation for the 
City is $30,547,392 which is in excess of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt of $1,730,000. 

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3E starting on page 65 of this report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

The unemployment rate for Scott County is currently 2.3 percent, which is a decrease from a rate of 2.4 percent a year 
ago.  The rate for Le Sueur County is currently at 4.4 percent, which is a decrease from a rate of 5.3 percent a year ago.  
These rates can be compared to the State’s average unemployment rate of 2.7 percent and the national average rate of 
3.7 percent. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2024 fiscal year. 

• The City’s adopted 2024 General fund expenditure budget totaled $6,419,640, which is a $82,135 or 1.28 percent
decrease over the 2023 amended budget of $6,501,775.

• New single family residential homes constructed in 2023 totaled 11. This was lower than the total of 14 new
homes constructed in 2022.

• The rate increases for utility operations for 2024 are as follows:

o Electric: 2 percent for residential rates, 1 percent on commercial rates and 2.3 percent on industrial and
demand rates. No change to customer base charges.

o Water: No change to base rates but an introduction to a seasonal rate change for June-September
o Sewer: 3.5 percent
o Storm Sewer: No change

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the 
City’s finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial 
information should be addressed to the Finance Director, City of New Prague, 118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, 
Minnesota 56071. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2023

Component
Unit

Economic
Governmental Business-type Development

Activities Activities Total Authority
Assets

Cash and temporary investments 14,510,217$  18,739,928$  33,250,145$  630,793$        
Receivables

Interest 126,574          -                       126,574          -                       
Delinquent taxes 28,049            -                       28,049            -                       
Accounts, net of allowance 174,774          2,080,245       2,255,019       11,134            
Notes, net of allowance 608,592          -                       608,592          -                       
Special assessments 2,552,126       738,547          3,290,673       -                       
Intergovernmental 1,274,645       95,542            1,370,187       421                 

Inventories -                       1,234,267       1,234,267       -                       
Prepaid items -                       2,244              2,244              -                       
Land held for resale -                       -                       -                       453,940          
Net pension asset 159,622          -                       159,622          -                       
Capital assets

Nondepreciable 5,290,443       558,834          5,849,277       667,880          
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 18,376,961     51,188,446     69,565,407     76,137            

Total Assets 43,102,003     74,638,053     117,740,056  1,840,305       

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 23,685            14,796            38,481            174                 
Deferred pension resources 2,663,862       448,265          3,112,127       8,406              

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 2,687,547       463,061          3,150,608       8,580              

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 459,552          1,228,633       1,688,185       6,444              
Due to other governments 27,723            33,286            61,009            -                       
Accrued interest payable 120,225          408,012          528,237          -                       
Accrued wages payable 55,734            48,860            104,594          746                 
Deposits payable 27,948            300,565          328,513          -                       
Unearned revenue 338,750          118,663          457,413          -                       
Noncurrent liabilities

Due within one year
Long-term liabilities 1,126,896       1,944,162       3,071,058       -                       

Due in more than one year
Long-term liabilities 9,536,369       30,043,206     39,579,575     -                       
Net pension liability 2,482,873       1,605,615       4,088,488       26,867            
Other postemployment benefits liability 118,803          74,215            193,018          870                 

Total Liabilities 14,294,873     35,805,217     50,100,090     34,927            

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 44,834            28,008            72,842            329                 
Deferred pension resources 2,395,304       510,445          2,905,749       8,588              

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,440,138       538,453          2,978,591       8,917              

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 13,597,101     19,996,938     33,594,039     744,017          
Restricted for

Debt service 6,923,680       -                       6,923,680       -                       
Capital projects 398,119          -                       398,119          -                       
Net pension asset 159,622          -                       159,622          -                       
Economic development 1,037,865       -                       1,037,865       -                       
Upgrades 67,188            -                       67,188            -                       
Park improvements 34,836            -                       34,836            -                       
Public safety aid 359,753          -                       359,753          -                       

Unrestricted 6,476,375       18,760,506     25,236,881     1,061,024       

Total Net Position 29,054,539$  38,757,444$  67,811,983$  1,805,041$     

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary Government

Governmental Activities
General government 1,409,875$     129,116$        5,000$            -$                     
Public safety 2,764,556       335,245          606,267          -                       
Public works 2,757,709       32,437            117,161          2,874,352       
Culture and recreation 1,067,252       46,681            46,101            -                       
Economic development 109,139          15,982            -                       -                       
Miscellaneous 86,379            7,200               -                       -                       
Interest on long-term debt 227,206          -                       -                       -                       

Total Governmental Activities 8,422,116       566,661          774,529          2,874,352       

Business-type activities
Sewer utility 4,010,713       3,487,456       -                       183,963          
Electric utility 9,406,677       10,343,883     -                       26,795            
Water utility 1,484,765       1,901,337       -                       130,908          
Storm water utility 404,204          406,643          -                       -                       
Golf 1,498,240       1,411,236       -                       -                       
Ambulance 13,674            19,950            -                       -                       

Total Business-type Activities 16,818,273     17,570,505     -                       341,666          

Total Primary Government 25,240,389$   18,137,166$   774,529$        3,216,018$     

Component Unit
Economic development 89,472$          11,219$          3$                    -$                     

General Revenues
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Tax increments
Franchise taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings (loss)
Other revenues
Gain on sale of capital assets

Transfers
   Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, January 1  

Net Position, December 31

Functions/Programs

Program Revenues

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Component
Unit

Economic 
Governmental Business-type Development

Activities Activities Total Authority

(1,275,759)$    -$                     (1,275,759)$    
(1,823,044)      -                       (1,823,044)      

266,241          -                       266,241          
(974,470)         -                       (974,470)         

(93,157)           -                       (93,157)           
(79,179)           -                       (79,179)           

(227,206)         -                       (227,206)         
(4,206,574)      -                       (4,206,574)      

-                       (339,294)$       (339,294)         
-                       964,001          964,001          
-                       547,480          547,480          
-                       2,439               2,439               
-                       (87,004)           (87,004)           
-                       6,276               6,276               
-                       1,093,898       1,093,898       

(78,250)$         

3,751,497       -                       3,751,497       74,653            
992,778          -                       992,778          -                       
109,139          -                       109,139          -                       

94,949            -                       94,949            -                       
1,532,098       199                  1,532,297       -                       

696,255          612,568          1,308,823       18,861            
67,298            -                       67,298            53,315            
73,602            23,945            97,547            -                       

(81,270)           81,270            -                       -                       
7,236,346       717,982          7,954,328       146,829          

3,029,772       1,811,880       4,841,652       68,579            

26,024,767     36,945,564     62,970,331     1,736,462       

29,054,539$   38,757,444$   67,811,983$   1,805,041$     

Net (Expense) Revenue and
Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
December 31, 2023

Other
Debt CIP Governmental

 General Service 2023 Funds Totals
Assets

Cash and temporary investments 5,464,567$     4,347,721$     293,760$        4,404,169$     14,510,217$   
Receivables

Interest 126,574          -                       -                       -                       126,574           
Delinquent taxes 28,049            -                       -                       -                       28,049             
Accounts 149,774          -                       -                       25,000            174,774           
Notes, net of allowance -                       576,666          -                       31,926            608,592           
Special assessments 4,505               2,297,847       -                       249,774          2,552,126        
Intergovernmental 92,471            6,012               -                       1,176,162       1,274,645        

Total Assets 5,865,940$     7,228,246$     293,760$        5,887,031$     19,274,977$   

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 240,419$        52,341$          35,451$          131,341$        459,552$        
Due to other governments 26,931            -                       -                       792                  27,723             
Accrued wages payable 55,734            -                       -                       -                       55,734             
Deposits payable 18,173            -                       -                       9,775               27,948             
Unearned revenue 275                  -                       -                       338,475          338,750           

Total Liabilities 341,532          52,341            35,451            480,383          909,707           

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 28,049            -                       -                       -                       28,049             
Unavailable revenue - special assessments 4,505               2,297,847       -                       249,774          2,552,126        
Unavailable revenue - grants -                       -                       -                       1,176,162       1,176,162        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 32,554            2,297,847       -                       1,425,936       3,756,337        

Fund Balances 
Restricted for

Debt service -                       4,878,058       -                       -                       4,878,058        
Economic development -                       -                       -                       1,037,865       1,037,865        
Upgrades -                       -                       -                       67,188            67,188             
Capital projects -                       -                       -                       398,119          398,119           
Park improvements -                       -                       -                       34,836            34,836             
Public safety aid 359,753          -                       -                       -                       359,753           

Committed for
Emergency weather/disaster purposes 100,000          -                       -                       -                       100,000           
Future athletic field 143,987          -                       -                       -                       143,987           
Public facilities and infrastructure 500,000          -                       -                       -                       500,000           

Assigned for
Acquisition of equipment and vehicles 330,059          -                       -                       -                       330,059           
ARPA -                       -                       -                       29,924            29,924             
Renovation/replacement of public facilities 834,002          -                       -                       -                       834,002           
Capital projects -                       -                       -                       2,390,699       2,390,699        
Equipment -                       -                       -                       10,232            10,232             
Economic development -                       -                       -                       67,295            67,295             
Crime prevention -                       -                       -                       43,640            43,640             
Park improvements -                       -                       -                       302,603          302,603           
Rental house 34,101            -                       -                       -                       34,101             

Unassigned 3,189,952       -                       258,309          (401,689)         3,046,572        
Total Fund Balances 5,491,854       4,878,058       258,309          3,980,712       14,608,933     

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances 5,865,940$     7,228,246$     293,760$        5,887,031$     19,274,977$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net position are different because

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 14,608,933$   

Long-term net pension assets from pensions reported in governmental activities are not 
financial resources and therefore are not reported as assets in the funds. 159,622          

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in the funds.

Cost of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 23,667,404     

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Long-term liabilities at year-end consist of

Compensated absences payable (202,653)         
Bonds payable (9,527,846)      
Indenture of trust payable (HRA) (132,000)         
Bond premiums, net of amortization (800,766)         
Other post employment benefits (118,803)         
Net pension liability (2,482,873)      

Long-term assets are not available to pay current-period expenditures and, therefore,
are unavailable in the funds.

Delinquent property taxes receivable 28,049            
Special assessments receivable 2,552,126       
Grants receivable 1,176,162       

Governmental funds do not report long-term amounts related to pensions.
Deferred outflows of resources - pension resources 2,663,862       
Deferred inflows of resources - pension resources (2,395,304)      

Governmental funds do not report long-term amounts related to other post employment benefits.
Deferred outflows of other post employment benefit resources 23,685            
Deferred inflows of other post employment benefit resources (44,834)           

Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until
due and payable. (120,225)         

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 29,054,539$   

December 31, 2023

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet

to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Other
Debt CIP Governmental

General Service 2023 Funds Totals
Revenues

Taxes 3,839,128$     901,700$        -$                     205,421$        4,946,249$     
Special assessments -                        553,519          -                        1,339               554,858          
Licenses and permits 321,635          -                        -                        -                        321,635          
Intergovernmental 2,319,968       -                        -                        339,777          2,659,745       
Charges for services 71,430             -                        -                        49,996             121,426          
Fines and forfeits 26,319             -                        -                        -                        26,319             
Investment earnings 347,250          121,842          -                        227,163          696,255          
Miscellaneous 83,958             15,442             -                        51,697             151,097          

Total Revenues 7,009,688       1,592,503       -                        875,393          9,477,584       

Expenditures
Current

General government 1,285,787       -                        -                        -                        1,285,787       
Public safety 2,329,320       -                        -                        8,996               2,338,316       
Public works 1,098,943       -                        -                        1,528               1,100,471       
Culture and recreation 856,231          -                        -                        -                        856,231          
Economic development -                        109,139          -                        -                        109,139          
Miscellaneous 86,379             -                        -                        -                        86,379             

Capital outlay
Public safety 244,393          -                        -                        -                        244,393          
Public works 265,438          -                        1,908,550       295,801          2,469,789       
Culture and recreation 1,399,231       -                        -                        -                        1,399,231       

Debt service
Principal -                        1,029,314       -                        -                        1,029,314       
Interest and other -                        284,622          -                        -                        284,622          
Bond issuance costs and fees -                        37,002             18,428             -                        55,430             

Total Expenditures 7,565,722       1,460,077       1,926,978       306,325          11,259,102     

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (556,034)         132,426          (1,926,978)      569,068          (1,781,518)      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of assets 11,102             -                        -                        -                        11,102             
Transfers in 229,985          192,095          -                        -                        422,080          
Debt issued -                        -                        2,135,000       -                        2,135,000       
Premium on bonds issued -                        -                        152,472          -                        152,472          
Transfers out (121,270)         -                        -                        (382,080)         (503,350)         

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 119,817          192,095          2,287,472       (382,080)         2,217,304       

Net Change in Fund Balances (436,217)         324,521          360,494          186,988          435,786          

Fund Balances, January 1 5,928,071       4,553,537       (102,185)         3,793,724       14,173,147     

Fund Balances, December 31 5,491,854$     4,878,058$     258,309$        3,980,712$     14,608,933$   

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds 435,786$        

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 3,748,297       
Depreciation expense (1,701,397)      
Book value of traded in assets added to new asset 62,500            

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e. sales, trade-ins,
and donations) is to increase (decrease) net position.

Contribution of capital assets to business-type activities 1,592,830       

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while
the repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds.  Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.  Also, governmental funds report  
the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.

Principal repayments 1,029,314       
Debt issued or incurred (2,135,000)      
Premiums on bonds issued, net of amortization (21,689)           

Long-term pension activity is not reported in governmental funds.
Pension expense (324,437)         
Direct aid contributions 3,876               

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental fund because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources.  In the statement of activities, however,
interest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. (17,937)           

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Compensated absences (27,052)           
Other post employment benefits (4,320)             

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned.  Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available
to liquidate liabilities of the current period.

Property taxes 2,114               
Special assessments 65,481            
Grants 321,406          

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities 3,029,772$     

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Reconciliation of the Statement of

Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
to the Statement of Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget

Revenues
Taxes 3,828,128$     3,828,128$     3,839,128$     11,000$          
Licenses and permits 240,780          240,780          321,635          80,855            
Intergovernmental 1,812,876       1,844,276       2,319,968       475,692          
Charges for services 158,406          158,406          71,430            (86,976)           
Fines and forfeits 20,000            20,000            26,319            6,319               
Interest earnings 10,000            10,000            347,250          337,250          
Miscellaneous 14,500            14,500            83,958            69,458            

Total Revenues 6,084,690       6,116,090       7,009,688       893,598          

Expenditures
Current

General government 1,315,665       1,315,665       1,285,787       29,878            
Public safety 2,444,892       2,444,892       2,329,320       115,572          
Public works 1,042,787       1,042,787       1,098,943       (56,156)           
Culture and recreation 790,490          790,490          856,231          (65,741)           
Miscellaneous 64,421            64,421            86,379            (21,958)           

Capital outlay
Public safety 194,200          194,200          244,393          (50,193)           
Streets and highways 107,000          268,000          265,438          2,562               
Culture and recreation 424,000          1,454,000       1,399,231       54,769            

Total Expenditures 6,383,455       7,574,455       7,565,722       8,733               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures (298,765)         (1,458,365)      (556,034)         902,331          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of assets -                       -                       11,102            11,102            
Transfers in 225,385          224,985          229,985          5,000               
Transfers out (121,270)         (121,270)         (121,270)         -                       

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 104,115          103,715          119,817          16,102            

Net Change in Fund Balances (194,650)         (1,354,650)      (436,217)         918,433          

Fund Balances, January 1 5,928,071       5,928,071       5,928,071       -                       

Fund Balances, December 31 5,733,421$     4,573,421$     5,491,854$     918,433$        

Budgeted Amounts

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2023

604 605 Total Public 602 Other
Utilities Enterprise

Water Utility Electric Utility Commission Sewer Utility Funds Totals
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and temporary investments
Undesignated 2,657,056$     3,611,086$     6,268,142$     8,223,860$     1,654,191$     16,146,193$   
Designated -                       2,383,735       2,383,735       210,000          -                       2,593,735       

Receivables
Accounts, net of allowance 208,297          1,554,895       1,763,192       276,133          40,920            2,080,245       
Special assessments - current portion 479,215          812                 480,027          258,520          -                       738,547          
Intergovernmental 3,665              78,527            82,192            10,961            2,389              95,542            

Inventories 49,666            1,126,713       1,176,379       -                       57,888            1,234,267       
Prepaid items -                       2,244              2,244              -                       -                       2,244              

Total Current Assets 3,397,899       8,758,012       12,155,911     8,979,474       1,755,388       22,890,773     

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets

Land 79,520            41,648            121,168          56,980            -                       178,148          
Construction in progress 133,434          247,252          380,686          -                       -                       380,686          
Land improvements -                       -                       -                       -                       910,290          910,290          
Buildings 5,952,857       9,314,677       15,267,534     27,964,822     1,094,511       44,326,867     
Infrastructure 11,492,127     14,206,486     25,698,613     7,897,920       8,282,527       41,879,060     
Machinery and equipment 367,306          2,321,987       2,689,293       13,906,584     1,589,834       18,185,711     

Less accumulated depreciation (8,848,119)      (15,837,772)   (24,685,891)   (22,636,107)   (6,791,484)      (54,113,482)   
Total Capital Assets

(net of accumulated depreciation) 9,177,125       10,294,278     19,471,403     27,190,199     5,085,678       51,747,280     

Total Assets 12,575,024     19,052,290     31,627,314     36,169,673     6,841,066       74,638,053     

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 3,872              5,538              9,410              3,889              1,497              14,796            
Deferred pension resources 75,379            185,794          261,173          101,203          85,889            448,265          

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 79,251            191,332          270,583          105,092          87,386            463,061          

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable 5,525              1,112,539       1,118,064       32,087            78,482            1,228,633       
Due to other governments 7,215              -                       7,215              22,959            3,112              33,286            
Accrued interest payable 45,129            -                       45,129            337,861          25,022            408,012          
Accrued wages payable 8,699              21,431            30,130            12,744            5,986              48,860            
Accrued compensated absences payable 15,925            27,467            43,392            10,151            6,718              60,261            
Customer deposits payable 32,775            139,042          171,817          63,037            65,711            300,565          
Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       118,663          118,663          
Current portion of bonds payable 290,976          -                       290,976          1,418,577       174,348          1,883,901       

Total Current Liabilities 406,244          1,300,479       1,706,723       1,897,416       478,042          4,082,181       

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued compensated absences payable 37,489            94,918            132,407          19,815            4,488              156,710          
Bonds payable - net of current portion 3,367,777       -                       3,367,777       24,836,756     1,681,963       29,886,496     
Net pension liability 293,737          723,987          1,017,724       323,468          264,423          1,605,615       
Other post employment benefits 19,420            27,780            47,200            19,506            7,509              74,215            

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,718,423       846,685          4,565,108       25,199,545     1,958,383       31,723,036     

Total Liabilities 4,124,667       2,147,164       6,271,831       27,096,961     2,436,425       35,805,217     

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 7,329              10,484            17,813            7,361              2,834              28,008            
Deferred pension resources 95,644            235,737          331,381          103,397          75,667            510,445          

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 102,973          246,221          349,194          110,758          78,501            538,453          

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 5,518,967       10,294,278     15,813,245     934,866          3,248,827       19,996,938     
Unrestricted 2,907,668       6,555,959       9,463,627       8,132,180       1,164,699       18,760,506     

Total Net Position 8,426,635$     16,850,237$   25,276,872$   9,067,046$     4,413,526$     38,757,444$   

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

` 604 605 Total Public 602 Total
Utilities  Nonmajor 

Water Utility Electric Utility Commission Sewer Utility Funds Totals
Operating Revenues

Sales -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    512,000$        512,000$        
Cost of sales -                       -                       -                       -                       (235,609)        (235,609)        

Gross profit -                       -                       -                       -                       276,391          276,391          
Charges for services 1,878,048       10,150,856     12,028,904     3,476,553       1,304,579       16,810,036     
Miscellaneous -                       -                       -                       -                       21,233            21,233            

   Total Operating Revenues 1,878,048       10,150,856     12,028,904     3,476,553       1,602,203       17,107,660     

Operating Expenses
Purchases and generation 131,814          7,130,071       7,261,885       -                       -                       7,261,885       
Transmission and distribution 420,890          180,945          601,835          -                       -                       601,835          
Administration and general 407,828          1,395,282       1,803,110       -                       -                       1,803,110       
Salaries and benefits -                       -                       -                       659,944          775,657          1,435,601       
Supplies -                       -                       -                       311,751          195,429          507,180          
Other services and charges -                       -                       -                       143,262          177,616          320,878          
Insurance -                       -                       -                       56,763            17,189            73,952            
Utilities -                       -                       -                       369,254          119,636          488,890          
Depreciation 433,405          695,512          1,128,917       1,546,781       338,034          3,013,732       

   Total Operating Expenses 1,393,937       9,401,810       10,795,747     3,087,755       1,623,561       15,507,063     
 
Operating Income (Loss) 484,111          749,046          1,233,157       388,798          (21,358)           1,600,597       

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental 36                   90                   126                 40                   33                   199                 
Investment income (loss) 91,256            218,175          309,431          253,829          49,308            612,568          
Miscellaneous income 16,537            193,027          209,564          8,815              -                       218,379          
Water meter income 6,752              -                       6,752              -                       -                       6,752              
Refunds and reimbursements -                       -                       -                       2,088              -                       2,088              
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets -                       19,650            19,650            -                       4,295              23,945            
Bond issuance expense (15,057)           -                       (15,057)           (9,497)             (18,039)           (42,593)           
Interest expense (106,812)        (4,867)             (111,679)        (936,174)        (57,048)           (1,104,901)      
Amortization of bond premium 31,041            -                       31,041            22,713            18,156            71,910            

   Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 23,753            426,075          449,828          (658,186)        (3,295)             (211,653)        

Income (Loss) Before
Contributions and Transfers 507,864          1,175,121       1,682,985       (269,388)        (24,653)           1,388,944       

Capital Contributions
Hookup charges 33,896            -                       33,896            111,753          -                       145,649          
Special assessments 92,960            -                       92,960            72,210            -                       165,170          
Water access charges 4,052              -                       4,052              -                       -                       4,052              
Other entities -                       26,795            26,795            -                       -                       26,795            

   Total Capital Contributions 130,908          26,795            157,703          183,963          -                       341,666          

Transfers In -                       -                       -                       -                       121,270          121,270          
Transfers Out -                       (40,000)           (40,000)           -                       -                       (40,000)           

Total Transfers -                       (40,000)           (40,000)           -                       121,270          81,270            

Change in Net Position 638,772          1,161,916       1,800,688       (85,425)           96,617            1,811,880       

Net Position, January 1 7,787,863       15,688,321     23,476,184     9,152,471       4,316,909       36,945,564     

Net Position, December 31 8,426,635$     16,850,237$   25,276,872$   9,067,046$     4,413,526$     38,757,444$   

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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604 605 Total Public 602 Total
Utilities  Nonmajor 

Water Utility Electric Utility Commission Sewer Utility Funds Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers 1,874,589$     10,001,071$   11,875,660$   3,441,653$     1,819,234$     17,136,547$   
Payments to suppliers and vendors (331,984)         (7,443,251)      (7,775,235)      (874,792)         (677,127)         (9,327,154)      
Payments to and on behalf of employees (598,183)         (1,228,924)      (1,827,107)      (613,137)         (725,787)         (3,166,031)      
Other receipts 16,537            193,027          209,564          10,903            21,233            241,700          

Net Cash Provided (Used)
   by Operating Activities 960,959          1,521,923       2,482,882       1,964,627       437,553          4,885,062       

Cash Flows from
Noncapital Financing Activities

State grants received 36                    90                    126                  40                    33                    199                  
Transfers from other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       121,270          121,270          
Transfers to other funds -                       (40,000)           (40,000)           -                       -                       (40,000)           

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
   Noncapital Financing Activities 36                    (39,910)           (39,874)           40                    121,303          81,469            

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Special assessment receipts 28,880            -                       28,880            5,500               -                       34,380            
Capital contributions from other entities -                       26,795            26,795            -                       -                       26,795            
Payments on advances from other funds -                       -                       -                       -                       (23,187)           (23,187)           
Proceeds from bonds issued, net of discount/premiums 492,636          -                       492,636          326,742          583,548          1,402,926       
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (1,062,214)      (799,938)         (1,862,152)      (389,922)         (776,589)         (3,028,663)      
Proceeds from the disposal of capital assets -                       19,650            19,650            -                       4,295               23,945            
Principal paid on bonds (234,710)         -                       (234,710)         (883,360)         (197,616)         (1,315,686)      
Interest paid on bonds and notes (102,676)         (4,867)             (107,543)         (943,194)         (59,287)           (1,110,024)      
Issuance costs paid on bonds (15,057)           -                       (15,057)           (9,497)             (18,039)           (42,593)           
Hookup charges 33,856            -                       33,856            111,753          -                       145,609          
Water access charges 4,052               -                       4,052               -                       -                       4,052               

Net Cash Provided (Used) by
   Capital Financing Activities (855,233)         (758,360)         (1,613,593)      (1,781,978)      (486,875)         (3,882,446)      

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Interest received 91,256            218,175          309,431          253,829          49,308            612,568          

Net Increase (Decrease) 
in Cash and Cash Equivalents 197,018          941,828          1,138,846       436,518          121,289          1,696,653       

Cash and Cash Equivalents, 
January 1, 2,460,038       5,052,993       7,513,031       7,997,342       1,532,902       17,043,275     

Cash and Cash Equivalents,
December 31, 2,657,056$     5,994,821$     8,651,877$     8,433,860$     1,654,191$     18,739,928$   

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Undesignated 2,657,056$     3,611,086$     6,268,142$     8,223,860$     1,654,191$     16,146,193$   
Designated -                       2,383,735       2,383,735       210,000          -                       2,593,735       

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,657,056$     5,994,821$     8,651,877$     8,433,860$     1,654,191$     18,739,928$   

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued on the Following Pages)

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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604 605 Total Public 602 Total
Utilities  Nonmajor 

Water Utility Electric Utility Commission Sewer Utility Funds Totals
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 484,111$        749,046$        1,233,157$     388,798$        (21,358)$         1,600,597$     
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

 to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Other income related to operations 23,289            193,027          216,316          10,903            -                       227,219          
Depreciation 433,405          695,512          1,128,917       1,546,781       338,034          3,013,732       
(Increase) decrease in assets

Accounts receivable (9,521)             (140,787)         (150,308)         (32,089)           9,293               (173,104)         
Intergovernmental (690)                (8,998)             (9,688)             (2,811)             (2,389)             (14,888)           
Inventories 25,649            (252,486)         (226,837)         -                       (8,183)             (235,020)         
Prepaid items 1,094               2,298               3,392               1,381               332                  5,105               

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 1,869               2,958               4,827               1,160               734                  6,721               
Deferred pension resources 74,530            139,158          213,688          23,153            37,011            273,852          

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable (987)                192,554          191,567          (19,214)           73,091            245,444          
Due to other governments 53                    (5,219)             (5,166)             22,959            3,112               20,905            
Accrued wages payable 726                  3,777               4,503               4,782               (184)                9,101               
Accrued compensated absences payable 9,179               18,082            27,261            (653)                6,522               33,130            
Customer deposits payable 834                  (2,628)             (1,794)             1,112               7,821               7,139               
Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       (12,070)           (12,070)           
Other post employment benefits payable (2,212)             (4,233)             (6,445)             479                  (896)                (6,862)             
Net pension liability (171,313)         (284,089)         (455,402)         (81,779)           (62,605)           (599,786)         

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources 1,798               2,298               4,096               2,496               685                  7,277               
Deferred pension resources 89,145            221,653          310,798          97,169            68,603            476,570          

Net Cash Provided (Used)
   by Operating Activities 960,959$        1,521,923$     2,482,882$     1,964,627$     437,553$        4,885,062$     

Noncash Investing, Capital
and Financing Activities

Amortization of bond (premium) discount (31,041)$         -$                     (31,041)$         (22,713)$         (18,156)$         (71,910)$         
Bond premium issued 32,636$          -$                     32,636$          21,742$          38,548$          92,926$          

City of New Prague, Minnesota

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Proprietary Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  
 
A. Reporting Entity  
 
The City of New Prague (the City) operates under a home rule charter form of government.  The City is governed by an 
elected Mayor and a four-member Council.  The Council exercises legislative authority and determines all matters of 
policy.  The Council appoints personnel responsible for the proper administration of all affairs relating to the City.  The 
City has considered all potential units for which it is financially accountable, and other organizations for which the nature 
and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete.  The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be 
considered in determining financial accountability.  These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s 
governing body, and (1) the ability of the primary government to impose its will on that organization or (2) the potential for 
the organization to provide specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government.  As 
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these financial statements present 
the City and its component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially accountable.  The following is a 
brief review of each potential component unit addressed in defining the government’s reporting entity. 
 
Included within the reporting entity: 
 

City of New Prague Utilities Commission (PUC).  The Commission’s governing board is appointed by the City Council. 
Bond issuance authorizations also are approved by the City and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of 
the Commission’s debt remains with the City.  The PUC is not considered a component unit and its Water Utility and 
Electric Utility funds are reported as enterprise funds of the City.  
 
City of New Prague Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA).  The HRA was created by the City to carry out 
housing and redevelopment projects. The governing board is appointed by the City Council, the Council reviews and 
approves HRA tax levies and the City provides major community development financing for HRA activities. Debt 
issued for HRA activities are general obligations of the City.  The HRA is a blended component unit reported as a Debt 
Service fund of the City. 
 
City of New Prague Economic Development Authority (EDA).  The EDA was created by the City to carry out economic 
development projects.  Two of the seven-member board of commissioners are a City Council member and the Mayor 
while all other members are appointed by the Council. The EDA’s governing body does not have substantively the 
same board as the City, has no outstanding debt issued through the City, and does not provide services entirely to the 
City.  Therefore, the EDA is a discretely presented component unit presented as a governmental activities. 

 
Excluded from the reporting entity: 
 

New Prague Fire Department Relief Association.  The association is organized as a non-profit organization by its 
members to provide pension and other benefits to members in accordance with Minnesota statutes. The Board of 
Directors is appointed by the membership of the Association. All funding is conducted in accordance with Minnesota 
statutes, whereby state aids flow to the association, tax levies are determined by the Association and are only 
reviewed by the City and the Association pays benefits directly to its members.  

 
B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report 
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units.  Governmental 
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-
type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.   
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset 
by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.  
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly 
benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that 
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment.  Taxes and other 
items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.   
 
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  Major individual governmental 
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 
 
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 
 
The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements.  Revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.  Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon 
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available.  
Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to 
pay liabilities of the current period.  For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period.  Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as 
under accrual accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences 
and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 
 
Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, charges for services, and interest on investments associated with the current 
fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period.  Only the portion of special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be 
susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.  All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and 
available only when cash is received by the City. 
 
Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is recorded 
on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the year in 
which the resources are measurable and become available.   

 
Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include property 
taxes, grants, entitlement and donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the year for 
which the tax is levied.  Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in which all eligibility 
requirements have been satisfied.  Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when the 
resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the City must 
provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are 
provided to the City on a reimbursement basis.  On a modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions 
must also be available before it can be recognized. 
 

Unearned revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied.  Grants and 
entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as unearned revenue.   
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and 
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General fund is the City’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Debt Service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest on long-
term general obligation debt of governmental funds. 
 
The CIP 2023 fund is used to account for the expenditures related to the completion of 2023 CIP projects. 
 

The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 
The Water Utility enterprise fund accounts for costs associated with the City’s water system and to ensure that user 
charges are sufficient to pay for those costs. 
 

The Sewer Utility enterprise fund accounts for the costs associated with the City’s sewer system and to ensure that 
user charges are sufficient to pay for those costs. 
 

The Electric Utility enterprise fund accounts for the costs associated with the City’s electric utility system and to 
ensure that user charges are sufficient to pay for those costs. 

 

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial statements. 
Exceptions to this general rule are transactions that would be treated as revenues, expenditures or expenses if they 
involved external organizations, such as buying goods and services or payment in lieu of taxes, are similarly treated when 
they involve other funds of the City. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues 
reported for the various functions concerned. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary 
fund’s principal ongoing operations.  The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are charges to 
customers for sales and services. The City also recognizes as operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to 
recover the cost of connecting new customers to the system.  All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 
 
D. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Net Position/Fund Balance 
 
Deposits and Investments 
 
The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments 
with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition. The proprietary funds’ portion in the 
government-wide cash and temporary investments pool is considered to be cash and cash equivalents for purposes of 
the statements of cash flows. 
 
Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in certificates of deposit and other 
authorized investments.  Earnings from such investments are allocated on the basis of applicable participation by each of 
the funds. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

The City may invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota statutes, as follows: 

1. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.

2. Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and received the
highest credit rating, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by a statistical rating agency, and have a
final maturity of thirteen months or less.

3. General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or better; revenue obligations
rated “AA” or better.

4. General obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or better.

5. Obligation of a school district with an original maturity not exceeding 13 months and (i) rated in the highest
category by a national bond rating service or (ii) enrolled in the credit enhancement program pursuant to statute
section 126C.55.

6. Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.

7. Commercial paper issued by United States banks corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of highest quality
category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less.

8. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions
qualified as a “depository” by the government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System
with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S. government securities to the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers.

9. Guaranteed investment contracts (GIC's) issued or guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, a domestic
branch of a foreign bank, a United States insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, whose similar debt
obligations were rated in one of the top two rating categories by a nationally recognized rating agency.

Broker money market funds operate in accordance with appropriate state laws and regulations. The reported value of the 
pool is the same as the fair value of the shares. 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted 
accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 
3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. The City’s recurring fair value measurements are listed in detail on page 52 
and are valued using quoted market prices (Level 1 inputs). 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Investment Policy 
 
The City’s investment policy incorporates Minnesota statutes as described above which reduces the City’s exposure to 
credit, custodial credit and interest rate risks. Specific risk information for the City is as follows: 
 

• Credit Risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligations. Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies and where applicable, indicate associated 
credit risk. Minnesota statutes and the City’s investment policy limit the City’s investments to the list above.  

 

• Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the 
counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral 
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The City’s investment policy does not address custodial 
credit risk but typically limits its exposure by purchasing insured or registered investments.  

 

• Concentration of Credit Risk. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a 
government’s investment in a single issuer. The City limits investments in any one institution, other than the U.S. 
Government or its agencies, to not more than $2,000,000 or 30 percent of the total portfolio. The City has no 
concentrations greater than their own requirements in any one issuer.  

 

• Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. In accordance with its investment policy, the City requires at least 5 percent of the City’s 
investment portfolio to be available on a daily basis without loss of principal. Also, no more than 30 percent of the 
portfolio should have maturities exceeding 3 years. 

 
Property Taxes  
 
The Council annually adopts a tax levy and certifies it to the County in December for collection the following year.  The 
County is responsible for collecting all property taxes for the City.  These taxes attach an enforceable lien on taxable 
property within the City on January 1 and are payable by the property owners in two installments.  The taxes are collected 
by the County Treasurer and tax settlements are made to the City during January, June, and November each year. 
 
Delinquent taxes receivable include the past six years' uncollected taxes.  Delinquent taxes have been offset by a deferred 
inflow of resources for delinquent taxes not received within 60 days after year end in the governmental fund financial 
statements. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable include amounts billed for services provided before year end.  Unbilled utility enterprise fund 
receivables are also included for services provided in 2023.  All trade receivables are shown net of an allowance for 
uncollectible accounts.  The allowance for uncollectible accounts at December 31, 2023 was $10,000 in the Electric Utility 
enterprise fund and $4,000 the Water Utility enterprise fund. 
 
Special Assessments 
 
Special assessments represent the financing for public improvements paid for by benefiting property owners.  These 
assessments are recorded as receivables upon certification to the County.  Special assessments are recognized as 
revenue when they are annually certified to the County or received in cash or within 60 days after year end.  All 
governmental special assessments receivable are offset by a deferred inflow of resources in the fund financial 
statements. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Interfund Receivables and Payables 
 
Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal 
year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from 
other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans).  All other outstanding balances between funds are reported 
as “due to/from other funds.”  Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.” 
 
Certain advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance nonspendable 
account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable 
financial resources. 
 
Inventories 
 
Inventories of the proprietary funds are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on a first-in, first-out 
basis.  
 
Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in 
both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Interfund Transactions 
 
Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. Transactions that constitute 
reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from that fund that are properly applicable to another 
fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund as reductions of expenditures/expense in the fund 
that is reimbursed. 
 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursement are reported as transfers. 
Transfers were made when necessary to close various capital projects in accordance with the resolutions.  
 
Land Held for Resale 
 
Land is acquired by the City for subsequent resale for development purposes.  Land held for resale is reported as an asset 
at lower of cost or market value in the fund that acquired it. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and 
similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements.  Capital assets are defined by the City and Commission as assets with an initial, individual cost of 
more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.  The City reports infrastructure 
assets on a network and subsystem basis.  Accordingly, the amounts spent for the construction or acquisition of 
infrastructure assets are capitalized and reported in the government-wide financial statements.  Such assets are recorded 
at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition value at the date of donation.   
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental activities) the 
historical costs have been accumulated beginning with the year-ended December 31, 1981.  The City was able to estimate 
the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through back trending (i.e., estimating the actual cost of the 
infrastructure to be capitalized by using available records).  As the City constructs or acquires capital assets each period, 
including infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost.  The reported value excludes normal 
maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the 
capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate.  Donated assets with an individual 
cost greater than $5,000 and a useful life of greater than one year are recognized as capital assets.  
 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvement are capitalized as projects are constructed.  
 
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:  
 

Assets Years

Infrastructure 15 - 20
Buildings and Improvements 7 - 40
Water and Sewer System 50
Furniture, Machinery and Equipment 5 - 15

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the statements of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of 
resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net 
position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 
until then. The City has two items that qualify for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, the items, deferred pension 
resources and deferred other post-employment benefit resources (OPEB) resources, are reported only in the statement of 
net position.  The deferred pension resources result from actuarial calculations and current year pension contributions 
made subsequent to the measurement date. The deferred OPEB resources are current year OPEB contributions made 
subsequent to the measurement date. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation, compensatory time and sick pay 
benefits.  All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements.  A 
liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of 
employee resignations and retirements.  The total amount of compensated absences accrued as of December 31, 2023 
was $419,624.  The General fund is typically used to liquidate governmental compensated absences payable. 
 
Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
Under Minnesota statute 471.61, subdivision 2b, public employers must allow retirees and their dependents to continue 
coverage indefinitely in an employer-sponsored health care plan, under the following conditions: 1) Retirees must be 
receiving (or eligible to receive) an annuity from a Minnesota public pension plan, 2) Coverage must continue in a group 
plan until age 65, and retirees must pay no more than the group premium, and 3) Retirees are able to add dependent 
coverage during open enrollment period or qualifying life event prior to retirement. All premiums are funded on a pay-as-
you-go basis. The liability was determined, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 75, at January 1, 2023. The General 
fund is typically used to liquidate governmental other postemployment benefits payable. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Long-term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt 
and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.  
Bond issuance costs are reported as an expense in the period incurred.  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current 
period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances 
are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance 
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.  
 
Pensions 
 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pension expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position of the Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) and additions 
to/deductions from PERA’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by PERA 
except that PERA’s fiscal year end is June 30.  For this purpose, plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll 
paid dates and benefit payments and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.  
Investments are reported at fair value. The General fund is typically used to liquidate the governmental net pension 
liability. 
 
The total pension expense for the General Employee Plan (GERP), Police and Fire Plan (PEPFP), DCP and the New Prague 
Fire Relief Association is as follows: 
 

GERP PEPFP PEDCP FRA Total

City's proportionate share $579,349 $421,291 $1,035 $67,269 $1,068,944

Proportionate share of State's contribution 343                 (3,258)             -                           -                        (2,915)                

Total pension expense $579,692 $418,033 $1,035 $67,269 $1,066,029

 
Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statements of net position and fund financial statements will sometimes report a separate 
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time. The City has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of 
accounting that qualifies as needing to be reported in this category. Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenue, is reported 
only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from four sources: 
property taxes, special assessments, grants and lease receivable. These amounts are deferred and recognized as an 
inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.   
 
The City has an additional item which qualifies for reporting in this category.  The item, deferred pension resources, is 
reported only in the statements of net position and results from actuarial calculations. 
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Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
 
Fund Balance 
 
In the fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the 
City is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of resources reported in the governmental funds.  These 
classifications are defined as follows: 

 
Nonspendable - Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, such as prepaid items. 
 
Restricted - Amounts related to externally imposed constraints established by creditors, grantors or contributors; or 
constraints imposed by state statutory provisions. 
 
Committed - Amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed by formal action (resolution) of 
the City Council (the Council), which is the City’s highest level of decision-making authority.  Committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Council modifies or rescinds the commitment by resolution. 
 
Assigned - Amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed.  In governmental funds other than 
the General fund, assigned fund balance represents all remaining amounts that are not classified as nonspendable 
and are neither restricted nor committed.  In the General fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established 
by the Council itself or by an official to which the governing body delegates the authority.  The Council has adopted a 
fund balance policy which delegates the authority to assign amounts for specific purposes to the Finance Director. 
 
Unassigned - The residual classification for the General fund and also negative residual amounts in other funds.  
The City considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted fund balance is 
available. Additionally, the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of 
unrestricted fund balance when expenditures are made. 
 

The City has formally adopted a fund balance policy for the General fund.  The City’s policy is to maintain a minimum 
unassigned fund balance of 50 percent of budgeted operating expenditures for cash-flow timing needs. 
 
Net Position 
 
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred 
inflows of resources.  Net position is displayed in three components: 

 
a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation reduced by any 

outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital assets. 
 

b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use 
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments. 
 

c. Unrestricted net position - All other net position that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in 
capital assets”. 

 
When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted resources 
first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability  
 
A. Budgetary Information 
 
Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America for the General fund and the Development Revolving Loan and Crime Prevention special revenue funds.  All 
annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.  The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 
 
The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements: 
 

1. The City Administrator submits to the City Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing 
the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.  
 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain taxpayer comments.  
 

3. The budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution. 
 

4. The City Council may authorize transfer of budgeted amounts between departments within any fund.  
 

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for the General and 
special revenue funds. Budgetary control is maintained at the object of expenditure category level within each 
activity and in compliance with City Charter requirements. Also, inherent in this controlling function is the 
management philosophy that the existence of a particular item or appropriation in the approved budget does not 
automatically mean that it will be spent. The budget process has flexibility in that, where need has been properly 
demonstrated, an adjustment can be made within the department budget by the City Administrator, or between 
departments by the City Council. Therefore, there is a constant review process and expenditures are not approved 
until it has been determined that: (1) adequate funds are appropriated; (2) the expenditure is still necessary; (3) 
funds are available. 
 

6. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Council.  There were budget amendments 
made during the year. 
 

B. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations  
 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, expenditures exceeded appropriations in the following funds: 
 

Excess of
Expenditures

Over
Budget Actual Appropriations

Special Revenue
Crime Prevention 8,900$            8,996$            96$                  

Fund

 
These excess expenditures were funded by excess fund balance. 
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Note 2: Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued) 
 
C. Deficit Fund Balance 
 
The following funds had fund balance deficits at December 31, 2023:   
 

Amount

Capital Projects
Nonmajor

10th Ave Federal Grant 16,677$          
T.H. 19 Project 203,625          
CIP 2024 181,171          
CIP 2025 216                  

Fund

 
The above deficits will be eliminated through future revenues, including long-term debt financing and other revenue 
sources. 
 

Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds 
 
A. Deposits and Investments 
 
Deposits 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the City’s deposits and 
investments may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of an outside 
party.  In accordance with Minnesota statutes and as authorized by the Council, the City maintains deposits at those 
depository banks, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System. 
 
Minnesota statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral.  The fair value of 
collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance, bonds, or irrevocable standby letters 
of credit from Federal Home Loan Banks. 
 
Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes: 
 

• United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds; 
 

• Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry quotation 
service available to the government entity; 

 

• General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “A” or better by a 
national bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers 
which is rated “AA” or better by a national bond rating service; 

 

• General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral against funds 
deposited by that same local government entity; 
 

• Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by 
written evidence that the bank’s public debt is rated “AA” or better by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or Standard 
& Poor’s Corporation; and  
 

• Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency. 
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

Minnesota statutes require that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a restricted account at a Federal Reserve 
Bank, or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not owned or 
controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the City.  
 
At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $11,135,269, including $630,793 reported in the component unit.  
The bank balance was $11,295,898.  Of the bank balance, $11,107,313 was covered by federal depository insurance and 
the remaining was collateralized with securities held by the pledging of financial institution’s trust department in the City’s 
name.  
 
Investments 
 
As of December 31, 2023, the City had the following investments that are insured or registered, or securities held by the 
City’s agent in the City’s name: 
 

Fair Value
Credit Segmented Measurement

Quality/ Time Using
Ratings (1) Distribution (2) Amount Level 1

Pooled Investments at Amortized Cost
Broker Money Market Funds N/A less than 1 year 8,376,990$     

Non-pooled Investments at Amortized Cost
Money Market Funds N/A 1 to 5 years 2,839               

Non-pooled Investments at Fair Value
Government Agency Securities AAA less than 1 year 99,023            99,023$          
Government Agency Securities AAA 1 to 5 years 879,782          879,782          
Government Agency Securities AAA more than 5 years 699,889          699,889          
Government Agency Securities AA+ 1 to 5 years 96,950            96,950            
Government Agency Securities AA3 1 to 5 years 90,318            90,318            
Government Agency Securities AA3 more than 5 years 87,470            87,470            
Government Agency Securities AA2 less than 1 year 14,857            14,857            
Government Agency Securities AA2 1 to 5 years 326,407          326,407          
Government Agency Securities AA2 more than 5 years 99,446            99,446            
Government Agency Securities AA1 less than 1 year 73,430            73,430            
Government Agency Securities AA1 1 to 5 years 233,781          233,781          
Government Agency Securities AA1 more than 5 years 87,451            87,451            
Government Agency Securities AA less than 1 year 49,160            49,160            
Government Agency Securities AA 1 to 5 years 100,474          100,474          
Government Agency Securities AA more than 5 years 100,380          100,380          
Government Agency Securities AA- more than 5 years 97,293            97,293            
Government Agency Securities N/A less than 1 year 6,171,492       6,171,492       
Negotiable certificates of deposit N/A less than 1 year 1,905,303       1,905,303       
Negotiable certificates of deposit N/A 1 to 5 years 3,150,334       3,150,334       

Total Investments 22,743,069$   14,363,240$   

Types of Investments

 
(1) Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies where applicable to indicate associated credit risk. 
(2) Interest rate risk is disclosed using the segmented time distribution method. 
N/A Indicates not applicable or available 
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
There were no investments measured at Level 2 or Level 3. 
 
A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement of net position for the City follows: 
 

Primary Component
Government Unit - EDA Total

Deposits 10,504,476$   630,793$        11,135,269$   
Investments 22,743,069     -                       22,743,069     
Cash on Hand 2,600               -                       2,600               

Total Cash and Temporary Investments 33,250,145$   630,793$        33,880,938$   

Designated Cash and Investments 
 

During 1991, the Commission designated cash and investments of $1,400,000 for future capital projects.  Each year the 
Commission intends to increase the accumulated reserve account by 3 percent.  Designated investments as of  
December 31, 2023 are shown in the charts below. The 3 percent increase will only occur when there are sufficient funds 
in undesignated cash. 
 
The Commission has also designated the Electric enterprise fund cash and investments for the following: 
 

Electric Fund Designated Cash

Future Capital Improvements 2,383,735$     

 
The City has also designated the Sewer Utility enterprise fund cash and investments for the following: 
 

Sewer Utility Fund Designated Cash

Membrane Cartage Replacement 210,000$        
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

  

B. Notes Receivable  
 
Primary Government 
 
Notes receivable at December 31, 2023 consist of: 
 
Primary Government

4.0 to 4.25 percent note receivable from the Rural Fire Department, payable in semiannual
installments that are based on the City's 2007C CIP Plan Bonds through June 12, 2022.
Annual obligations under  this schedule vary between $135,000 and $147,000 per year. 576,667$        

The City has made various economic development loans to businesses.  These loans are 
receivable over 10 year period with interest at 2 percent.  31,925            

The City issued loans under the Small Cities Development Program Grant through the 
Minnesota Department of Trade and Economic Development, these loans are made 
eligible business owners.  These loans will be forgiven after five years as long as the 
owners remain in compliance with the loan terms.

Loan receivable balance 15,844            
Allowance (15,844)           

Total Notes Receivable 608,592$        

 
C. Capital Assets 
 
Primary Government 
 
Capital asset activity for the City for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated

Land 2,013,415$     -$                     -$                     2,013,415$     
Construction in progress 2,625,416       3,142,852       (2,491,240)      3,277,028       

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 4,638,831       3,142,852       (2,491,240)      5,290,443       

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Infrastructure 30,457,978     3,786,114       -                       34,244,092     
Land improvements 1,208,079       183,450          -                       1,391,529       
Buildings and improvements 6,811,541       -                       -                       6,811,541       
Furniture and equipment 5,223,527       782,451          (265,442)         5,740,536       

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 43,701,125     4,752,015       (265,442)         48,187,698     

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Infrastructure (20,653,404)   (1,131,640)      -                       (21,785,044)   
Land improvements (672,886)         (49,456)           -                       (722,342)         
Buildings and improvements (3,409,516)      (146,562)         -                       (3,556,078)      
Furniture and equipment (3,638,976)      (373,739)         265,442          (3,747,273)      

Total Accumulated Depreciation (28,374,782)   (1,701,397)      265,442          (29,810,737)   

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 15,326,343     3,050,618       -                       18,376,961     

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net 19,965,174$   6,193,470$     (2,491,240)$   23,667,404$   
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not Being Depreciated

Land 178,148$        -$                     -$                     178,148$        
Construction in progress 6,977,546       2,324,459       (8,921,319)      380,686          

Total Capital Assets not Being Depreciated 7,155,694       2,324,459       (8,921,319)      558,834          

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Land improvements 910,290          -                       -                       910,290          
Building and improvements 41,083,310     3,243,557       -                       44,326,867     
Infrastructure 36,141,611     5,737,449       -                       41,879,060     
Furniture and equipment 17,691,471     599,039          (104,799)         18,185,711     

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated 95,826,682     9,580,045       (104,799)         105,301,928   

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Land improvements (901,907)         (1,563)             -                       (903,470)         
Building and improvements (22,463,433)   (870,692)         -                       (23,334,125)   
Infrastructure (17,548,516)   (1,177,011)      -                       (18,725,527)   
Furniture and equipment (10,290,693)   (964,466)         104,799          (11,150,360)   

Total Accumulated Depreciation (51,204,549)   (3,013,732)      104,799          (54,113,482)   

Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net 44,622,133     6,566,313       -                       51,188,446     

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net 51,777,827$   8,890,772$     (8,921,319)$   51,747,280$   

 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:  
 

Governmental Activities
General government 81,333$          
Public safety 206,587          
Public works 1,241,551       
Culture and recreation 171,926          

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 1,701,397$     

Business-type Activities
Water utility 433,405$        
Sewer utility 1,546,781       
Storm utility 239,317          
Electric utility 695,512          
Golf 98,717            

Total Depreciation Expense - Business-type Activities 3,013,732$     
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
Discretely Presented Component Units 
 
Capital asset activity for the EDA for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in progress -$                     667,880$        -$                     667,880$        

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Infrastructure 88,676            -                       -                       88,676            

Less Accumulated Depreciation for
Infrastructure (10,766)           (1,773)             -                       (12,539)           

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 77,910            (1,773)             -                       76,137            

Business-type Activities Capital Assets, Net 77,910$          666,107$        -$                     744,017$        

 
Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the EDA as follows: 
 

Business-type Activities
Economic Development 667,880$        

 
D. Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers 
 
The composition of interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows:  

 

Transfer In
Debt Nonmajor

General Service Enterprise Total
Transfer Out

General -$                     -$                   121,270$        121,270$        
Nonmajor 

Governmental 189,985          192,095        -                       382,080          
Enterprise

Electric Utility 40,000            -                     -                       40,000            

   Total Transfers Out 229,985$        192,095$      121,270$        543,350$        

Funds

 
During the year, transfers are used to 1) move revenues from the enterprise funds to the governmental funds to help 
reduce the tax levy and 2) move General fund resources to provide an annual subsidy to other funds.  
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
E. Long-term Debt 
 
General Obligation Bonds 
 
The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities.  
General obligation bonds have been issued for both governmental and business-type activities.  These bonds are reported 
in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary fund revenues.  In addition, general obligation 
bonds have been issued to refund special assessments related bonds. 
 
General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the government.  These obligations 
are being funded through ad valorem tax levies. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 
 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year End

G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2013B 4,185,000$     2.00 - 2.55 % 08/21/13 12/01/28 1,730,000$     

Interest
RateDescription

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 330,000$           39,380$          369,380$        
2025 340,000             32,780            372,780          
2026 345,000             25,470            370,470          
2027 350,000             17,708            367,708          
2028 365,000             9,308               374,308          

Total 1,730,000$        124,645$        1,854,645$     

General Obligation Bonds
Governmental Activities
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
G.O. Special Assessment (Improvement) Bonds 
  

The following bonds were issued to finance various improvements and will be repaid primarily from special assessments 
levied on the properties benefiting from the improvements.  Some issues, however, are partly financed by ad valorem tax 
levies.  All special assessment debt is backed by the full faith and credit of the City. Each year the combined assessment 
and tax levy equals 105 percent of the amount required for debt service.  The excess of 5 percent is to cover any 
delinquencies in tax or assessment payments. 
 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year End

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2009 521,227$        3.00 - 4.20 % 08/01/09 02/01/25 74,948$          
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2011 746,331          2.00 - 3.63 07/01/11 02/01/27 22,079            
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2014A 1,270,000       2.00 - 3.00 10/17/14 02/01/30 605,000          
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2015A 755,000          0.75 - 3.00 07/07/15 02/01/31 240,000          
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2019A 2,310,000       3.00 - 5.00 08/15/19 02/01/35 1,815,000       
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2020A 1,016,597       5.00 11/24/20 02/01/29 740,819          
G.O. Refunding Bond 2021A 2,005,000       5.00 09/02/21 09/02/37 1,905,000       
G.O. Refunding Bond 2022A 260,000          3.00 - 5.00 07/07/22 02/01/23 260,000          
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2023A 2,135,000       4.00 - 5.00 06/29/23 02/01/39 2,135,000       

Total G.O. Special Assessment Bonds 7,797,846$     

Rate
Interest

Description

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation special assessment bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 675,099$           252,899$        927,998$        
2025 805,467             260,603          1,066,070       
2026 767,023             223,107          990,130          
2027 627,690             190,025          817,715          
2028 636,187             160,516          796,703          

2029 - 2033 2,501,380          471,583          2,972,963       
2034 - 2038 1,615,000          155,740          1,770,740       

2039 170,000             6,800               176,800          

Total 7,797,846$        1,721,273$     9,519,119$     

G.O. Special Assessment Bonds
Governmental Activities
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 

G.O. Revenue Bonds 

The following bonds were issued to finance capital improvements in the enterprise funds.  They will be retired from net 
revenues of the enterprise funds. 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year End

G.O. Sewer Revenue
Bonds of 2008 (PFA) 32,280,687$    3.13 % 11/20/08 08/24/38 23,411,000$    

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2009 243,773           2.40 - 4.50 08/01/08 12/01/23 35,052 
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2011 488,669           2.00 - 3.625 07/01/11 02/01/27 147,921           
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2013B 680,000           2.00 - 2.55 08/21/13 12/01/28 115,000           
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2014A 430,000           2.00 - 3.00 10/17/14 02/01/30 235,000           
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2015A 245,000           0.75 - 3.00 07/07/15 02/01/31 140,000           
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2016A 160,000           2.05 10/20/16 02/01/27 95,000 
G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2019A 520,000           3.00 - 5.00 08/15/19 02/01/35 455,000           
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2020A 1,228,403        5.00 11/24/20 02/01/29 847,181           
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2021A 3,460,000        5.00 09/02/21 09/02/37 3,325,000        
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2022A 625,000           3.00 - 5.00 07/07/22 02/01/28 625,000           
G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2023A 1,310,000        4.00 - 5.00 06/29/23 02/01/39 1,310,000        

Total G.O. Revenue Bonds 30,741,154$    

Rate
Interest

Description

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation revenue bonds are as follows: 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 1,819,900$        1,065,962$     2,885,862$     
2025 1,943,534          1,019,425       2,962,959       
2026 1,980,980          944,003          2,924,983       
2027 1,944,310          868,241          2,812,551       
2028 1,955,810          792,409          2,748,219       

2029 - 2033 10,169,620        2,871,546       13,041,166     
2034 - 2038 10,812,000        1,123,194       11,935,194     

2039 115,000 4,600 119,600          

Total 30,741,154$     8,689,380$     39,430,534$   

G.O. Revenue Bonds
Business-type Activities
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Revenue Bonds 
 
The following bonds were issued to finance capital improvements in the enterprise funds.  They will be retired from net 
revenues of these funds. 
 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year End

Golf Club Revenue Bonds
Series 2014 50,000$          2.00 - 2.50 % 10/17/14 02/01/24 5,000$            

Golf Club Revenue Bonds
Series 2015 85,000            0.75 - 2.50 07/07/15 02/01/25 20,000            

Golf Club Revenue Bonds
Series 2016A 74,000            2.05 10/20/16 02/01/26 27,000            

Golf Club Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Series 2022A 210,000          3.00 - 5.00 07/07/22 02/01/28 210,000          

Total Revenue Bonds 262,000$        

Interest
RateDescription

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for revenue bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 64,000$             10,399$          74,399$          
2025 59,000               7,902               66,902            
2026 49,000               5,592               54,592            
2027 45,000               3,375               48,375            
2028 45,000               1,125               46,125            

Total 262,000$           28,393$          290,393$        

Revenue Bonds
Business-type Activities

 
Annual revenues from charges for services, principal and interest payments, and percentage of revenue required to cover 
principal and interest payments for the year ended December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Storm
Water Sewer Sewer Golf

Revenues 2,123,537$     3,925,288$     438,843$        1,187,296$     
Principal and Interest 337,386          1,826,554       138,799          118,104          
Percentage of Revenues 15.9% 46.5% 31.6% 9.9%
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
Indenture of Trust Payable (HRA) 
 
The City’s Housing and Redevelopment Authority (HRA) has participated in the financing of Phillip Square Apartment 
Project along with Scott County CDA.  As part of the joint powers agreement in Section 2.2, the City HRA had pledged an 
annual payment of $70,176 to the Phillip Square project commencing July 1, 2003 through January 1, 2036 to assist in the 
payment of the bonds issued by Scott County for the project.  In 2020, $593,232 of these bonds were refinanced and 
annual payments are now $11,000. 
 

Balance
Authorized Issue Maturity at
and Issued Date Date Year End

Scott County CDA
Indenture of Trust 165,000$        -                       % 10/21/20 12/01/35 132,000$        

Rate
Interest

Description

 
The annual debt service requirements to maturity for indenture of trust payable (HRA) are as follows: 

 

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2024 11,000$             -$                     11,000$          
2025 11,000               -                       11,000            
2026 11,000               -                       11,000            
2027 11,000               -                       11,000            
2028 11,000               -                       11,000            

2029 - 2033 55,000               -                       55,000            
2034 - 2035 22,000               -                       22,000            

Total 132,000$           -$                     132,000$        

Indenture of Trust
Governmental Activities
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Note 3: Detailed Notes on All Funds (Continued) 
 
Changes in Long-term Liabilities 
 
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2023 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental Activities
Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds 2,135,000$       -$                     (405,000)$      1,730,000$       330,000$        
General obligation special

assessment bonds 6,276,160         2,135,000       (613,314)         7,797,846         675,099          
Bond premiums 779,077            152,472          (130,783)         800,766            -                       

Total Bonds Payable 9,190,237         2,287,472       (1,149,097)      10,328,612       1,005,099       
Indenture of Trust 143,000            -                       (11,000)           132,000            11,000            
Compensated Absences 175,601            184,127          (157,075)         202,653            110,797          

Governmental Activities
Long-term Liabilities 9,508,838$       2,471,599$     (1,317,172)$   10,663,265$    1,126,896$     

Business-type Activities
Bonds Payable

General obligation
revenue bonds 30,643,840$    1,310,000$     (1,212,686)$   30,741,154$    1,819,900$     

Revenue bonds 365,000            -                       (103,000)         262,000            64,000            
Bond premiums 746,227            92,926            (71,910)           767,243            -                       

Total Bonds Payable 31,755,067       1,402,926       (1,387,596)      31,770,397       1,883,900       
Compensated Absences 190,468            168,592          (142,089)         216,971            60,262            

Business-type Activities
Long-term Liabilities 31,945,535$    1,571,518$     (1,529,685)$   31,987,368$    1,944,162$     

 
E. Segment Information for Enterprise Funds 
 
The City maintains six enterprise funds which provide services to City residents.  Segment information for the three 
nonmajor funds for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows: 
 

Storm Water
Ambulance Golf Utility Total

Operating Revenues 19,950$          1,175,627$     406,626$        1,602,203$     
Depreciation Expense -                       98,717            239,317          338,034          
Operating Income (Loss) 6,276               (77,412)           49,778            (21,358)           
Income (Loss) Before Transfers
  and Contributions 11,725            (71,040)           34,662            (24,653)           
Transfers in (Out) -                       121,270          -                       121,270          
Capital Asset Additions -                       232,642          543,947          776,589          
Total Assets 187,004          1,260,249       5,393,813       6,841,066       
Net Working Capital 186,394          117,162          973,790          1,277,346       
Noncurrent Liabilities -                       448,434          1,509,949       1,958,383       
Total Net Position 186,394          478,374          3,748,758       4,413,526       
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide

A. Plan Description

General Employees Retirement Plan

Public Employees Police and Fire Plan

B. Benefits Provided

General Employee Plan Benefits

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretirement increase is equal to 50 
percent of the cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) announced by the SSA, with a minimum increase of at least 1 
percent and a maximum of 1.5 percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least a full 
year as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase. Recipients receiving 
the annuity or benefit for at least one month but less than a full year as of the June 30 before the effective date of 
the increase will receive a reduced prorated increase. In 2023, legislation repealed the statute delaying increases 
for members retiring before full retirement age.

The City participates in the following cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans administered 
by the Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA). PERA’s defined benefit pension plans are 
established and administered in accordance with Minnesota statutes, chapters 353 and 356. PERA’s defined 
benefit pension plans are tax qualified plans under Section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code.

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by the General Employees Plan. General 
Employees Plan members belong to the Coordinated Plan. Coordinated Plan members are covered by Social 
Security.

The Police and Fire Plan, originally established for police officers and firefighters not covered by a local relief 
association, now covers all police officers and firefighters hired since 1980. Effective July 1, 1999, the Police and 
Fire Plan also covers police officers and firefighters belonging to a local relief association that elected to merge 
with and transfer assets and administration to PERA.

PERA provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by state statute and 
can only be modified by the state Legislature. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are 
not receiving them yet are bound by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of 
allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two methods are used to compute benefits 
for PERA's Coordinated Plan members. Members hired prior to July 1, 1989, receive the higher of Method 1 or 
Method 2 formulas. Only Method 2 is used for members hired after June 30, 1989. Under Method 1, the accrual 
rate for Coordinated members is 1.2 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years of service and 1.7 
percent of average salary for each additional year. Under Method 2, the accrual rate for Coordinated members is 
1.7 percent for average salary for all years of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989 a full annuity is 
available when age plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after 
July 1, 1989 normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66. 
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

Police and Fire Plan Benefits

C. Contributions

General Employees Fund Contributions

Police and Fire Fund Contributions

Benefits for Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2010, but before July 1, 2014, vest on a 
prorated basis from 50 percent after five years up to 100 percent after ten years of credited service. Benefits for 
Police and Fire Plan members first hired after June 30, 2014 vest on a prorated basis from 50 percent after ten 
years up to 100 percent after twenty years of credited service. The annuity accrual rate is 3 percent of average 
salary for each year of service. For Police and Fire Plan members who were first hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full 
annuity is available when age plus years of service equal at least 90.

Benefit increases are provided to benefit recipients each January. The postretirement increase is fixed at 1 
percent. Recipients that have been receiving the annuity or benefit for at least 36 months as of the June 30 before 
the effective date of the increase will receive the full increase. Recipients receiving the annuity or benefit for at 
least 25 months but less than 36 months as of the June 30 before the effective date of the increase will receive a 
reduced prorated increase.

Minnesota statutes, chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. Contribution rates can 
only be modified by the state Legislature.  

Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 6.50 percent of their annual covered salary in fiscal year 
2023 and the City was required to contribute 7.50 percent for Coordinated Plan members. The City’s contributions 
to the General Employees Fund for the years ending December 31, 2023, 2022, and 2021 were $296,153, $271,681 
and $258,977, respectively. The City's contributions were equal to the required contributions for each year as set 
by state statute.

Police and Fire Plan members were required to contribute 11.80 percent of their annual covered salary in fiscal 
year 2023 and the City was required to contribute 17.70 percent for Police and Fire Plan members. The City’s 
contributions to the Police and Fire Fund for the years ending December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 were $177,395, 
$170,146 and $159,948, respectively. The City’s contributions were equal to the required contributions for each 
year as set by state statute.
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

D. Pension Costs

General Employees Fund Pension Costs

City Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 2,773,577$       
State of Minnesota's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability Associated with the City 76,358              

Total 2,849,935$       

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences Between Expected and Actual Economic Experience 89,584$            17,257$            
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 406,058            760,213            
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings 976                    -                         
Changes in Proportion 165,428            90,476              
Contributions Paid to PERA Subsequent to the Measurement Date 151,636            15,840              

Total 813,682$          883,786$          

At December 31, 2023, the City reported a liability of $2,773,577 for its proportionate share of the General 
Employees Fund’s net pension liability. The City’s net pension liability reflected a reduction due to the State of 
Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million. The State of Minnesota is considered a non-employer contributing entity 
and the state’s contribution meets the definition of a special funding situation. The State of Minnesota’s 
proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the City totaled $76,358. The net pension liability 
was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was 
based on the City’s contributions received by PERA during the measurement period for employer payroll paid 
dates from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023 relative to the total employer contributions received from all of 
PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate share was 0.0496 percent at the end of the 
measurement period and 0.0462 percent for the beginning of the period.

For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $579,349 for its proportionate 
share of the General Employees Plan’s pension expense. In addition, the City recognized $343 as pension expense 
(and grant revenue) for its proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $16 million to the 
General Employees Fund.

At December 31, 2023, the City reported its proportionate share of the General Employees Plan’s deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

123,689$          
(325,666)           

40,405              
(60,168)             

-                         
Thereafter -                         

Police and Fire Fund Pension Costs

2027
2028

At December 31, 2023, the City reported a liability of $1,341,778 for its proportionate share of the Police and Fire 
Fund’s net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2023, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The 
City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was based on the City’s contributions received by PERA 
during the measurement period for employer payroll paid dates from July 1, 2022 through June 30, 2023, relative 
to the total employer contributions received from all of PERA’s participating employers. The City’s proportionate 
share was 0.0777 percent at the end of the measurement period and 0.0754 percent for the beginning of the 
period.

The State of Minnesota contributed $18 million to the Police and Fire Fund in the plan fiscal year ended June 30, 
2023. The contribution consisted of $9 million in direct state aid that does meet the definition of a special funding 
situation and $9 million in supplemental state aid that does not meet the definition of a special funding situation. 
The $9 million direct state was paid on October 1, 2022. Thereafter, by October 1 of each year, the state will pay 
$9 million to the Police and Fire Fund until full funding is reached or July 1, 2048, whichever is earlier. The $9 
million in supplemental state aid will continue until the fund is 90 percent funded, or until the State Patrol Plan 
(administered by the Minnesota State Retirement System) is 90 percent funded, whichever occurs later.

The State of Minnesota is included as a non-employer contributing entity in the Police and Fire Retirement Plan 
Schedule of Employer Allocations and Schedule of Pension Amounts by Employer, Current Reporting Period Only 
(pension allocation schedules) for the $9 million in direct state aid. Police and Fire Plan employers need to 
recognize their proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s pension expense (and grant revenue) under GASB 
68 special funding situation accounting and financial reporting requirements. For the year ended December 31, 
2023, the City recognized pension expense of $421,291 for its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan’s 
pension expense. In addition, the City recognized an additional -$3,258 as pension expense (grant revenue) for its 
proportionate share of the State of Minnesota’s contribution of $9 million to the Police and Fire Fund.

The State of Minnesota is not included as a non-employer contributing entity in the Police and Fire Pension Plan 
pension allocation schedules for the $9 million in supplemental state aid. The City recognized $6,993 for the year 
ended December 31, 2023 as revenue and an offsetting reduction of net pension liability for its proportionate 
share of the State of Minnesota’s on-behalf contributions to the Police and Fire Fund.

2026

The $151,636 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in 
the year ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2024
2025
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences Between Expected and Actual Economic Experience 362,973$          -$                       
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 1,488,472         1,886,047         
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investment Earnings -                         41,234              
Changes in Proportion 101,798            8,787                 
Contributions Paid to PERA Subsequent to the Measurement Date 91,023              -                         

Total 2,044,266$       1,936,068$       

80,725$            
32,566              

318,073            
(81,286)             

(332,903)           
Thereafter -                         

E. Long-term Expected Return on Investment

Domestic Equity 33.5                   % 5.10                   %
International Equity 16.5                   5.30                   
Fixed Income 25.0                   0.75                   
Private Markets 25.0                   5.90                   

Total 100.0                %

2028

The State Board of Investment, which manages the investments of PERA, prepares an analysis of the 
reasonableness on a regular basis of the long-term expected rate of return using a building-block method in which 
best-estimate ranges of expected future rates of return are developed for each major asset class. These ranges 
are combined to produce an expected long-term rate of return by weighting the expected future rates of return by 
the target asset allocation percentages. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return 
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Long-term
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

2027

At December 31, 2023, the City reported its proportionate share of the Police and Fire Plan’s deferred outflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources from the following sources:

The $91,023 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ended December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

2024
2025
2026
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

F. Actuarial Assumptions

The following changes in actuarial assumptions and plan provisions occurred in 2023: 

General Employees Fund

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

- The investment return assumption and single discount rate were changed from 6.5 percent to 7.0 percent.

Changes in Plan Provisions

- The benefit increase delay for early retirements on or after January 1, 2024, was eliminated.

- The vesting period of those hired after June 30, 2010, was changed from five years of allowable service to 
three years of allowable service.

- A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 2.5 percent minus the actual 2024 adjustment will be 
payable in a lump sum for calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024.

- An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $170.1 million will be contributed to the Plan on 
October 1, 2023.

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2023, actuarial valuation was determined using an individual entry-age 
normal actuarial cost method. The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments used in the determination 
of the total liability is 7.0 percent. This assumption is based on a review of inflation and investments return 
assumptions from a number of national investment consulting firms. The review provided a range of return 
investment return rates deemed to be reasonable by the actuary. An investment return of 7.0 percent was deemed 
to be within that range of reasonableness for financial reporting purposes.

Inflation is assumed to be 2.25 percent for the General Employees Plan and 2.25 percent for the Police and Fire 
Plan. Benefit increases after retirement are assumed to be 1.25 percent for the General Employees Plan and 1.00 
percent for the the Police and Fire Plan.

Salary growth assumptions in the General Employees Plan range in annual increments from 10.25 percent after 
one year of service to 3.0 percent after 27 years of service. In the Police and Fire Plan, salary growth assumptions 
range from 11.75 percent after one year of service to 3.0 percent after 24 years of service. 

Mortality rates for the General Employees Plan are based on the Pub-2010 General Employee Mortality Table. 
Mortality rates for the Police and Fire Plan is based on the Pub-2010 Public Safety Employee Mortality tables. The 
tables are adjusted slightly to fit PERA’s experience.

Actuarial assumptions for the General Employees Plan are reviewed every four years. The most recent four-year 
experience study for the General Employees Plan was completed in 2022. The assumption changes were adopted 
by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2023 actuarial valuation.  The most recent four-year experience 
study for the Police and Fire Plan was adopted by the Board and became effective with the July 1, 2021 actuarial 
valuation.
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Note 4: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Statewide (Continued)

Police and Fire Fund

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions

- The investment return assumption was changed from 6.5 percent to 7.0 percent.
- The single discount rate changed from 5.4 percent to 7.0 percent.

Changes in Plan Provisions

- The total and permanent duty disability benefit was increased, effective July 1, 2023.

G. Discount Rate

H. Pension Liability Sensitivity

1 Percent 1 Percent
Decrease (6.00%) Current (7.00%) Increase (8.00%)

General Employees Fund 4,906,679$         2,773,577$       1,019,018$       
Police and Fire Fund 2,662,248           1,341,778         256,174            

I. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability in 2023 was 7.0 percent. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members and employers will be made 
at rates set in Minnesota statutes. Based on these assumptions, the fiduciary net position of the General 
Employees and Police and Fire Funds were projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was 
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for all plans it participates in, 
calculated using the discount rate disclosed in the preceding paragraph, as well as what the City’s proportionate 
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate one percentage point lower or 
one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

Detailed information about each pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in a separately-issued PERA 
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be 
obtained on the Internet at www.mnpera.org.

- An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $19.4 million will be contributed to the Plan on 
October 1, 2023.
- The vesting requirement for new hires after June 30, 2014 was changed from a graded 20-year vesting 
schedule to a graded 10-year vesting schedule, with 50 percent vesting after five years increasing 
incrementally to 100 percent after 10 years.
- A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 3.0 percent will be payable in a lump sum for calendar year 
2024 by March 31, 2024.
- Psychological treatment is required effective July 1, 2023 prior to approval for a duty disability benefit for a 
psychological condition relating to the member’s occupation. 
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Five council members of the City are covered by the Defined Contribution Plan, a multiple-employer deferred 
compensation plan administered by PERA. The Defined Contribution Plan is a tax qualified plan under Section 401(a) of 
the Internal Revenue Code and all contributions by or on behalf of employees are tax deferred until time of withdrawal. 

Plan benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan plus investment earnings, less administrative expenses. 
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D.03, specifies plan provisions, including the employee and employer contribution rates 
for those qualified personnel who elect to participate. An eligible elected official who decides to participate contributes 
five percent of salary which is matched by the elected official's employer. Employer contributions for volunteer personnel 
may be a unit value for each call or period of alert duty. Employees who are paid for their services may elect to make 
member contributions in an amount not to exceed the employer share. Employer and employee contributions are 
combined and used to purchase shares in one or more of the seven accounts of the Minnesota Supplemental Investment 
Fund. For administering the plan, PERA receives 2.0 percent of employer contributions and twenty-five hundredths of 1.0 
percent (0.25 percent) of the assets in each member's account annually. 

Total contributions made by the City during the fiscal year 2023 were: 

Employee Employer Employee Employer Required Rate

1,035$   1,035$   5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Percentage of 
Contribution Amount Covered Payroll

Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Fire Relief Association 

A. Plan Description

All members of the New Prague Fire Department (the Department) are covered by a defined benefit plan administered by 
the New Prague Fire Department Relief Association (the Association). As of December 31, 2022, the plan covered 30 
active firefighters and 5 vested terminated fire fighters whose pension benefits are deferred.  The plan is a single 
employer retirement plan and is established and administered in accordance with Minnesota statute, chapter 69. 

The Association maintains a separate Special fund to accumulate assets to fund the retirement benefits earned by the 
Department’s membership. Funding for the Association is derived from an insurance premium tax in accordance with the 
Volunteer Firefighter’s Relief Association Financing Guidelines Act of 1971 (chapter 261 as amended by chapter 
509 of Minnesota statutes 1980). Funds are also derived from investment income. 

B. Benefits Provided

A fire fighter who completes at least 20 years as an active member of the Department is entitled, after age 50, to a full-
service pension upon retirement. 
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Fire Relief Association (Continued)  
 
The bylaws of the Association also provide for an early vested service pension for a retiring member who has completed 
fewer than 20 years of service. The reduced pension, available to members with 10 years of service, shall be equal to 60 
percent of the pension as prescribed by the bylaws. This percentage increases 4 percent per year so that at 20 years of 
service, the full amount prescribed is paid. Members who retire with less than 20 years of service and have reached the 
age of 50 years and have completed at least 10 years of active membership are entitled to a reduced service pension not 
to exceed the amount calculated by multiplying the member's service pension for the completed years of service times 
the applicable non-forfeitable percentage of pension. 
 
C. Contributions 
 
Minnesota statutes, chapters 424 and 424A authorize pension benefits for volunteer fire relief associations.  The plan is 
funded by fire state aid, investment earnings and, if necessary, employer contributions as specified in Minnesota statutes 
and voluntary City contributions (if applicable). The State of Minnesota contributed $116,174 in fire state aid to the plan 
on behalf of the City Fire Department for the year ended December 31, 2022, which was recorded as a revenue.  Required 
employer contributions are calculated annually based on statutory provisions.  The City’s statutorily-required contributions 
to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2023 were $116,174. The City’s contributions were equal to the required 
contributions as set by state statute.  The City made no voluntary contributions to the plan.  Furthermore, the firefighter 
has no obligation to contribute to the plan. 
 
D. Pension Costs 
 
At December 31, 2023, the City reported a net pension liability (asset) of ($159,622) for the plan.  The net pension liability 
(asset) was measured as of January 1, 2022.  The total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) 
in accordance with GASB 68 was determined by USI Consulting Group. applying an actuarial formula to specific census 
data certified by the Department as of January 1, 2022.  The following table presents the changes in net pension liability 
(asset) during the year: 
 

Total Plan Net
Pension Fiduciary Pension
Liability Net Position Liability (Asset)

(a) (b) (a-b)

Beginning Balance January 1, 2022 966,031$            1,276,303$         (310,272)$          

Changes for the Year
Service cost 59,794                -                           59,794                
Interest cost 56,420                -                           56,420                
Assumption changes (20,948)               -                           (20,948)               
Nonemployer contributions -                           103,406              (103,406)            
Projected investment return -                           73,040                (73,040)               
Gain or loss (25,362)               (257,167)            231,805              
Administrative costs -                           (25)                      25                        

Total Net Changes 69,904                (80,746)               150,650              

Ending Balance December 31, 2022 1,035,935$         1,195,557$         (159,622)$          

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized pension expense of $196,774.   
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Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Fire Relief Association (Continued)  
 
At December 31, 2023, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, and its 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date related to pension from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience 1,119$                53,136$              
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 12,734                41,347                
Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Earnings on Plan Investments 132,558              -                           
State Aid to City Subsequent to the Measurement Date 116,174              -                           

   Total 262,585$            94,483$              

 
Deferred outflows of resources totaling $116,174 related to pensions resulting from the City’s contributions to the plan 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
December 31, 2024.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to the plan will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

3,042$                
23,047                
31,239                
40,421                

(11,010)               
Thereafter (34,811)               

2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

 

E. Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability at December 31, 2023 was determined using the entry age normal actuarial cost method and the 
following actuarial assumptions:   

 
Retirement eligibility at 100 percent service pension at age 50 and 20 years of service, early vested retirement at age 50 
with 10 years of service vested at 60 percent and increased by 4 percent for each additional year of service up to 20 and 
eligibility for deferred service pension payable at age 50 and 20 years of service.  
 

Salary Increases 2.50% per year
Investment Rate of Return 6.00%
20-Year Municipal Bond Yield N/A

 
There were no changes in actuarial assumptions in 2023. 
 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in 
which best estimates for expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) were developed for each 
asset class using the plan’s target investment allocation along with long-term return expectations by asset class.  
Inflation expectations were applied to derive the nominal rate of return for the portfolio.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 5: Defined Benefit Pension Plans - Fire Relief Association (Continued)  
 
The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in 
the following table: 
 

Asset Class

Cash 14.00              % 2.00                %
Fixed Income 32.00              3.90                
Equities 54.00              8.10                

   Total 100.00            %

Long-term
Target Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return

 
F. Discount Rate 
 
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.00 percent.  The projection of cash flows used to 
determine the discount rate assumed that contributions to the plan will be made as specified in statute.  Based on that 
assumption and considering the funding ratio of the plan, the fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make 
all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total 
pension liability.   
 
G. Pension Liability Sensitivity 
 
The following presents the City’s net pension liability (asset) for the plan, calculated using the discount rate disclosed in 
the preceding paragraph, as well as what the City’s net pension liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate one percent lower or one percent higher than the current discount rate: 
 

1 Percent 1 Percent
Decrease (5.00%) Current (6.00%) Increase (7.00%)

Defined Benefit Plan (117,284)$                (159,622)$               (200,171)$               

City Proportionate Share of NPL

 

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
The Association issues a publicly available financial report. The report may be obtained by writing to the New Prague Fire 
Department Relief Association, New Prague, MN 56044. 
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Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions 
 
A. Plan Description  
 
The City operates a single-employer retiree benefit plan ("the Plan") that provides health, life and dental insurance to 
eligible employees and their families through the City's health insurance plan. The full cost of the benefits is covered by 
the retirees. Benefit and eligibility provisions are established through negotiations between the City and various unions 
representing City employees and are renegotiated each two-year bargaining period. The Plan does not issue a publicly 
available report.  
 
At December 31, 2023, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms: 
 

Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefit Payments 2                      
Active Plan Members 53                    

Total Plan Members 55                    

 
B. Funding Policy  
 
Contribution requirements are also negotiated between the City and union representatives. The City does not make any 
contributions to eligible retired plan members and their spouses. For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City’s 
average contribution rate was 7.75 percent of covered-employee payroll. For 2023, the City contributed $12,991 to the 
Plan. 
 
C. Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
 
The City’s total OPEB liability of $193,888 was measured as of January 1, 2023, and the total OPEB liability was 
determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2023.  
 
The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2023 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:  
 
Discount Rate 4.00%
20-Year Municipal Bond Yield 4.00%
Inflation Rate 2.50%
Salary Increases Service graded table
Medical Trend Rate 6.50% as of January 1, 2023 grading to 5.00% over 6 years 

and then to 4.00% over the next 48 years

 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 4.00 percent. Assets were projected using expected 
benefit payments and expected asset returns. Expected benefit payments by year were discounted using the expected 
asset return assumption for years in which the assets were sufficient to pay all benefit payments. Any remaining benefit 
payments after the trust fund is exhausted are discounted at the 20-year municipal bond rate. The equivalent single rate is 
the discount rate. 
 
Mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted Mortality Tables (General, 
Safety) with MP-2021 Generational Improvement Scale. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2023 valuation were based on input from a variety of published 
sources of historical and projected future financial data. Each assumption was reviewed for reasonableness with the 
source information as well as for consistency with the other economic assumptions. 
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Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 
 
D. Changes in the Total OPEB Liability 
 

Total OPEB
Liability

(a)

Balances at December 31, 2022 218,589$        
Changes for the Year:

Service cost 16,907            
Interest cost 4,581               
Assumption changes (23,414)           
Differences between expected and actual experience (9,784)             
Benefit payments (12,991)           

Net Changes (24,701)           

Balances at December 31, 2023 193,888$        

 
E. Sensitivity of the Total OPEB Liability 
 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (3.00 percent) or one percentage-point higher 5.00 
percent) than the current discount rate:  
 

1 Percent 1 Percent
Decrease (3.00%) Current (4.00%) Increase (5.00%)

207,361$                     193,888$                     181,198$                     

 
The following presents the total OPEB liability of the City, as well as what the City’s total OPEB liability would be if it were 
calculated using a Healthcare Cost Trend Rates that is one percentage point lower (5.50 percent decreasing to 4.00 
percent then 3.00 percent) or one percentage-point higher (7.50 percent decreasing to 6.00 percent then 5.00 percent) 
than the current cost trend rate:  
 

Healthcare Cost
1 Percent Decrease Trend Rates 1 Percent Increase
(5.50% Decreasing (6.50% Decreasing (7.50% Decreasing

to 4.00% then 3.00%) to 5.00% then 4.00%) to 6.00% then 5.00%)

175,729$                     193,888$                     214,934$                     
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Note 6: Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (Continued) 
 
F. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

 
For the year ended December 31, 2023, the City recognized OPEB expense of $11,931. At December 31, 2023, the City 
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 
 

Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources of Resources

Differences between Expected and

Actual Experience 22,304$               53,102$               

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 4,253                    20,069                  

Contributions to OPEB Subsequent

to the Measurement Date 12,098                  -                            

  Total 38,655$               73,171$               

 
Deferred outflows of resources totaling $12,098 related to OPEB resulting from the City’s contributions to OPEB 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in the year ended  
December 31, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 
 

Year ended December 31
2024 (3,663)$                

2025 (3,668)                   
2026 (14,899)                

2027 (14,898)                

2028 (4,743)                   

Thereafter (4,743)                   

 
Note 7: Other Information  
 
A. Risk Management 
 
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and 
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance.  The City obtains insurance 
through participation in the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT) which is a risk sharing pool with 
approximately 800 other governmental units.  The City pays an annual premium to LMCIT for its workers compensation 
and property and casualty insurance.  The LMCIT is self-sustaining through member premiums and will reinsure for 
claims above a prescribed dollar amount for each insurance event.  Settled claims have not exceeded the City’s coverage 
in any of the past three fiscal years. 

 
Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred, and the amount of the loss can be reasonably 
estimated.  Liabilities, if any, include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs).  The City’s 
management is not aware of any incurred but not reported claims. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

84 137

Section 6, Item a.



 

 

City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2023 
 

Note 7: Other Information (Continued) 
 
B. Contingent Liabilities 
 
Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally 
the Federal government.  Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the 
applicable funds.  The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at 
this time although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 
 
C. Commitments and Contingencies 
 

The PUC, together with 17 other member utilities, purchases power from Southern Minnesota Municipal Power Agency 
(SMMPA) under a Power Sales Contract which extends to April 1, 2050.  In addition, on November 1, 1997, the PUC 
entered into a Capacity Purchase Agreement with SMMPA, whereby SMMPA is entitled to the exclusive use of the net 
electric generating capability of the Diesel Generating Facilities and the electric energy associated therewith.  The 
agreement is cancelable by either party upon a five-year written notice.  The first date of notice can be given by the 
SMMPA at any time.  The first date of notice can be given by the PUC at any time after November 1, 2000.  Under the 
terms of the agreement, SMMPA is responsible for all costs associated with operations, maintenance, repairs, and other 
liabilities of operating the diesel generating facilities.   
 

The PUC has entered into an Amended and Restated Capacity Purchase Agreement dated December 1, 2000, with 
SMMPA under which the City operated the Plant for the benefit of and upon the direction of SMMPA.  Such contract was 
an amendment and an extension of an earlier 1996 contract.  Under the terms of these contracts, certain capital 
improvements to the Plant (the “SMMPA additions”) have been and will be made and owned by SMMPA.  Since 1995, 
SMMPA additions totaling $3,135,581 have been made by SMMPA, the depreciated value of which is $707,277.  If the 
contract is terminated by the PUC, the PUC is obligated to purchase the SMMPA additions from SMMPA at their then 
depreciated cost and to pay SMMPA for the then depreciated value of Unit #6 of the Plant, as scheduled in the contract.  
Otherwise, SMMPA has the right, but not the obligation, to remove the SMMPA additions at the termination of the 
contract. 
 
D. Legal Debt Margin 
 

In accordance with Minnesota statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of three percent of the 
market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes and therefore, excludes 
debt financed partially or entirely by special assessments, enterprise fund revenues or tax increments. As of  
December 31, 2023, the City is under the legal debt margin. 
 
E. Agreement with the New Prague Public Utilities Commission (PUC) 
 

During 1990, an agreement between the PUC and the City Council states that the PUC shall transfer $40,000 to the City, 
which represents payment in lieu of taxes.  In addition, the PUC incurred the following costs for various departments of 
the City: 
 

2023 2022

Maintaining Street Lights and Signals 29,354$          25,038$          
Capital - Street Lighting 10,291            62,124            
Other Services 6,387               12,027            

Total Costs 46,032$          99,189$          
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Note 7: Other Information (Continued) 

F. Joint Venture - SCALE

The City and all Scott County cities have joined with Scott County to create a public safety training facility.  The facility is 
to be located at the former alternative county jail site north of Jordan.  The City’s annual obligation toward the facility is 
$8,497. 

G. Tax Increment Districts

The City’s tax increment districts are subject to review by the State of Minnesota Office of the State Auditor (OSA).  Any 
disallowed claims or misuse of tax increments could become a liability of the applicable fund.  Management has 
indicated that they are not aware of any instances of noncompliance which would have a material effect on the financial 
statements. 

H. Concentrations

The City receives a significant amount of its annual General fund revenues from the State of Minnesota from the Local 
Government Aid (LGA) and Market Value Homestead Credit (MVHC) programs. The amount received in 2023 was 
$985,808 and $181 for LGA and MVHC, respectively. This accounted for 14.1 percent of General fund revenues.  

I. Joint Powers Agreement

The City and the Independent School District No. 721 (the District) amended and restated their joint powers agreement on 
September 17, 2018 regarding the construction and operation of the indoor pool and Fitness Center facility located at the 
Central Education Campus; along with the operations of the outdoor pool facility on Lexington and the operations of the 
summer recreation program. Per the agreement, the City will be invoiced for half of any operating losses for the prior 
fiscal year.  In 2023 the City paid their portion of the loss totaling $127,095. 

J. Service Territory Agreement

The PUC entered into Service Territory Agreement with Minnesota Valley Electric Cooperative (MVEC) to provide electric 
service to all customers with the City limits, of which, some were previously served by MVEC.  The PUC purchased the 
facilities in 2018 and will annually pay MVEC a loss of revenue payment of $0.02716 times each kilowatt hour of electric 
energy sold by the PUC. The payment made in 2023 to MVEC was $382,707. 

Note 8: Prior Period Adjustment 

A prior period adjustment was required to properly state beginning balances of the discretely presented component unit 
that was previously reported as an enterprise fund and is more accurately presented as governmental.   

The following schedule reconciles the previously reported December 31, 2022 balances to the January 1, 2023 financial 
statement balances. 

Net Position
December 31, 2022 Net Position

as Previously Pior Period January 1, 2023
Reported Adjustment As Restated

Governmental Activities
Discretely Presented Component Unit Funds

Economic Development Authority 403,676$       14,199$         417,875$       
Economic Development Authority Industrial Park 1,332,786 (77,910) 1,254,876 

Total Discretely Presented Comonent Unit Funds 1,736,462$         (63,711)$        1,672,751$         
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

Schedule of Employer’s Share of PERA Net Pension Liability - General Employees Fund 
 

State's
Proportionate

City's Share of
Proportionate the Net Pension

Share of Liability City's
Fiscal the Net Pension Associated with Covered-Employee
Year Liability the City Total Payroll

Ending (a) (b) (a+b) (c)

06/30/23 0.0496             % 2,773,577$        76,358$                2,849,935$     3,925,371$             70.7                     % 83.1                    %
06/30/22 0.0462             3,659,054          107,149                3,766,203       3,454,201               105.9                  % 76.7                    
06/30/21 0.0448             1,913,161          58,591                  1,971,752       3,355,684               57.0                     87.0                    
06/30/20 0.0430             2,578,047          79,451                  2,657,498       2,940,549               87.7                     79.0                    
06/30/19 0.0413             2,283,384          70,997                  2,354,381       2,920,424               78.2                     80.2                    
06/30/18 0.0422             2,341,083          76,820                  2,417,903       2,838,209               82.5                     79.5                    
06/30/17 0.0415             2,649,332          43,754                  2,693,086       2,678,131               98.9                     75.9                    
06/30/16 0.0413             3,353,357          -                             3,353,357       2,556,248               131.2                  68.9                    
06/30/15 0.0418             2,166,293          -                             2,166,293       2,453,947               88.3                     78.2                    

the Net Pension Payroll of the Total
Liability (a/c) Pension Liability

City's Percentage of Net Position
Proportion of Covered-Employee as a Percentage

Plan Fiduciary

City's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension
Liability as a

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
 

Schedule of Employer’s PERA Contributions - General Employees Fund 
 

Contributions in
Relation to the

Statutorily Statutorily Contribution City's
Required Required Deficiency Covered

Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll
Ending (a) (b) (a-b) (c)

12/31/23 296,153$     296,153$            -$                       3,948,712$         7.5                   %
12/31/22 271,681        271,681              -                         3,622,406           7.5                   
12/31/21 258,977        258,977              -                         3,453,031           7.5                   
12/31/20 236,832        236,832              -                         3,157,764           7.5                   
12/31/19 227,229        227,229              -                         3,029,706           7.5                   
12/31/18 214,780        214,780              -                         2,863,722           7.5                   
12/31/17 205,361        205,361              -                         2,738,159           7.5                   
12/31/16 197,159        197,159              -                         2,628,794           7.5                   
12/31/15 186,002        186,002              -                         2,480,031           7.5                   

(b/c)

Contributions as
a Percentage of

Payroll
Covered

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
 

  

88 141

Section 6, Item a.



 

 

City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - General Employees Fund 
 

Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
 
2023 - The investment return assumption and single discount rate were changed from 6.5 percent to 7.00 percent. 
 
2022 - The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021. 
 
2021 - The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent, for financial 
reporting purposes. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2019 to Scale MP-2020.  
 
2020 - The price inflation assumption was decreased from 2.50% to 2.25%. The payroll growth assumption was 
decreased from 3.25% to 3.00%. Assumed salary increase rates were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 
experience study.  The net effect is assumed rates that average 0.25% less than previous rates. Assumed rates of 
retirement were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The changes result in more unreduced 
(normal) retirements and slightly fewer Rule of 90 and early retirements. Assumed rates of termination were changed as 
recommended in the June 30, 2019 experience study. The new rates are based on service and are generally lower than the 
previous rates for years 2-5 and slightly higher thereafter. Assumed rates of disability were changed as recommended in 
the June 30, 2019 experience study. The change results in fewer predicted disability retirements for males and females. 
The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and employees was changed from the RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 
General Mortality table, with adjustments. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the RP-
2014 disabled annuitant mortality table to the PUB-2010 General/Teacher disabled annuitant mortality table, with 
adjustments. The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2018 to Scale MP-2019. The assumed 
spouse age difference was changed from two years older for females to one year older. The assumed number of married 
male new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed from 35% to 45%. The assumed number of married 
female new retirees electing the 100% Joint & Survivor option changed from 15% to 30%. The corresponding number of 
married new retirees electing the Life annuity option was adjusted accordingly. 
 
2019 - The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.  
 
2018 - The morality projection scale was changed from MP-2015 to MP-2017. The assumed benefit increase was 
changed from 1.00 percent per year through 2044 and 2.50 percent per year thereafter to 1.25 percent per year. 
 
2017 - The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) loads were changed from 0.8 percent for active members and 60 percent for 
vested and non-vested deferred members. The revised CSA loads are now 0.0 percent for active member liability, 15.0 
percent for vested deferred member liability and 3.0 percent for non-vested deferred member liability.  The assumed post-
retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year for all years to 1.0 percent per year through 2044 
and 2.5 percent per year thereafter. 
 
2016 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5 
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years. The assumed investment return was changed from 
7.9 percent to 7.5 percent.  The single discount rate was changed from 7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. Other assumptions 
were changed pursuant to the experience study dated June 30, 2015.  The assumed future salary increases, payroll 
growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth and 2.50 percent for inflation. 
 
2015 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2030 and 2.5 
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year through 2035 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter. 
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Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - General Employees Fund (Continued) 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
 
2023 - An additional one-time direct state aid contribution of $170.1 million will be contributed to the Plan on           
October 1, 2023. The vesting period of those hired after June 30, 2010, was changed from five years of allowable service 
to three years of allowable service. The benefit increase delay for early retirements on or after January 1, 2024, was 
eliminated. A one-time, non-compounding benefit increase of 2.5 percent minus the actual 2024 adjustment will be 
payable in a lump sum for calendar year 2024 by March 31, 2024. 
 
2022 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation.  
 
2021 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2020 - Augmentation for current privatized members was reduced to 2.0% for the period July 1, 2020 through  
December 31, 2023 and 0.0% after. Augmentation was eliminated for privatizations occurring after June 30, 2020. 
 
2019 - The employer supplemental contribution was changed prospectively, decreasing from $31.0 million to $21.0 
million per year.  The state’s special funding contribution was changed prospectively, requiring $16.0 million due per year 
through 2031. 
 
2018 - The augmentation adjustment in early retirement factors is eliminated over a five-year period starting July 1, 2019, 
resulting in actuarial equivalence after June 30, 2024. Interest credited on member contributions decreased from 4.00 
percent to 3.00 percent, beginning July 1, 2018. Deferred augmentation was changed to 0.00 percent, effective  
January 1, 2019. Augmentation that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply. Contribution stabilizer 
provisions were repealed. Postretirement benefit increases were changed from 1.00 percent per year with a provision to 
increase to 2.50 percent upon attainment of 90.00 percent funding ratio to 50.00 percent of the Social Security Cost of 
Living Adjustment, not less than 1.00 percent and not more than 1.50 percent, beginning January 1, 2019. For retirements 
on or after January 1, 2024, the first benefit increase is delayed until the retiree reaches normal retirement age; does not 
apply to Rule of 90 retirees, disability benefit recipients, or survivors. Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect 
revised mortality and interest assumptions. 
 
2017 - The State’s contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund equals $16,000,000 in 2017 and 2018, 
and $6,000,000 thereafter. The Employer Supplemental Contribution for the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund 
changed from $21,000,000 to $31,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031.  The state’s contribution changed from 
$16,000,000 to $6,000,000 in calendar years 2019 to 2031. 
 
2016 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2015 - On January 1, 2015, the Minneapolis Employees Retirement Fund was merged into the General Employees Fund, 
which increased the total pension liability by $1.1 billion and increased the fiduciary plan net position by $892 million. 
Upon consolidation, state and employer contributions were revised.  
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Schedule of Employer’s Share of PERA Net Pension Liability - Police and Fire Fund 
 

State's
Proportionate

City's Share of
Proportionate the Net Pension

Share of Liability City's
Fiscal the Net Pension Associated with Covered
Year Liability the City Total Payroll

Ending (a) (b) (a+b) (c)

06/30/23 0.0777              % 1,341,778$          54,095$                1,395,873$   1,020,876$   131.4            % 86.5              %
06/30/22 0.0754              3,281,110             143,348                3,424,458     916,031        358.2            70.5              
06/30/21 0.0721              556,536                25,007                  581,543        885,240        62.9              93.7              
06/30/20 0.0741              976,717                23,026                  999,743        840,095        116.3            87.2              
06/30/19 0.0713              759,061                -                             759,061        752,686        100.8            89.3              
06/30/18 0.0690              735,469                -                             735,469        727,088        101.2            88.8              
06/30/17 0.0720              972,086                -                             972,086        741,712        131.1            85.4              
06/30/16 0.0680              2,728,958             -                             2,728,958     658,689        414.3            63.9              
06/30/15 0.0740              840,813                -                             840,813        681,114        123.4            86.6              

the Net Pension Payroll of the Total
Liability (a/c) Pension Liability

City's Percentage of Net Position
Proportion of Covered as a Percentage

Liability as a Plan Fiduciary

City's
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
 
Schedule of Employer’s PERA Contributions - Police and Fire Fund 
 

Contributions in
Relation to the

Statutorily Statutorily Contribution City's
Required Required Deficiency Covered

Year Contribution Contribution (Excess) Payroll
Ending (a) (b) (a-b) (c)

12/31/23 177,395$       177,395$            -$                      1,002,233$           17.70               %
12/31/22 170,146         170,146              -                        961,276                17.70               
12/31/21 159,948         159,948              -                        903,663                17.70               
12/31/20 150,077         150,077              -                        885,409                16.95               
12/31/19 134,539         134,539              -                        793,738                16.95               
12/31/18 118,485         118,485              -                        731,387                16.20               
12/31/17 120,459         120,459              -                        743,572                16.20               
12/31/16 113,183         113,183              -                        698,658                16.20               
12/31/15 108,510         108,510              -                        669,815                16.20               

(b/c)

Contributions as
a Percentage of

Covered
Payroll

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Police and Fire Fund 
 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
 
2023 - The investment return assumption was changed from 6.5 percent to 7.00 percent. The single discount rate 
changed from 5.4 percent to 7.0 percent. 
 
2022 - The mortality improvement scale was changed from Scale MP-2020 to Scale MP-2021. The single discount rate 
changed from 6.50 percent to 5.40 percent. 
 
2021 - The investment return and single discount rates were changed from 7.50 percent to 6.50 percent, for financial 
reporting purposes. The inflation assumption was changed from 2.50 percent to 2.25 percent. The payroll growth 
assumption was changed from 3.25 percent to 3.00 percent. The base mortality table for healthy annuitants and 
employees was changed from the RP-2014 table to the Pub-2010 Public Safety Mortality table. The mortality improvement 
scale was changed from MP-2019 to MN-2020. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was changed from the 
RP-2014 healthy annuitant mortality table (with future mortality improvement according to Scale MP-2019) to the Pub-
2010 Public Safety disabled annuitant mortality table (with future mortality improvement according to Scale MP-2020). 
Assumed rates of salary increase were modified as recommended in the July 14, 2020 experience study. The overall 
impact is a decrease in gross salary increase rates. Assumed rates of retirement were changed as recommended in the 
July 14, 2020 experience study. The changes result in slightly more unreduced retirements and fewer assumed early 
retirements. Assumed rates of withdrawal were changed from select and ultimate rates to service-based rates. The 
changes result in more assumed terminations. Assumed rates of disability were increased for ages 25-44 and decreased 
for ages over 49. Overall, proposed rates result in more projected disabilities. Assumed percent married for active female 
members was changed from 60 percent to 70 percent. Minor changes to form of payment assumptions were applied.  
 
2020 - The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2018 to MP-2019.  
 
2019 - The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2017 to MP-2018.  
 
2018 - The mortality projection scale was changed from MP-2016 to MP-2017. 
 
2017 - Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study. The net effect is 
proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates. Assumed rates of retirement were changed, 
resulting in fewer retirements.  The Combined Service Annuity (CSA) load was 30 percent for vested and non-vested 
deferred members.  The CSA has been changed to 33 percent for vested members and 2 percent for non-vested 
members.  The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational table to the 
RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality 
improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was 
changed from the RP-2000 disabled mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees.  Assumed 
termination rates were decreased to 3.0 percent for the first three years of service. Rates beyond the select period of 
three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations overall.  Assumed percentage of married female 
members was decreased from 65 percent to 60 percent.  Assumed age difference was changed from separate 
assumptions for male members (wives assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to 
be four years older) to the assumption that males are two years older than females.  The assumed percentage of female 
members electing joint and survivor annuities was increased.  The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was 
changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00 percent per year through 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter.  The single 
discount rate was changed from 5.6 percent to 7.5 percent.   
 
2016 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2037 and 2.5 
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year for all future years.  The assumed investment return was changed from 
7.9 percent to 7.5 percent. The single discount rate was changed from 7.9 percent to 5.6 percent.  The assumed future 
salary increases, payroll growth and inflation were decreased by 0.25 percent to 3.25 percent for payroll growth and 2.50 
percent for inflation. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Police and Fire Fund (Continued) 
 
2015 - The assumed post-retirement benefit increase rate was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 2030 and 2.5 
percent per year thereafter to 1.0 percent per year through 2037 and 2.5 percent per year thereafter. 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
 
2023 - Additional one-time direct state aid contribution of 19.4 million will be contributed to the Plan on October 1, 2023. 
Vesting requirement for new hires after June 30, 2014, was changed from a graded 20-year vesting schedule to a graded 
10-year vesting schedule, with 50 percent vesting after five years, increasing incrementally to 100% after 10 years. A one-
time, non-compounding benefit increase of 3.0 percent will be payable in a lump sum for calendar year 2024 by          
March 31, 2024. Psychological treatment is required effective July 1, 2023, prior to approval for a duty disability benefit 
for a psychological condition relating to the member’s occupation. The total and permanent duty disability benefit was 
increased, effective July 1, 2023. 
 
2022 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2021 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2020 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2019 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2018 - As set by statute, the assumed post-retirement benefit increase was changed from 1.0 percent per year through 
2064 and 2.5 percent per year, thereafter, to 1.0 percent for all years, with no trigger.  An end date of July 1, 2048 was 
added to the existing $9.0 million state contribution.  New annual state aid will equal $4.5 million in fiscal years 2019 and 
2020, and $9.0 million thereafter until the plan reaches 100 percent funding, or July 1, 2048, if earlier.  Member 
contributions were changed from 10.80 percent to 11.30 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2019 and 11.80 percent of 
pay, effective January 1, 2020.  Employer contributions were changed from 16.20 percent to 16.95 percent of pay, 
effective January 1, 2019 and 17.70 percent of pay, effective January 1, 2020.  Interest credited on member contributions 
decreased from 4.00 percent to 3.00 percent, beginning July 1, 2018.  Deferred augmentation was changed to 0.00 
percent, effective January 1, 2019.  Augmentation that has already accrued for deferred members will still apply.  
Actuarial equivalent factors were updated to reflect revised mortality and interest assumptions. 
 
2017 - Assumed salary increases were changed as recommended in the June 30, 2016 experience study. The net effect is 
proposed rates that average 0.34 percent lower than the previous rates. Assumed rates of retirement were changed, 
resulting in fewer retirements. The combined service annuity (CSA) load was 30.00 percent for vested and non-vested, 
deferred members. The CSA has been changed to 33.00 percent for vested members and 2.00 percent for non-vested 
members. The base mortality table for healthy annuitants was changed from the RP-2000 fully generational table to the 
RP-2014 fully generational table (with a base year of 2006), with male rates adjusted by a factor of 0.96. The mortality 
improvement scale was changed from Scale AA to Scale MP-2016. The base mortality table for disabled annuitants was 
changed from the RP-2000 disabled mortality table to the mortality tables assumed for healthy retirees. Assumed 
termination rates were decreased to 3.00 percent for the first three years of service. Rates beyond the select period of 
three years were adjusted, resulting in more expected terminations overall. Assumed percentage of married female 
members was decreased from 65.00 percent to 60.00 percent. Assumed age difference was changed from separate 
assumptions for male members (wives assumed to be three years younger) and female members (husbands assumed to 
be four years older) to the assumption that males are two years older than females. The assumed percentage of female 
members electing joint and survivor annuities was increased. The assumed postretirement benefit increase rate was 
changed from 1.00 percent for all years to 1.00 percent per year through 2064 and 2.50 percent thereafter. The single 
discount rate was changed from 5.60 percent per annum to 7.50 percent per annum. 
 
2016 - There were no changes in plan provisions since the previous valuation. 
 
2015 - The post-retirement benefit increase to be paid after attainment of the 90 percent funding threshold was changed, 
from inflation up to 2.5 percent, to a fixed rate of 2.5 percent.  
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

Schedule of Changes in the Fire Relief Association’s Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
(Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief (Fire Relief 

Report Report Report Report Report Report Report Report Report
Date 2021) Date 2021) Date 2020) Date 2019) Date 2018) Date 2017) Date 2016) Date 2015) Date 2014)

Total Pension Liability
Service cost 59,794$        52,713$        57,911$        56,499$        58,185$        56,766$        49,482$        50,930$        49,688$        
Interest cost 56,420          46,357          44,169          46,208          41,189          43,689          49,553          43,697          43,111          
Assumption changes (20,948)         -                     (17,732)         -                     (17,603)         -                     42,449          -                     -                     
Plan changes -                     88,063          -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Changes of benefit terms -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     90,272          -                     -                     
Gain or loss (25,362)         -                     (36,864)         -                     2,054            -                     (11,693)         -                     -                     
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions -                     (22,472)         (143,174)       (146,600)       -                     (314,875)       -                     (75,250)         -                     

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 69,904          164,661        (95,690)         (43,893)         83,825          (214,420)       220,063        19,377          92,799          
Total Pension Liability - January 1 966,031        801,370        897,060        940,953        857,128        1,071,548     851,485        832,108        739,309        

Total Pension Liability - December 31 (A) 1,035,935$   966,031$      801,370$      897,060$      940,953$      857,128$      1,071,548$   851,485$      832,108$      

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Nonemployer contributions 103,406$      96,262$        94,261$        87,728$        82,430$        84,276$        80,395$        79,903$        104,264$      
Projected investment return 73,040          61,416          50,641          46,039          43,673          43,128          54,623          52,893          -                     
Gain or Loss (257,167)       61,346          40,914          100,036        (105,168)       43,225          -                     -                     -                     
Net investment income -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     (14,114)         (63,941)         35,160          
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions -                     (22,472)         (143,174)       (146,600)       -                     (314,875)       -                     (75,250)         -                     
Administrative expense (25)                (25)                (267)              (30)                -                     (306)              -                     (44)                (5,493)           

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position (80,746)         196,527        42,375          87,173          20,935          (144,552)       120,904        (6,439)           133,931        
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - January 1 1,276,303     1,079,776     1,037,401     950,228        929,293        1,073,845     952,941        959,380        825,449        

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - December 31 (B) 1,195,557$   1,276,303$   1,079,776$   1,037,401$   950,228$      929,293$      1,073,845$   952,941$      959,380$      

Fire Relief's Net Pension Liability (Asset) - December 31 (A-B) (159,622)$    (310,272)$    (278,406)$    (140,341)$    (9,275)$         (72,165)$       (2,297)$         (101,456)$    (127,272)$    

Plan Fiduciary Net Position As a Percentage 
of the total pension liability (b/a) 115.41% 132.12% 134.74% 115.64% 100.99% 108.42% 100.21% 111.92% 115.30%

Covered-Employee Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

Fire Relief's Net Pension Liability (Asset) As a Percentage
of covered-employee payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – Fire Relief Association 
 
Changes in Actuarial Assumptions 
 
2023 – The discount rate changed from 5.50% to 6.00% 
 
2022 - None 
 
2021 - The Discount Rate changed from 5.00% to 5.50% 
 
2020 - None 
 
2019 – The Discount Rate changed from 4.50% to 5.00% 
 
2018 - None 
 
2017 - None 
 
2016 - None 
 
2015 - None 
 
Changes in Plan Provisions 
 
2023 - None 
 
2022 - None 
 
2021 - None 
 
2020 - None 
 
2019 - None 

 
2018 - None 
 
2017 - None 
 
2016 - None 
 
2015 - None 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – Fire Relief Association (Continued) 
 
Schedule of Employer’s Fire Relief Association Contributions 
 

Actuarial Actual Contribution
Determined Contributions Deficiency

Year Contribution Paid (Excess)
Ending (a) (b) (a-b)

12/31/23 116,174$            116,174$            -$                         
12/31/22 103,406              103,406              -                           
12/31/21 95,262                95,262                -                           
12/31/20 91,261                91,261                -                           
12/31/19 85,728                85,728                -                           
12/31/18 82,430                82,430                -                           
12/31/17 80,276                80,276                -                           
12/31/16 79,903                79,903                -                           
12/31/15 104,264              104,264              -                           

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.  
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Schedule of Changes in the City’s Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
 

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Total OPEB Liability

Service cost 16,907$          18,569$          18,028$          15,170$          14,728$          12,262$          11,905$          

Interest cost 4,581               4,420               10,740            10,533            7,270               6,880               6,560               

Differences between expected and actual experience (9,784)             -                       (78,250)           -                       78,064            -                       -                       

Assumption changes (23,414)           -                       7,159               -                       583                  -                       -                       

Benefit payments (12,991)           (13,593)           (25,913)           (20,378)           (10,154)           (12,523)           (8,319)             

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (24,701)           9,396               (68,236)           5,325               90,491            6,619               10,146            

Total Opeb Liability - Beginning 218,589          209,193          277,429          272,104          181,613          174,994          164,848          

Total OPEB Liability - Ending 193,888$        218,589$        209,193$        277,429$        272,104$        181,613$        174,994$        

Covered  - Employee Payroll 4,420,395$     4,135,324$     4,014,878$     3,581,627$     3,477,308$     3,337,280$     3,240,078$     

City's Total OPEB Liability As a Percentage of 
Covered Employee Payroll 4.39                % 5.29                % 5.21                % 7.75                % 7.83                % 5.44                % 5.40                %

 
Note: Schedule is intended to show 10-year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available. 
 
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – Other Postemployment Benefits 
 
Changes in Benefits: 
 
2023 - None 
 
2022 - None 
 
2021 - None 
 
2020 - None 
 
2019 - None 
 
2018 - None 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Required Supplementary Information (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information – Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 
 
Changes in Assumptions: 
 
2023 – The health care trend rates and mortality tables were updated. The retirement, withdrawal, and salary increase 
rates for public safety employees were updated. The inflation rate was changed from 2.00% to 2.50%. The discount rate 
was changed from 2.00% to 4.00% 
 
2022 - None 
 

2021 - The health care trend rates were changed to better anticipate short term and long term medical increases.  The 
mortality tables were updated from the RP-2014 Mortality Tables (Blue Collar for Public Safety, White Collar for Others) 
with MP-2018 Generational Improvement Scale to the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Headcount-Weighted Mortality 
Tables (General, Safety) with MP-2020 Generational Improvement Scale.  The salary increase rates were changed from a 
flat 3.00% per year for all employees to rates which vary by service and contract group. The retirement and withdrawal 
rates for non-public safety employees were updated.  The inflation rate was changed from 2.50% to 2.00%.  The discount 
rate was changed from 3.80% to 2.00%.  

 
2020 - None 
 
2019 - The health care trend rates were changed to better anticipate short term and long term medical increases. The 
mortality tables were updated from the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP-2016 Generational Improvement 
Scale (with Blue Collar adjustment for Police and Fire Personnel) to the RP-2014 White Collar Mortality Tables with MP- 

 

2018  - Generational Improvement Scale (with Blue Collar adjustment for Police and Fire Personnel). The retirement and 
withdrawal tables for Police and Fire Personnel were updated.  

 

2017 - None  
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2023

Total
Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
 Revenue Projects Funds
Assets

Cash and temporary investments 1,477,978$     2,926,191$     4,404,169$     
Receivables

Accounts -                       25,000            25,000            
Notes, net of allowance 31,926            -                       31,926            
Special assessments -                       249,774          249,774          
Intergovernmental -                       1,176,162       1,176,162       

Total Assets 1,509,904$     4,377,127$     5,887,031$     

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable 360$               130,981$        131,341$        
Deposits payable 9,775               -                       9,775               
Due to other governments 792                  -                       792                  
Unearned revenue 320,253          18,222            338,475          

Total Liabilities 331,180          149,203          480,383          

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                       249,774          249,774          
Unavailable revenue - grants -                       1,176,162       1,176,162       

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                       1,425,936       1,425,936       

Fund Balances 
Restricted for

Debt service -                       -                       -                       
Economic development 1,037,865       -                       1,037,865       
Upgrades -                       67,188            67,188            
Capital project -                       398,119          398,119          
Park improvements -                       34,836            34,836            

Assigned for
ARPA 29,924            -                       29,924            
Economic development 67,295            -                       67,295            
Crime prevention 43,640            -                       43,640            
Capital projects  -                       2,390,699       2,390,699       
Equipment -                       10,232            10,232            
Park improvements -                       302,603          302,603          

Unassigned -                       (401,689)         (401,689)         
Total Fund Balances 1,178,724       2,801,988       3,980,712       

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
    Resources and Fund Balances 1,509,904$     4,377,127$     5,887,031$     
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Total
Nonmajor

Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds

Revenues
Taxes -$                     205,421$        205,421$        
Special assessments -                       1,339               1,339               
Intergovernmental -                       339,777          339,777          
Charges for services 4,910               45,086            49,996            
Investment earnings 59,495            167,668          227,163          
Miscellaneous 19,166            32,531            51,697            

Total Revenues 83,571            791,822          875,393          

Expenditures
Current

Public safety 8,996               -                       8,996               
Public works -                       1,528               1,528               

Capital outlay
Public works -                       295,801          295,801          

Total Expenditures 8,996               297,329          306,325          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 74,575            494,493          569,068          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out -                       (382,080)         (382,080)         

Net Change in Fund Balances 74,575            112,413          186,988          

Fund Balances, January 1 1,104,149       2,689,575       3,793,724       

Fund Balances, December 31 1,178,724$     2,801,988$     3,980,712$     
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651 603 606
Storm Water

Ambulance Golf Utility Totals
Assets
Current Assets

Cash and temporary investments 187,004$        391,365$        1,075,822$     1,654,191$     
Receivables

Accounts -                        11,108             29,812             40,920             
Intergovernmental -                        -                        2,389               2,389               

Inventories -                        57,888             -                        57,888             
   Total Current Assets 187,004          460,361          1,108,023       1,755,388       

Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets

Land improvements -                        910,290          -                        910,290          
Buildings and structures -                        1,094,511       -                        1,094,511       
Infrastructure -                        -                        8,282,527       8,282,527       
Machinery and equipment -                        1,560,538       29,296             1,589,834       

Less accumulated depreciation -                        (2,765,451)      (4,026,033)      (6,791,484)      
   Total capital assets -                        799,888          4,285,790       5,085,678       

   Total Assets 187,004          1,260,249       5,393,813       6,841,066       

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources -                        872                  625                  1,497               
Deferred pension resources -                        71,391             14,498             85,889             

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources -                        72,263             15,123             87,386             

Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accounts and contracts payable 51                    77,733             698                  78,482             
Due to other governments 559                  2,553               -                        3,112               
Accrued interest payable -                        3,152               21,870             25,022             
Accrued wages payable -                        4,669               1,317               5,986               
Accrued compensated absences payable -                        6,718               -                        6,718               
Customer deposits payable -                        65,711             -                        65,711             
Unearned revenue -                        118,663          -                        118,663          
Bonds payable - current -                        64,000             110,348          174,348          

   Total Current Liabilities 610                  343,199          134,233          478,042          

Noncurrent Liabilities
Accrued compensated absences payable -                        4,488               -                        4,488               
Bonds payable - net of current portion -                        221,487          1,460,476       1,681,963       
Net pension liability -                        218,084          46,339             264,423          
Other post employment benefits -                        4,375               3,134               7,509               

Total Noncurrent Liabilities -                        448,434          1,509,949       1,958,383       

   Total Liabilities 610                  791,633          1,644,182       2,436,425       

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources -                        1,651               1,183               2,834               
Deferred pension resources -                        60,854             14,813             75,667             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                        62,505             15,996             78,501             

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets -                        514,401          2,734,426       3,248,827       
Unrestricted 186,394          (36,027)           1,014,332       1,164,699       

   Total Net Position 186,394$        478,374$        3,748,758$     4,413,526$     

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2023
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651 603 606
Storm Water

Ambulance Golf Utility Totals
Operating Revenues

Sales -$                     512,000$        -$                     512,000$        
Cost of sales -                       (235,609)         -                       (235,609)         

Gross profit -                       276,391          -                       276,391          
Charges for services -                       897,953          406,626          1,304,579       
Miscellaneous 19,950            1,283               -                       21,233            

Total Operating Revenues 19,950            1,175,627       406,626          1,602,203       

Operating Expenses
Salaries and benefits -                       679,541          96,116            775,657          
Supplies 152                  193,842          1,435               195,429          
Other services and charges 10,776            146,860          19,980            177,616          
Insurance 2,746               14,443            -                       17,189            
Utilities -                       119,636          -                       119,636          
Depreciation -                       98,717            239,317          338,034          

Total Operating Expenses 13,674            1,253,039       356,848          1,623,561       
 
Operating Income (Loss) 6,276               (77,412)           49,778            (21,358)           

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental -                       27                    6                      33                    
Investment income 5,449               11,642            32,217            49,308            
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets -                       4,295               -                       4,295               
Amortization of bond premium -                       6,433               11,723            18,156            
Bond issuance costs -                       (3,160)             (14,879)           (18,039)           
Interest expense -                       (12,865)           (44,183)           (57,048)           

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 5,449               6,372               (15,116)           (3,295)             

Income (Loss) Before Transfers 11,725            (71,040)           34,662            (24,653)           

Transfers In -                       121,270          -                       121,270          

Change in Net Position 11,725            50,230            34,662            96,617            

Net Position, January 1 174,669          428,144          3,714,096       4,316,909       

Net Position, December 31 186,394$        478,374$        3,748,758$     4,413,526$     

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
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651 603 606
Storm Water

Ambulance Golf Utility Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers -$     1,413,931$     405,303$        1,819,234$     
Payments to suppliers and vendors (13,580)      (661,030)    (2,517)        (677,127)    
Payments to and on behalf of employees - (642,797) (82,990)      (725,787)    
Other receipts 19,950       1,283   - 21,233 

Net Cash Provided (Used) 
   by Operating Activities 6,370   111,387     319,796     437,553     

Cash Flows from
Noncapital Financing Activities

State grants received - 27 6           33       
Transfers from other funds - 121,270 - 121,270 
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
   Noncapital Financing Activities - 121,297 6           121,303     

Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Payments on advances from other funds - (23,187) - (23,187) 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - (232,642) (543,947)    (776,589) 
Proceeds from the disposal of capital assets - 4,295 - 4,295 
Proceeds from debt instruments, 

net of discounts/premiums -   -   583,548     583,548     
Principal paid on debt instruments - (103,000) (94,616)      (197,616)    
Interest paid on debt instruments - (15,104) (44,183)      (59,287)      
Issuance costs paid on debt instruments - (3,160) (14,879)      (18,039)      

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital
   Financing Activities - (372,798) (114,077)    (486,875)    

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest received 5,449  11,642       32,217       49,308       

Net Increase (Decrease)
In Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,819       (128,472)    237,942     121,289     

Cash and Cash Equivalents, January 1 175,185     519,837     837,880     1,532,902  

Cash and Cash Equivalents, December 31 187,004$        391,365$        1,075,822$     1,654,191$     

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Proprietary Funds

Combining Statement of Cash Flows (Continued on the Following Page)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
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651 603 606
Storm Water

Ambulance Golf Utility Totals
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Operating income (loss) 6,276$            (77,412)$         49,778$          (21,358)$         
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)

 to net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation -                        98,717            239,317          338,034          
(Increase) decrease in assets
Accounts receivable -                        8,227               1,066               9,293               
Due from other governments -                        -                        (2,389)             (2,389)             
Inventories -                        (8,183)             -                        (8,183)             
Prepaid items -                        178                  154                  332                  

(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources -                        401                  333                  734                  
Deferred pension resources -                        33,788            3,223               37,011            

Increase (decrease) in liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable (465)                54,812            18,744            73,091            
Due to other governments 559                  2,553               -                        3,112               
Accrued wages payable -                        (825)                641                  (184)                
Accrued compensated absences payable -                        (105)                6,627               6,522               
Customer deposits payable -                        7,821               -                        7,821               
Unearned revenue -                        (12,070)           -                        (12,070)           
Other post employment benefit resources -                        (421)                (475)                (896)                
Net pension liability -                        (51,197)           (11,408)           (62,605)           

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources
Deferred other post employment benefit resources -                        425                  260                  685                  
Deferred pension resources -                        54,678            13,925            68,603            
Net Cash Provided (Used)
   by Operating Activities 6,370$            111,387$        319,796$        437,553$        

Noncash Financing Activities
Amortization of bond (premium) discount -$                     (6,433)$           (11,723)$         (18,156)$         
Bond premium issued -$                     -$                     38,548$          38,548$          

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds
Combining Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

City of New Prague, Minnesota
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2023

203 204 206 207
Development Small

Revolving Cities Economic 2016 Small
Loan Grant Development Cities Project

Assets
Cash and temporary investments 167,295$        32,947$          232,977$        162,852$        
Receivables

Notes, net of allowance -                       -                       -                       31,926            

Total Assets 167,295$        32,947$          232,977$        194,778$        

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Deposits payable -                       -                       -                       -                       
Due to other governments -                       -                       -                       -                       
Unearned revenue -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Liabilities -                       -                       -                       -                       

Fund Balances
Restricted for

Economic development 100,000          32,947            232,977          194,778          
Assigned for

ARPA -                       -                       -                       -                       
Economic development 67,295            -                       -                       -                       
Crime prevention -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Fund Balances 167,295          32,947            232,977          194,778          

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 167,295$        32,947$          232,977$        194,778$        
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208 209 233

2017 Small American Crime Total
Cities Project Rescue Aid Prevention Nonmajor

477,163$        350,177$        54,567$          1,477,978$     

-                       -                       -                       31,926            

477,163$        350,177$        54,567$          1,509,904$     

-$                     -$                     360$               360$               
-                       -                       9,775               9,775               
-                       -                       792                  792                  
-                       320,253          -                       320,253          
-                       320,253          10,927            331,180          

477,163          -                       -                       1,037,865       

-                       29,924            -                       29,924            
-                       -                       -                       67,295            
-                       -                       43,640            43,640            

477,163          29,924            43,640            1,178,724       

477,163$        350,177$        54,567$          1,509,904$     
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and 
Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

203 204 206 207
Development Small

Revolving Cities Economic 2016 Small
Loan Grant Development Cities Project

Revenues
Charges for services

Public safety -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Investment earnings 5,039              838                 6,748              4,668              
Miscellaneous

Other -                       18,477            -                       689                 
Total Revenues 5,039              19,315            6,748              5,357              

 
Expenditures

Current
Public safety -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Change in Fund Balances 5,039              19,315            6,748              5,357              

Fund Balances, January 1 162,256          13,632            226,229          189,421          

Fund Balances, December 31 167,295$        32,947$          232,977$        194,778$        
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208 209 233

2017 Small American Crime Total
Cities Project Rescue Aid Prevention Nonmajor

-$                     -$                     4,910$            4,910$            
14,936            25,943            1,323              59,495            

-                       -                       -                       19,166            
14,936            25,943            6,233              83,571            

-                       -                       8,996              8,996              

14,936            25,943            (2,763)             74,575            

462,227          3,981              46,403            1,104,149       

477,163$        29,924$          43,640$          1,178,724$     
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Development Revolving Loan Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues

Investment earnings 100$               100$               5,039$            4,939$            619$               

Fund Balances, January 1 162,256          162,256          162,256          -                       161,637          

Fund Balances, December 31 162,356$        162,356$        167,295$        4,939$            162,256$        

2023
Budgeted Amounts
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
2016 Small Cities Project Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues

Investment earnings 100$               100$               4,668$            4,568$            686$               
Miscellaneous

Other 1,100               1,100               689                  (411)                963                  
Total Revenues 1,200               1,200               5,357               4,157               1,649               

 
Fund Balances, January 1 189,421          189,421          189,421          -                       187,772          

Fund Balances, December 31 190,621$        190,621$        194,778$        4,157$            189,421$        

2023
Budgeted Amounts
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
2017 Small Cities Project Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues

Investment earnings 450$               450$               14,936$          14,486$          1,638$            

Fund Balances, January 1 462,227          462,227          462,227          -                       460,589          

Fund Balances, December 31 462,677$        462,677$        477,163$        14,486$          462,227$        

2023
Budgeted Amounts
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Crime Prevention Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues

Charges for services   
Public safety 14,500$          14,500$          4,910$            (9,590)$           19,481$          

Investment earnings 50                    50                    1,323               1,273               259                  
Total Revenues 14,550            14,550            6,233               (8,317)             19,740            

 
Expenditures

Current
Public safety

Supplies 4,000               4,000               4,812               (812)                15,033            
Other services and charges 4,900               4,900               4,184               716                  4,757               

Capital outlay
Public safety -                       -                       -                       -                       5,005               

Total Expenditures 8,900               8,900               8,996               (96)                   24,795            

Net Change in Fund Balances 5,650               5,650               (2,763)             (8,413)             (5,055)             

Fund Balances, January 1 46,403            46,403            46,403            -                       51,458            

Fund Balances, December 31 52,053$          52,053$          43,640$          (8,413)$           46,403$          

2023
Budgeted Amounts
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210 228 230 235 236 455 472
10th Ave Park T.H. 19/
Federal Dedication Park Trunk 11th Ave.
Grant Fees Improvements Sidewalk Sirens Sewer Street

Assets
Cash and temporary investments (16,677)$         209,599$        121,062$        40,709$          26,479$          2,096,832$     157,121$        
Receivables

Accounts -                        25,000             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Special assessments -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        137,778          
Intergovernmental -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Assets (16,677)$         234,599$        121,062$        40,709$          26,479$          2,096,832$     294,899$        

Liabilities
Accounts and contracts payable -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      
Unearned revenue -                        18,222             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Liabilities -                        18,222             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        137,778          
Unavailable revenue - grants -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        137,778          

Fund Balances 
Restricted for

Upgrades -                        -                        -                        40,709             26,479             -                        -                        
Capital projects -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Park improvements -                        34,836             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Assigned for
Capital projects -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        2,096,832       157,121          
Equipment -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Park improvements -                        181,541          121,062          -                        -                        -                        -                        

Unassigned (16,677)           -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        
Total Fund Balances (16,677)           216,377          121,062          40,709             26,479             2,096,832       157,121          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
    Resources and Fund Balances (16,677)$         234,599$        121,062$        40,709$          26,479$          2,096,832$     294,899$        

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
December 31, 2023
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498 499 418 420 421 423 424

Equipment General T.H. 19 CIP CIP CIP CIP Total
Fund Projects Project 2019 2022 2024 2025 Nonmajor

10,232$          299,280$        (203,625)$       -$                      258,088$        (72,693)$         (216)$              2,926,191$     

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        25,000             
-                        111,996          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        249,774          
-                        1,176,162       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,176,162       

10,232$          1,587,438$     (203,625)$       -$                      258,088$        (72,693)$         (216)$              4,377,127$     

-$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      22,503$          108,478$        -$                      130,981$        
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        18,222             
-                        -                        -                        -                        22,503             108,478          -                        149,203          

-                        111,996          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        249,774          
-                        1,176,162       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,176,162       
-                        1,288,158       -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        1,425,936       

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        67,188             
-                        162,534          -                        -                        235,585          -                        -                        398,119          
-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        34,836             

-                        136,746          -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        2,390,699       
10,232             -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        10,232             

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        302,603          
-                        -                        (203,625)         -                        -                        (181,171)         (216)                 (401,689)         

10,232             299,280          (203,625)         -                        235,585          (181,171)         (216)                 2,801,988       

10,232$          1,587,438$     (203,625)$       -$                      258,088$        (72,693)$         (216)$              4,377,127$     
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210 228 230 235 236 455 472
10th Ave Park T.H. 19/
Federal Dedication Park Trunk 11th Ave.
Grant Fees Improvements Sidewalk Sirens Sewer Street

Revenues
Taxes

Property taxes -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     
Special assessments -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Connection charges -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       22,889            -                       
Charges for services -                       9,111              5,586              -                       -                       -                       -                       
Intergovernmental -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Investment earnings -                       6,178              3,385              1,208              738                 65,050            4,529              
Miscellaneous

Contributions -                       -                       27,099            -                       -                       -                       -                       
Other -                       -                       -                       -                       5,432              -                       -                       

Total Revenues -                       15,289            36,070            1,208              6,170              87,939            4,529              

Expenditures
Current

Public works -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Capital outlay

Public works 10,535            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Total Expenditures 10,535            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

 
Excess (Deficiency) of 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures (10,535)           15,289            36,070            1,208              6,170              87,939            4,529              

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers out -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Change in Fund Balances (10,535)           15,289            36,070            1,208              6,170              87,939            4,529              

Fund Balances, January 1 (6,142)             201,088          84,992            39,501            20,309            2,008,893       152,592          

Fund Balances, December 31 (16,677)$        216,377$        121,062$        40,709$          26,479$          2,096,832$    157,121$        

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
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498 499 418 420 421 423 424

Equipment General T.H. 19 CIP CIP CIP CIP Total
Fund Projects Project 2019 2022 2024 2025 Nonmajor

200,217$        5,204$            -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     205,421$        
-                       1,339              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,339              
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       22,889            
-                       7,500              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       22,197            
-                       -                       245,352          94,425            -                       -                       -                       339,777          
-                       11,134            -                       5,438              70,008            -                       -                       167,668          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       27,099            
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,432              

200,217          25,177            245,352          99,863            70,008            -                       -                       791,822          

-                       1,528              -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,528              

-                       -                       2,825              771                 100,715          180,955          -                       295,801          
-                       1,528              2,825              771                 100,715          180,955          -                       297,329          

200,217          23,649            242,527          99,092            (30,707)           (180,955)        -                       494,493          

(189,985)        -                       -                       (192,095)        -                       -                       -                       (382,080)        

10,232            23,649            242,527          (93,003)           (30,707)           (180,955)        -                       112,413          

-                       275,631          (446,152)        93,003            266,292          (216)                (216)                2,689,575       

10,232$          299,280$        (203,625)$      -$                     235,585$        (181,171)$      (216)$              2,801,988$    
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2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Revenues

Taxes
Property taxes 3,728,128$     3,728,128$     3,744,179$     16,051$          3,659,814$     
Franchise taxes 100,000          100,000          94,949            (5,051)             98,409            

Total taxes 3,828,128       3,828,128       3,839,128       11,000            3,758,223       

Licenses and permits
Business 40,325            40,325            55,058            14,733            44,818            
Nonbusiness 200,455          200,455          266,577          66,122            306,179          

Total licenses and permits 240,780          240,780          321,635          80,855            350,997          

Intergovernmental
Federal

ARPA 514,568          545,968          545,968          -                       -                       
Police federal aid -                       -                       8,309               8,309               -                       

Total federal 514,568          545,968          554,277          8,309               -                       

 State
Local government aid 985,808          985,808          985,808          -                       964,655          
Property tax credits and aids -                       -                       181                  181                  183                  
Highway aid 100,000          100,000          107,135          7,135               109,758          
Police state aid 92,000            92,000            106,172          14,172            97,660            
Fire state aid 95,000            95,000            116,174          21,174            103,406          
Other state aid 16,300            16,300            428,344          412,044          16,252            

Total state 1,289,108       1,289,108       1,743,814       454,706          1,291,914       

County
Other County grants 4,200               4,200               16,877            12,677            6,187               

Local
Other Local grants 5,000               5,000               5,000               -                       11,000            

 Total intergovernmental 1,812,876       1,844,276       2,319,968       475,692          1,309,101       
      

Charges for services
General government 11,500            11,500            10,799            (701)                10,567            
Public safety 132,000          132,000          46,891            (85,109)           98,797            
Streets and highways 1,000               1,000               1,655               655                  4,954               
Culture and recreation 4,306               4,306               4,885               579                  5,709               
Miscellaneous 9,600               9,600               7,200               (2,400)             9,200               

Total charges for services 158,406          158,406          71,430            (86,976)           129,227          

Fines and forfeits 20,000            20,000            26,319            6,319               22,063            

Interest earnings 10,000            10,000            347,250          337,250          91,811            

Miscellaneous
Other 9,500 9,500 82,818            73,318            53,847            
Contributions and donations 5,000               5,000               1,140               (3,860)             540                  

Total miscellaneous 14,500            14,500            83,958            69,458            54,387            

Total Revenues 6,084,690       6,116,090       7,009,688       893,598          5,715,809       

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

City of New Prague, Minnesota
General Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Continued on the Following Pages)

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2023
Budgeted Amounts
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Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Expenditures

Current
General government

Mayor and council
Personal services 23,852$          23,852$          25,149$          (1,297)$           23,365$          
Supplies 500                  500                  72                    428                  4,677               
Other services and charges 49,800            49,800            42,103            7,697               45,348            

Total mayor and council 74,152            74,152            67,324            6,828               73,390            

City clerk/administration
Personal services 436,328          436,328          434,227          2,101               459,905          
Supplies 3,196               3,196               2,953               243                  2,284               
Other services and charges 53,458            53,458            61,802            (8,344)             71,090            

Total city clerk/administration 492,982          492,982          498,982          (6,000)             533,279          

Technical network
Supplies 67,000            67,000            63,954            3,046               56,744            
Other services and charges 99,882            99,882            124,954          (25,072)           32,375            

Total technical network 166,882          166,882          188,908          (22,026)           89,119            

Elections
Personal services -                       -                       -                       -                       10,086            
Supplies 5,120               5,120               2,208               2,912               3,461               
Other services and charges 1,200               1,200               1,214               (14)                  1,954               

Total elections 6,320               6,320               3,422               2,898               15,501            

Assessing
Other services and charges 44,393            44,393            44,400            (7)                     43,100            

Legal
Other services and charges 70,000            70,000            78,101            (8,101)             70,008            

Planning and zoning
Personal services 269,677          269,677          255,897          13,780            236,114          
Supplies 2,313               2,313               1,723               590                  2,420               
Other services and charges 115,755          115,755          73,825            41,930            15,250            

Total planning and zoning 387,745          387,745          331,445          56,300            253,784          

General government building
Personal services 15,653            15,653            13,061            2,592               15,366            
Supplies 4,600               4,600               4,429               171                  3,986               
Other services and charges 52,938            52,938            55,715            (2,777)             67,362            

Total general government building 73,191            73,191            73,205            (14)                  86,714            

Total general government 1,315,665       1,315,665       1,285,787       29,878            1,164,895       

2023
Budgeted Amounts

General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

City of New Prague, Minnesota
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General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Expenditures (Continued)

Current (continued)
Public safety

Police
Personal services 1,770,080$     1,770,080$     1,610,250$     159,830$        1,644,952$     
Supplies 34,250            34,250            36,204            (1,954)             31,241            
Other services and charges 104,125          104,125          132,437          (28,312)           118,120          

Total police 1,908,455       1,908,455       1,778,891       129,564          1,794,313       

Fire
Personal services 155,818          155,818          174,767          (18,949)           155,233          
Supplies 18,000            18,000            16,379            1,621               13,666            
Other services and charges 34,727            34,727            37,604            (2,877)             57,747            

Total fire 208,545          208,545          228,750          (20,205)           226,646          

Building inspection
Personal services 288,991          288,991          282,210          6,781               264,440          
Supplies 4,684               4,684               3,462               1,222               2,940               
Other services and charges 15,817            15,817            22,568            (6,751)             20,064            

Total building inspection 309,492          309,492          308,240          1,252               287,444          

Emergency management
Supplies 350                  350                  232                  118                  -                       
Other services and charges 17,900            17,900            13,207            4,693               14,820            

Total emergency management 18,250            18,250            13,439            4,811               14,820            

Animal control
Other services and charges 150                  150                  -                       150                  87                    

Total public safety 2,444,892       2,444,892       2,329,320       115,572          2,323,310       

Public works
Streets and highways

Personal services 719,303          719,303          738,767          (19,464)           726,602          
Supplies 80,150            80,150            77,874            2,276               66,115            
Other services and charges 155,916          155,916          206,546          (50,630)           234,872          

Total streets and highways 955,369          955,369          1,023,187       (67,818)           1,027,589       

Engineering
Other services and charges 15,000            15,000            10,491            4,509               7,068               

Street lighting
Other services and charges 72,418            72,418            65,265            7,153               59,689            

Total public works 1,042,787       1,042,787       1,098,943       (56,156)           1,094,346       

2023
Budgeted Amounts

City of New Prague, Minnesota
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General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Budget and Actual (Continued)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

(With Comparative Actual Amounts for the Year Ended December 31, 2022)

2022
Actual Variance with Actual

Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
Expenditures (Continued)

Current (continued)
Culture and recreation

Parks 
Personal services 378,342$        378,342$        415,702$        (37,360)$         366,234$        
Supplies 68,300            68,300            64,583            3,717               63,454            
Other services and charges 293,095          293,095          329,847          (36,752)           254,769          

Total parks 739,737          739,737          810,132          (70,395)           684,457          

Library
Supplies 2,300               2,300               732                  1,568               1,193               
Other services and charges 48,453            48,453            45,367            3,086               29,748            

Total library 50,753            50,753            46,099            4,654               30,941            

Total culture and recreation 790,490          790,490          856,231          (65,741)           715,398          

Miscellaneous
Rental property

Other services and charges 2,950               2,950               35,555            (32,605)           4,868               

Unallocated
Other services and charges 61,471            61,471            50,824            10,647            21,826            

Total miscellaneous 64,421            64,421            86,379            (21,958)           26,694            

Total current 5,658,255       5,658,255       5,656,660       1,595               5,324,643       

Capital outlay
General government

Elections -                       -                       -                       -                       9,717               
Government buildings -                       -                       -                       -                       5                      

Public safety
Police 194,200          194,200          242,641          (48,441)           7,841               
Fire -                       -                       1,752               (1,752)             12,685            

Streets and highways 107,000          268,000          265,438          2,562               33,825            
Culture and recreation

Parks 424,000          1,454,000       1,399,231       54,769            65,366            
Total capital outlay 725,200          1,916,200       1,909,062       7,138               129,439          

Total Expenditures 6,383,455       7,574,455       7,565,722       8,733               5,454,082       

Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures (298,765)         (1,458,365)      (556,034)         902,331          261,727          

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Sale of assets -                       -                       11,102            11,102            -                       
Transfers in 225,385          224,985          229,985          5,000               122,000          
Transfers out (121,270)         (121,270)         (121,270)         -                       (128,862)         

Total Other Financing
   Sources (Uses) 104,115          103,715          119,817          16,102            (6,862)             

Net Change in Fund Balances (194,650)         (1,354,650)      (436,217)         918,433          254,865          

Fund Balances, January 1 5,928,071       5,928,071       5,928,071       -                       5,673,206       

Fund Balances, December 31 5,733,421$     4,573,421$     5,491,854$     918,433$        5,928,071$     

2023
Budgeted Amounts

City of New Prague, Minnesota
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380 375 395 311 315 316 317
HRA - 2013B   

Senior Housing 2007 CIP 2009 CIP 2011 CIP Refunding Bonds 2014 CIP 2015 CIP
Assets

Cash and temporary investments 10,796$          154,449$        64,985$          289,886$        451,978$        235,701$        166,495$        
Receivables

Notes -                        -                        -                        -                        576,666          -                        -                        
Special assessments -                        -                        18,937             21,607             -                        109,520          58,602             
Intergovernmental -                        -                        973                  -                        -                        -                        720                  

Total Assets 10,796$          154,449$        84,895$          311,493$        1,028,644$     345,221$        225,817$        

Liabilities
Accounts payable -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - special assessments -                        -                        18,937             21,607             -                        109,520          58,602             

Fund Balances 
Restricted for

Debt service 10,796             154,449          65,958             289,886          1,028,644       235,701          167,215          
Unassigned -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        

Total Fund Balances 10,796             154,449          65,958             289,886          1,028,644       235,701          167,215          

Total Deferred Inflows of
    Resources and Fund Balances 10,796$          154,449$        84,895$          311,493$        1,028,644$     345,221$        225,817$        

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Debt Service Funds

Combining Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2023
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318 319 320 321 322 323
TIF New Prague 2020A CIP CIP CIP
Senior Housing 2019 CIP Refunding Bonds 2020 - 2021 2022 2023 Totals

49,580$          779,254$        1,388,873$     322,337$        260,640$        172,747$        4,347,721$     

-                        -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        576,666          
-                        610,540          238,644          520,178          388,816          331,003          2,297,847       
-                        4,319               -                        -                        -                        -                        6,012               

49,580$          1,394,113$     1,627,517$     842,515$        649,456$        503,750$        7,228,246$     

51,841$          -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      500$                52,341$          

-                        610,540          238,644          520,178          388,816          331,003          2,297,847       

-                        783,573          1,388,873       322,337          260,640          172,247          4,880,319       
(2,261)              -                        -                        -                        -                        -                        (2,261)              
(2,261)              783,573          1,388,873       322,337          260,640          172,247          4,878,058       

49,580$          1,394,113$     1,627,517$     842,515$        649,456$        503,750$        7,228,246$     
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380 375 395 311 315 316 317
HRA - 2013B   

Senior Housing 2007 CIP 2009 CIP 2011 CIP Refunding Bonds 2014 CIP 2015 CIP
Revenues

Taxes
Property taxes 11,550$          -$                    16,681$          -$                    334,482$        63,685$          1,957$            
Tax increment district taxes -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Special assessments -                       -                       9,019              11,253            7,981              19,235            19,592            
Investment earnings 158                 3,128              1,865              8,963              18,749            6,135              5,078              
Miscellaneous

Other -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Loan interest -                       -                       -                       -                       15,293            -                       -                       

Total Revenues 11,708            3,128              27,565            20,216            376,505          89,055            26,627            
 
Expenditures

Current
Economic development -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Debt service
 Principal 11,000            -                       37,474            5,482              405,000          85,000            30,000            

Interest and other -                       3,850              4,447              4,739              47,680            19,738            8,525              
Bond issue costs and fees -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 11,000            3,850              41,921            10,221            452,680          104,738          38,525            

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 708                 (722)                (14,356)           9,995              (76,175)           (15,683)           (11,898)           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Net Change in Fund Balances 708                 (722)                (14,356)           9,995              (76,175)           (15,683)           (11,898)           

Fund Balances, January 1 10,088            155,171          80,314            279,891          1,104,819       251,384          179,113          

Fund Balances, December 31 10,796$          154,449$        65,958$          289,886$        1,028,644$     235,701$        167,215$        

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Debt Service Funds

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
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318 319 320 321 322 323
TIF New Prague 2020A CIP CIP CIP
Senior Housing 2019 CIP Refunding Bonds 2020 - 2021 2022 2023 Totals

-$                    186,027$        122,976$        24,991$          30,212$          -$                    792,561$        
109,139          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       109,139          

-                       89,838            64,573            61,292            71,996            198,740          553,519          
1,313              13,957            42,704            8,989              6,256              4,547              121,842          

-                       -                       149                 -                       -                       -                       149                 
-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       15,293            

110,452          289,822          230,402          95,272            108,464          203,287          1,592,503       

109,139          -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       109,139          

-                       210,000          145,358          100,000          -                       -                       1,029,314       
-                       80,800            40,875            61,168            12,800            -                       284,622          
-                       -                       1,250              800                 3,912              31,040            37,002            

109,139          290,800          187,483          161,968          16,712            31,040            1,460,077       

1,313              (978)                42,919            (66,696)           91,752            172,247          132,426          

-                       192,095          -                       -                       -                       -                       192,095          

1,313              191,117          42,919            (66,696)           91,752            172,247          324,521          

(3,574)             592,456          1,345,954       389,033          168,888          -                       4,553,537       

(2,261)$           783,573$        1,388,873$     322,337$        260,640$        172,247$        4,878,058$     
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680 681
Economic

Economic Development
Development Authority

Authority Industrial Park Totals
Assets

Cash and temporary investments 432,248$        198,545$        630,793$        
Receivables

Accounts 11,134            -                       11,134            
Intergovernmental 421                  -                       421                  

Land held for resale -                       453,940          453,940          

Total Current Assets 443,803$        652,485$        1,096,288$     

Liabilities
Accounts payable 158$               6,286$            6,444$            
Accrued wages payable 746                  -                       746                  

Total Current Liabilities 904                  6,286               7,190               

Fund Balances
Unrestricted 442,899$        646,199$        1,089,098$     

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 1,089,098$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in the funds. 744,017

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Net pension liability (26,867)           
Other postemployment benefit liability (870)                

Governmental funds to not report long-term amounts related to pensions.
Deferred outflows of resources 8,406
Deferred inflows of resources (8,588)             

Governmental funds do not report long-term amounts related to other postemployment benefits.
Deferred inflows of other postemployment benefit resources 174
Deferred outflows of other postemployment benefit resources (329)                

Total Net Position - Governmental Activities 1,805,041$     

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Discretely Presented Component Unit

Economic Development Authority
Combining Balance Sheet

December 31, 2023
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680 681
Economic

Economic Development
Development Authority

Authority Industrial Park Totals
Revenues

Taxes 74,653$          -$                     74,653$          
Investment earnings 12,973            5,888               18,861            
Miscellaneous 11,219            53,315            64,534            

Total Revenues 98,845            59,203            158,048          

Expenditures
Current

Economic development 73,821            -                       73,821            
Capital outlay

Economic development -                       667,880          667,880          
Total Expenditures 73,821            667,880          741,701          

 
Net Change in Fund Balances 25,024            (608,677)         (583,653)         

Fund Balances, January 1 403,676          1,332,786       1,736,462       

Prior Period Adjustment (Note 8) 14,199            (77,910)           (63,711)           

Fund Balances, December 31 442,899$        646,199$        1,089,098$     

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds (583,653)$       

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures.  However, in the statement of
activities the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives and reported
as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay 667,880          
Depreciation expense (1,773)             

Long-term pension activity is not reported in governmental funds.
Pension expense (13,402)           
Direct aid contributions 3

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current 
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Other postemployment benefit costs (476)                

Change in Net Position - Governmental Activities 68,579$          

City of New Prague, Minnesota
Discretely Presented Component Unit

Economic Development Authority
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023
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City of New Prague, Minnesota
Summary Financial Report

Revenues and Expenditures for General Operations - 
Governmental Funds

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Revenues

Taxes 4,946,249$     4,843,942$     2.11            %
Special assessments 554,858           538,587          3.02            
Licenses and permits 321,635           350,997          (8.37)           
Intergovernmental 2,659,745        3,571,207       (25.52)         
Charges for services 121,426           196,243          (38.12)         
Fines and forfeits 26,319             22,063            19.29          
Investment earnings 696,255           130,968          431.62        
Miscellaneous 151,097           73,349            106.00        

Total Revenues 9,477,584$     9,727,356$     (2.57)           %

Per Capita 1,136$             1,183$            (3.96)           %

Expenditures
Current

General government 1,285,787$     1,164,895$     10.38          %
Public safety 2,338,316        2,343,100       (0.20)           
Public works 1,100,471        1,096,135       0.40            
Culture and recreation 856,231           715,398          19.69          
Economic development 109,139           128,858          (15.30)         
Miscellaneous 86,379             26,694            223.59        

Capital outlay
General government -                        46,500            (100.00)      
Public safety 244,393           25,531            857.24        
Public works 2,469,789        2,409,148       2.52            
Culture and recreation 1,399,231        66,810            1,994.34     

Debt service
Principal 1,029,314        983,273          4.68            
Interest and other 284,622           299,092          (4.84)           
Bond issuance costs and fees 55,430             8,607               544.01        

Total Expenditures 11,259,102$   9,314,041$     20.88          %
100.00        

Per Capita 1,350$             1,133$            19.16          %

Total long-term indebtedness 9,659,846$     8,554,160$     12.93          %
Per Capita 1,158               1,041               11.31          

General fund balance - December 31 5,491,854$     5,928,071$     (7.36)           %
Per Capita 659                  721                  (8.68)           

The purpose of this report is to provide a summary of financial information concerning the City of New Prague to
interested citizens.  The complete financial statements may be examined at 118 Central Avenue North. 
Questions about this report should be directed to Joshua Tetzlaff, City Administrator at 952-758-4401.

(Decrease)
Increase
Percent

Total

128 181

Section 6, Item a.



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTS 
 

CITY OF NEW PRAGUE 
NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 

 
 
 
 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2023 

 
 
 

129 182

Section 6, Item a.



THIS PAGE IS LEFT  

BLANK INTENTIONALLY 

130 183

Section 6, Item a.



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON 
MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of New Prague, Minnesota 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States,  the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, the each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New Prague, 
Minnesota, (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, which collectively comprise the City’s basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2024. 
 
In connection with our audit, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the City failed to comply with the 
provisions of the contracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and 
disbursements, miscellaneous provisions, and tax increment financing sections of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audit 
Guide for Cities, promulgated by the State Auditor pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 6.65. However, our audit was not directed 
primarily toward obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance.  Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, 
other matters may have come to our attention regarding the City’s noncompliance with the above referenced provisions, 
insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing, and 
not to provide an opinion on compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Abdo 
Mankato, Minnesota 
April 30, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN 
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of New Prague, Minnesota 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely 
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of New Prague, 
Minnesota (the City), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2024. 
 
Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City's internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely 
basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented or detected 
and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was 
not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies 
and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did identify one deficiency in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses described in 
the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Responses as item 2023-002, and item 2023-001 that we consider to be a 
significant deficiency.  
 
Report on Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However, 
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are 
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Responses to Findings 
 
The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings, and 
Responses.  The City’s responses are not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 
statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it. 
 
Purpose of this Report 

 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results 
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on compliance. This 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
City’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Abdo 
Mankato, Minnesota 
April 30, 2024  
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Schedule of Findings and Responses  

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

Finding Description 
 
2023-001 Segregation of Duties  
  
Condition:   During our audit we reviewed internal control procedures over payroll, disbursements, cash 

receipts, utility billing and investments and found the City to have limited segregation of duties in 
these areas as noted below. 

 
Criteria:   There are four general categories of duties:  authorization, custody, record keeping and 

reconciliation.  In an ideal system, different employees perform each of these four major 
functions.  In other words, no one person has control of two or more of these responsibilities. 

 
Effect:   The existence of this limited segregation of duties increases the risk of fraud.   
 
Internal Control Over Payroll 
 
Cause:   Currently, the Finance Director has control of payroll checks, sets up and maintains all employee 

records, issues checks to employees, initiates payroll transfers for direct deposit, and approves 
payroll. The Accounting Technician runs the payroll, posts activity to the general ledger and 
prepares the payroll tax returns. The Finance Director and Accounting Technician alternate the 
reconciliation of bank accounts.   

 
Recommendation:   We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 
 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes approval of expenditures, regular review of financial statements and 
budget comparisons. 
 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 
 
No update from the prior year. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Finding Description 
 
2023-001 Segregation of Duties (Continued) 
 
Internal Control Over Disbursements 
 
Cause:  The Accounting Technician maintains the signature plate, sets up and maintains vendors, posts 

to the general ledger, prepares checks, and maintains accounts payable records. The Planning 
Technician Receptionist opens mail and mails checks to vendors. The Purchase/Inventory Clerk 
matches invoices to purchase orders and maintains the purchase journal. The Finance Director 
and Accounting Technician alternate the reconciliation of the bank accounts. 

 
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 
 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes approval of expenditures, regular review of financial statements, regular 
review of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons.  The duties of setting up and maintain vendors, opening the mail, 
maintaining the general ledger, preparing checks, and mailing the checks have been separated as much as allowed with 
the limited number of staff.   
 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 
 
No update from the prior year. 
 
Internal Control Over Cash Receipts 

 
Cause:  The Planning Technician Receptionist opens mail and takes deposits to the bank. The Billing 

Clerk receives and endorses checks/currency and prepares the deposit.  
  
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 

 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes review of deposits, regular review of financial statements, regular review 
of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons. 

 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 

 
No update from the prior year. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 
Finding Description 
 
2023-001 Segregation of Duties (Continued) 
 
Internal Control Over Utility Billing 

 
Cause:  The Billing Clerk sets up and maintains customers and rates, generates billing statements, mails 

billing statements, and prepares the deposit.  
  
Recommendation:  We recommend the City review the spreadsheet provided to see if any duties can be adjusted to 

properly segregate the four categories of duties. It is important that the Council is aware of this 
condition and monitors all financial information. 

 
Management Response: 

 
The City has already taken measures to attempt to comply even though they are relatively small and the number of 
clerical/bookkeeping staff they can employ is limited.  The Council has addressed this circumstance by active 
participation in the City’s affairs.  This includes review of deposits, regular review of financial statements, regular review 
of bank reconciliations and budget comparisons. 

 
Updated Progress from Prior Year: 

 
No update from the prior year. 
 
 
Internal Control Over Journal Entries 
 
Cause:  The accounting technician posts all journal entries, which have not been through an approval 

process. 
 
Recommendation:  SAS No. 145 required evaluating the design and implementation of certain controls including 

journal entries and other adjustments. Through our audit testing we determined there were lack 
of controls related to journal entries. We recommend implementing a formal approval process for 
all manual journal entries. 

 
Management response:  
 
The City will implement an approval process for manual journal entries going forward. 
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City of New Prague, Minnesota 
Schedule of Findings and Responses (Continued) 

For the Year Ended December 31, 2023 
 

Finding Description 
 
2023-002 Material Audit Adjustments  
  
Condition:   Adjustments were needed to record and adjust beginning EDA balances, the coding of bond 

proceeds coded to the incorrect fund, debt service fund tax revenues, and capital project activity. 
 
Criteria:   The financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. 
 
Cause:   The financial statements required material audit adjustments to be reasonably stated. 
 
Effect:   This indicated that it would be likely that a misstatement may occur and not be detected by the 

City’s system of internal control. The audit firm cannot serve as a compensating control over this 
deficiency. 

 
Recommendation:   We recommend that management review bond proceed coding to ensure they are recorded in the 

proper project fund, review tax levy revenue recorded compared to the approved levy, and review 
large capital projects that are done in conjunction with outside agencies for portions owned by 
the City.  

 
Management response:  
 
The City will review the adjustments necessary and try to eliminate these entries in the future. 
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE 
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DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 
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(Unaudited)

Average
K.W.H. Income Per

Sold Income K.W.H. Sold
Type of Service

Residential 28,311,052     4,209,140$     0.14867$        
Commercial phase 1 2,104,161       615,990          0.29275          
Commercial phase 3 1,874,274       -                       -                       
Commercial interruptible 123,000          11,623            0.09450          
Small industrial 15,530,382     1,835,814       0.11821          
Industrial 21,835,800     2,383,440       0.10915          
Other departments 1,265,866       142,813          0.11282          
Street lights 424,992          64,064            0.15074          
Security lights -                       5,011               -                       
Unbilled revenue -                       (101,666)         -                       

Total Sales 71,469,527     9,166,229$     0.12825$        

Total K.W.H. - Generated 807,700          
Total K.W.H. - Purchases 72,260,959     

Total K.W.H. 73,068,659     

Distribution Lost 1,599,132       

Percentage of Distribution Lost 2.2%

Cost of Power Purchased 6,638,267$     

Average Cost Per K.W.H. Purchased 0.09187$        

2023

New Prague Utilities Commission
New Prague, Minnesota

Schedules of Operating Revenues 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

Electric Utility Fund
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Average
K.W.H. Income Per

Sold Income K.W.H. Sold

27,036,908     3,695,866$     0.13670$        
2,028,451       524,872          0.25876          
1,723,479       -                       -                       

147,600          12,325            0.08350          
15,095,979     1,675,374       0.11098          
21,316,380     2,086,969       0.09790          

1,134,476       127,921          0.11276          
421,334          58,623            0.13914          

-                       4,204               -                       
-                       183,486          -                       

68,904,607     8,369,640$     0.12147$        

914,600          
72,403,121     

73,317,721

4,413,114       

6.0%

6,025,681$     

0.08322$        

2022
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New Prague Utilities Commission
New Prague, Minnesota

Water Fund
Schedules of Operations Statement Per 1,000 Gallons 

(Unaudited)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022
Operating Revenues

Water sales
Residential 4.34940$        4.72787$        
Commercial 2.03273          2.25680          
Other departments 0.00868          0.00857          
Unbilled revenue (0.03489)        0.08849          

Other operating revenues 0.06265          0.07443          
Total Operating Revenues 6.41857          7.15615          

Operating Expenses
Power for pumping 0.45050          0.49624          
Maintenance - wells, pumps, and storage facilities 0.04559          0.05285          
Maintenance - water main 0.08237          0.06494          
Purification 0.23528          0.28387          
Distribution 1.07523          1.06980          
Salaries 0.60732          0.77069          
General expenses 0.20082          0.23668          
Professional fees 0.05838          0.16307          
Insurance 0.07595          0.06625          
Employee pension and benefits 0.38763          0.78470          
Maintenance - general property 0.06373          0.09490          
Depreciation 1.48124          1.81048          

Total Operating Expenses 4.76404          5.89447          

Operating Income 1.65453          1.26168          

Nonoperating Income (Expenses)
Investment income (loss) 0.31188          (0.24743)        
State aid 0.00012          0.00854          
Other income 0.05652          0.04896          
Water meter income 0.02308          0.02969          
Hookup fees 0.11585          0.10904          
Water access charges 0.01385          -            
Special assessments 0.31771          0.41832          
Interest expense (0.36505)        (0.43351)        
Bond issuance costs (0.05146)        (0.03101)        
Amortization expense 0.10609          0.00933          

Total Nonoperating Income (Expenses) 0.52859          (0.08807)        

Change in Net Position 2.18312$        1.17361$        

1,000 Gallons Sold 292,596 237,904
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New Prague Utilities Commission
New Prague, Minnesota

Electric Utility Fund
Schedule of Plant Assets and Accumulated Depreciation

(Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Balance Asset Balance
December 31, Transferred December 31,

 2022 from City Additions Disposals 2023

Land 41,648$          -$                     -$                     -$                     41,648$          

Construction in progress 2,085,675       -                       503,010          2,341,433       247,252          

Production plant
Structures and improvements 1,598,319       -                       2,188,824       -                       3,787,143       
Boilers and generators 5,527,534       -                       -                       -                       5,527,534       

Total Production Plant 7,125,853       -                       2,188,824       -                       9,314,677       

Transmission and distribution system
Transmission station equipment 601,833          -                       -                       -                       601,833          
Overhead conductors, poles and fixtures 87,734            -                       -                       -                       87,734            
Distribution station equipment 832,234          -                       -                       -                       832,234          
Poles, towers, and fixtures 204,140          -                       -                       -                       204,140          
Overhead conductors and devices 678,998          -                       -                       -                       678,998          
Underground conductors and devices 5,987,192       -                       51,588            -                       6,038,780       
Line transformers 1,972,637       -                       84,639            -                       2,057,276       
Services 347,612          -                       31,590            -                       379,202          
Electric meters 1,058,755       -                       14,898            -                       1,073,653       
Fiber Optic 32,520            -                       57,240            -                       89,760            
Street lighting 1,717,000       -                       237                 -                       1,717,237       
Load management 94,738            -                       2,977              -                       97,715            
SCADA system 123,865          -                       -                       -                       123,865          

Total transmission and distribution system 13,739,258     -                       243,169          -                       13,982,427     

General plant
Structures and improvement 224,059          -                       -                       -                       224,059          
Office furniture and fixtures 89,730            -                       -                       -                       89,730            
Transportation equipment 1,662,831       -                       206,368          28,628            1,840,571       
Shop equipment 56,994            -                       -                       -                       56,994            
Tools and work equipment 237,583          -                       -                       -                       237,583          
Miscellaneous work equipment 97,109            -                       -                       -                       97,109            

Total general plant 2,368,306       -                       206,368          28,628            2,546,046       

Total Electric Plant Assets 25,360,740$  -$                     3,141,371$     2,370,061$     26,132,050$  

Cost
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Depreciated
Balance Asset Current Balance Value

December 31, Transferred Year December 31, December 31,
2022 from City Depreciation Disposals 2023 2023

-$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     41,648$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       247,252          

1,223,946       -                       30,403            -                       1,254,349       2,532,794       
5,455,266       -                       10,570            -                       5,465,836       61,698            
6,679,212       -                       40,973            -                       6,720,185       2,594,492       

497,744          -                       13,031            -                       510,775          91,058            
86,888            -                       182                 -                       87,070            664                 

641,196          -                       22,620            -                       663,816          168,418          
194,801          -                       1,424              -                       196,225          7,915              
564,944          -                       17,417            -                       582,361          96,637            

2,966,171       -                       211,735          -                       3,177,906       2,860,874       
795,216          -                       64,556            -                       859,772          1,197,504       
119,089          -                       10,918            -                       130,007          249,195          
397,410          -                       59,403            -                       456,813          616,840          

2,566              -                       1,084              -                       3,650              86,110            
496,370          -                       75,469            -                       571,839          1,145,398       

48,523            -                       13,526            -                       62,049            35,666            
111,603          -                       1,477              -                       113,080          10,785            

6,922,521       -                       492,842          -                       7,415,363       6,567,064       

184,995          -                       3,830              -                       188,825          35,234            
45,815            -                       16,251            -                       62,066            27,664            

990,396          -                       136,586          28,628            1,098,354       742,217          
56,994            -                       -                       -                       56,994            -                       

236,643          -                       275                 -                       236,918          665                 
54,312            -                       4,755              -                       59,067            38,042            

1,569,155       -                       161,697          28,628            1,702,224       843,822          

15,170,888$  -$                     695,512$        28,628$          15,837,772$  10,294,278$  

Accumulated Depreciation
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New Prague Utilities Commission
New Prague, Minnesota

Water Utility Fund
Schedule of Plant Assets and Accumulated Depreciation

(Unaudited)
For the Year Ended December 31, 2023

Balance Asset Balance
December 31, Transferred December 31,

 2022 from City Additions Disposals 2023

Land 79,520$          -$                     -$                     -$                     79,520$          

Construction in progress 2,942,729       -                       933,620          3,742,915       133,434          

Production plant
Wells, pumps and pump house 2,151,138       -                       46,048            -                       2,197,186       
Building 1,440,600       -                       1,008,685       -                       2,449,285       
Water treatment building 53,117            -                       -                       -                       53,117            
Water treatment equipment 1,253,269       -                       -                       -                       1,253,269       

Total Production Plant 4,898,124       -                       1,054,733       -                       5,952,857       

Distribution system
Elevated storage tank 1,988,570       -                       -                       -                       1,988,570       
Reservoirs 732,530          -                       -                       -                       732,530          
Distribution system 4,478,386       -                       2,734,231       -                       7,212,617       
Water meters 1,079,174       -                       43,973            -                       1,123,147       
PRU valves 903                 -                       -                       -                       903                 
Main Street water treatment upgrade 215,848          -                       -                       -                       215,848          
SCADA system 218,512          -                       -                       -                       218,512          

Total Distribution System 8,713,923       -                       2,778,204       -                       11,492,127     

General plant
Building improvements - office 5,534              -                       -                       -                       5,534              
Office furniture and fixtures 29,980            -                       -                       -                       29,980            
Transportation equipment 243,942          -                       22,330            -                       266,272          
Miscellaneous equipment 39,308            -                       -                       -                       39,308            
Unearned maintenance 24,794            -                       -                       -                       24,794            
Shop equipment 1,418              -                       -                       -                       1,418              

Total General Plant 344,976          -                       22,330            -                       367,306          

Total Water Plant Assets 16,979,272$  -$                     4,788,887$     3,742,915$     18,025,244$  

Cost
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Depreciated
Balance Asset Current Balance Value

December 31, Transferred Year December 31, December 31,
2022 from City Depreciation Disposals 2023 2023

-$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     79,520$          

-                       -                       -                       -                       -                       133,434          

1,967,084       -                       37,635            -                       2,004,719       192,467          
1,000,753       -                       57,674            -                       1,058,427       1,390,858       

36,786            -                       1,274              -                       38,060            15,057            
1,085,017       -                       45,108            -                       1,130,125       123,144          
4,089,640       -                       141,691          -                       4,231,331       1,721,526       

1,084,774       -                       60,260            -                       1,145,034       843,536          
430,901          -                       23,907            -                       454,808          277,722          

1,724,170       -                       112,917          -                       1,837,087       5,375,530       
485,237          -                       54,815            -                       540,052          583,095          

550                 -                       36                    -                       586                 317                 
177,119          -                       5,958              -                       183,077          32,771            
180,039          -                       4,674              -                       184,713          33,799            

4,082,790       -                       262,567          -                       4,345,357       7,146,770       

3,802              -                       138                 -                       3,940              1,594              
23,530            -                       1,312              -                       24,842            5,138              

156,980          -                       24,460            -                       181,440          84,832            
31,760            -                       3,237              -                       34,997            4,311              
24,794            -                       -                       -                       24,794            -                       

1,418              -                       -                       -                       1,418              -                       
242,284          -                       29,147            -                       271,431          95,875            

8,414,714$     -$                     433,405$        -$                     8,848,119$     9,177,125$     

Accumulated Depreciation
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City of New Prague
2023 Financial Statement Audit
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Introduction

• Audit Opinion and Responsibility

• General Fund Results

• Other Governmental Funds

• Enterprise Funds

• Key Performance Indicators

2
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3

Audit Results

Minnesota Legal 

Compliance
Auditor’s Opinion

Unmodified opinion under GAAP

 

No instances of noncompliance
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Audit Results 
2023 Audit Findings

• Limited Segregation of Duties
• Internal Control Finding

• Material Audit Adjustments
• Internal Control Finding

4
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5

General Fund - Fund Balances

49.7% 49.6%

50.0%

50.6% 50.0%

$4,759,060 
$5,167,165 $5,178,692 

$5,483,378 

$6,383,455 $6,379,904 

50% 50%

50%

50% 50%

 $-

 $1,000,000

 $2,000,000

 $3,000,000

 $4,000,000

 $5,000,000

 $6,000,000

 $7,000,000

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
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6

General Fund Budget to Actual
Budgeted

Final Actual Variance with

Amounts Amounts Final Budget

Revenues 6,116,090$     7,009,688$     893,598$        

Expenditures 7,574,455       7,565,722       8,733               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

Over (Under) Expenditures (1,458,365)      (556,034)         902,331           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Sale of capital assets -                        11,102             11,102             

Transfers in 224,985           229,985           5,000               

Transfers out (121,270)         (121,270)         -                        

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 103,715           119,817           16,102             

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,354,650)$    (436,217)         918,433$        

Fund Balances, January 1 5,928,071       

Fund Balances, December 31 5,491,854$     
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7

General Fund Revenues by Type

 $-
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8

General Fund Expenditures by Type

 $-
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9

Special 
Revenue 
Fund 
Balances

 $-

 $200,000

 $400,000

 $600,000

 $800,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,200,000

 Restricted  Assigned

2021 2022 2023

Increase

2023 2022 (Decrease)

Nonmajor

Development Revolving Loan 167,295$        162,256$        5,039$             

Small Cities Grant 32,947             13,632             19,315             

Economic Development 232,977           226,229           6,748               

2016 Small Cities Project 194,778           189,421           5,357               

2017 Small Cities Project 477,163           462,227           14,936             

American Rescue Aid 29,924             3,981               25,943             

Crime Prevention 43,640             46,403             (2,763)              

Total 1,178,724$     1,104,149$     74,575$           

Fund

December 31,

Fund Balances
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Capital 
Projects 
Fund 
Balances

 $(1,000,000)

 $(500,000)

 $-

 $500,000

 $1,000,000

 $1,500,000

 $2,000,000

 $2,500,000

 $3,000,000

 Restricted  Assigned  Unassigned

2021 2022 2023

Increase

2023 2022 (Decrease)

Major

CIP 2023 258,309$        (102,185)$       360,494$        

Nonmajor

10th Ave Federal Grant (16,677)            (6,142)              (10,535)            

Park Dedication Fees 216,377           201,088           15,289             

Park Improvements 121,062           84,992             36,070             

Sidewalk 40,709             39,501             1,208               

Sirens 26,479             20,309             6,170               

Trunk Sewer 2,096,832       2,008,893       87,939             

T.H. 19/11th Ave. Street 157,121           152,592           4,529               

Equipment Fund 10,232             -                        10,232             

General Projects 299,280           275,631           23,649             

T.H. 19 Project (203,625)         (446,152)         242,527           

CIP 2019 -                        93,003             (93,003)            

CIP 2022 235,585           266,292           (30,707)            

CIP 2024 (181,171)         (216)                 (180,955)         

CIP 2025 (216)                 (216)                 -                        

Total Nonmajor 2,801,988       2,689,575       112,413           

Total 3,060,297$     2,587,390$     472,907$        

Fund Balances

Fund

December 31,
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Debt 
Service
Funds

Total Cash

and Total Outstanding Maturity

Investments Assets Debt Date

General Obligation Bonds

G.O. Refunding Bonds of 2013B 451,978$        1,028,644$     1,730,000$     12/01/28

G.O. Special Assessment Bonds

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2007A 154,449           154,449           -                        12/01/22

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2009A 64,985             84,895             74,948             02/01/25

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2011A 289,886           311,493           22,079             02/01/27

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2014A 235,701           345,221           605,000           02/01/30

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2015A 166,495           225,817           240,000           02/01/31

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2019A 779,254           1,394,113       1,815,000       02/01/35

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2020A 1,388,873       1,627,517       740,819           02/01/29

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2021A 322,337           842,515           1,905,000       09/02/37

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2022A 260,640           649,456           260,000           02/01/33

G.O. Improvement Bonds of 2023A 172,747           503,750           2,135,000       02/01/39

Total G.O. Special Assessment Bonds 3,835,367       6,139,226       7,797,846       

Other General Obligation Debt

Indentures of trust (HRA) 10,796             10,796             132,000           12/01/35

Total All Debt Service Funds 4,298,141$     7,178,666$     9,659,846$     

Future Interest on Debt 1,845,918$     

Debt Description
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Debt 
Service
Funds
(Continued)

 $-
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Water
Utility 
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances

 $-
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Sewer 
Utility
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances
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Electric 
Utility
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances
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Golf
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances
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Ambulance
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances
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Storm 
Water 
Utility
Fund

Cash Flows from 
Operations and 
Cash Balances
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Cash and Investments Balances 
by Fund Type
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Taxes
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities 58.8% 57.6% N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County 52.1% 46.9% N/A N/A

City of New Prague 54.7% 51.4% 52.2% 43.8%
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Debt
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities $2,150 $2,198 N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County $1,815 $1,665 N/A N/A

City of New Prague $5,008 $4,995 $4,812 $4,876
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Long Term Debt - Per Capita

2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities 13.39% 13.38% N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County 14.66% 19.38% N/A N/A

City of New Prague 28.28% 38.98% 19.08% 19.16%
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Expenditures
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities $839 $856 N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County $627 $601 N/A N/A

City of New Prague $619 $639 $673 $703
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2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities $558 $527 N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County $425 $412 N/A N/A

City of New Prague $542 $1,056 $310 $493
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Enterprise Funds
Key Performance Indicators

2020 2021 2022 2023

Class 4 Cities 248% 257% N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County 404% 514% N/A N/A

City of New Prague 204% 175% 166% 272%
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Class 4 Cities 216% 187% N/A N/A

Cities in Scott County 259% 299% N/A N/A

City of New Prague 122% 127% 112% 106%
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Your Abdo Team

Brad Falteysek, CPA Abby Schmidt, CPA Kelsey Larson, CPA

Partner Manager Senior Associate 

Ellie Singleton Adam Owens Jack Waltman

Associate Associate Intern
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MEMORANDUM 

 

To: Honorable Mayor, Duane Jirik; Members of the City Council, Shawn Ryan, 
Maggie Bass, Bruce Wolf, Rik Seiler and City Administrator, Joshua 
Tetzlaff  

  
From: Tim Applen Chief of Police / Emergency Manager 
  
Date: Wednesday April 23, 2024 
  
Subject: On-Sale Liquor License with Sunday Sales Application to Ettlins Café Inc, 

dba – Ettlins Café  
 
 
The New Prague Police Department conducted a background check pursuant to City Ordinance 110.16(B) 
on the licensee(s), Ullrich Hans Ettlin, and Christina Lynn Ettlin issued to Ettlins Café Inc, dba – Ettlins Café. 
 
Minnesota Criminal History: None 
Minnesota Driver’s License Check: No Record 
Business Organization Inquiry, MN Secretary of State: Member Active in Good Standing 
 
After reviewing Minnesota Administrative Rule 7515.0410 Eligibility Requirements, the background check did 
not reveal any disqualification. 
 
A.  The applicants are over 21 years of age. 
B.  No information to believe Applicant(s) is not of good, moral character and reputation. 
C.  Applicant has not been convicted within five years of a license violation relating to alcoholic beverages,   
      or any felony. 
D.  Parties with business interest did not have interest in a license which was revoked within the last five  
      years. 
E.  The premises are (will be) part of corporate assets. 
F.  No information to believe discrimination of service would occur. 
 
There were no disqualifiers identified in the investigation of Ullrich Hans Ettlin, and Christina Lynn Ettlin issued 
to Ettlins Café Inc, dba – Ettlins Cafe  
 
Recommendation: Approve On-Sale intoxicating Liquor License and approve Sunday Liquor License 
application to Ettlins Café Inc, dba – Ettlins Café.  

 New Prague Police Department  
 

City of New Prague    In the Counties of Scott & Le Sueur 
 

 118 CENTRAL AVENUE NORTH, SUITE 3, NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 56071 
 

 Phone: (952) 758-2791              Fax: (952) 758-6279 

 

  Website: www.ci.new-prague.mn.us  
   

 Tim Applen, Chief of Police  
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         MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

CC:  JOSHUA M. TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

FROM: KEN ONDICH, PLANNING / COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE #349 REPEALING CHAPTER 152 OF THE NEW 

PRAGUE CITY CODE AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 152 

REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS AND ADOPTION OF A 

RESOLUTION TO PUBLISH BY SUMMARY 

DATE: MAY 14, 2024 

Earlier this year, city staff was notified by FEMA that new Le Sueur County FEMA Flood Insurance 

Rate Maps (FIRMs) will become effective on July 17, 2024 and cover all of New Prague city limits.  In 

order to continue to participate in the FEMA National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP), the City must 

adopt a floodplain ordinance that is in compliance with the program.   

 

City Staff and the Planning Commission reviewed two model ordinances developed by the DNR to be 

compliant.  One model ordinance was an updated version of the city’s current ordinance which is 

considered their “typical” ordinance, and another considered a “simplified” version.  The DNR 

encouraged the City to consider adoption of the “simplified” version as New Prague has historically had 

little to no development in the floodplain and the new ordinance would continue to not allow 

development in the floodplain.   

 

The Planning Commission held the required public hearing on the zoning ordinance amendment on May 

1, 2024 (following the rescheduling of the April 24, 2024 Planning Commission due to a lack of a 

quorum) and received no public comments during the hearing. The Planning Commission motioned (3-

0) to forward the zoning ordinance amendment to the City Council.  

 

At the May 6th City Council meeting, the City Council introduced the ordinance and held a first reading.  

The required 10-day notice was posted the following day on May 7th.     

 

Recommendation 

 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached Ordinance #349 titled “An Ordinance 

Repealing Chapter 152 of the New Prague City Code and Replacing it with a new Chapter 152 

Regarding Floodplain Regulations”.   

 

Staff also recommends approval of the attached resolution to publish by summary.  

 

 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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ORDINANCE NO. 349 

CITY OF NEW PRAGUE 

 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 152 OF THE NEW PRAGUE CITY CODE AND 

REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 152 REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS 

 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEW PRAGUE, SCOTT AND LE SUEUR COUNTIES, 

MINNESOTA ORDAINS: 

 

SECTION 1.  Chapter 152 of the City Code of the City of New Prague is hereby repealed in its entirety. 

 

SECTION 2.  The City Code of the City of New Prague is hereby amended by replacing it with a new Chapter 

152 as follows: 

 

Chapter 152  FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS  

  

152.01  Statutory Authorization and Purpose.  

152.02  Definitions. 

152.03  Jurisdiction and Districts.  

152.04  Permitted Activities and Standards in the Floodplain District.  

152.05  Nonconformities.  

152.06  Administration.  

152.07  Penalties and Enforcement. 

152.08  Amendments.  

 

152.01 STATUTORY AUTHORIZATION AND PURPOSE 

 

A. Statutory Authorization.  This floodplain ordinance is adopted pursuant to the authorization and 

policies contained in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 103F; Minnesota Rules, parts 6120.5000 – 

6120.6200; the rules and regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) in 44 CFR § 

59 to 80; and the planning and zoning enabling legislation in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 462.  

 

B.   Purpose 

a.  This ordinance regulates development in the flood hazard areas of the City of New Prague. 

These flood hazard areas are subject to periodic inundation, which may result in loss of life and 

property, health and safety hazards, disruption of commerce and governmental services, 

extraordinary public expenditures for flood protection and relief, and impairment of the tax 

base. It is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the public health, safety, and general 

welfare by minimizing these losses and disruptions. 

b.  This ordinance is adopted in the public interest to promote sound land use practices, and 

floodplains are a land resource to be developed in a manner which will result in minimum loss 

of life and threat to health, and reduction of private and public economic loss caused by 

flooding. 

c.  This ordinance is adopted to maintain eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program. 
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d. This ordinance is also intended to preserve the natural characteristics and functions of 

watercourses and floodplains in order to moderate flood and stormwater impacts, improve 

water quality, reduce soil erosion, protect aquatic and riparian habitat, provide recreational 

opportunities, provide aesthetic benefits and enhance community and economic development. 

C.  Abrogation and Greater Restrictions.  It is not intended by this ordinance to repeal, abrogate, or 

impair any existing easements, covenants, or private agreements. The standards in this ordinance 

take precedence over any less restrictive, conflicting local laws, ordinances, or codes. All other 

ordinances inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the inconsistency 

only. 

D.     Warning and Disclaimer of Liability.  This ordinance does not imply that areas outside the 

floodplain districts or land uses permitted within such districts will be free from flooding or flood 

damages. Not all flood risk is mapped. Larger floods do occur and the flood height may be increased 

by man-made or natural causes, such as ice jams or bridge openings restricted by debris. This 

ordinance does not create liability on the part of the City of New Prague or its officers or employees 

for any flood damages that result from reliance on this ordinance or any administrative decision 

lawfully made hereunder. 

E.     Severability.  If any section, clause, provision, or portion of this ordinance is adjudged 

unconstitutional or invalid by a court of law, the remainder of this ordinance shall not be affected 

and shall remain in full force. 

152.02 DEFINITIONS 

A. Definitions.  Unless specifically defined, words or phrases used in this ordinance must be interpreted 

according to common usage and so as to give this ordinance its most reasonable application. 

a.  Base Flood.  The flood having a one-percent chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given 

year. “Base flood” is synonymous with the term “regional flood” used in Minnesota Rules, part 

6120.5000. 

b.  Base Flood Elevation (BFE).  The elevation of the base flood, regional flood, or one-percent 

annual chance flood. The term “base flood elevation” is used in the flood insurance study. 

c.  Development.  Any man-made change to improved or unimproved real estate including, but 

not limited to buildings or other structures, mining, dredging, filling, grading, paving, 

excavation or drilling operations, or storage of materials or equipment. 

d.  Farm Fence.  An open type of fence of posts and horizontally run wire, further specified in 

Minnesota Statutes, section 344.02 Subd. 1(a - d).  

e.  Flood Fringe.  The portion of the one-percent annual chance floodplain located outside of the 

floodway. 

f.  Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM).  An official map of a community, on which the Federal 

Insurance Administrator has delineated both the special hazard areas and the risk premium 

zones applicable to the community. A FIRM that has been made available digitally is called a 

Digital Flood Insurance Rate Map (DFIRM). 

g.  Floodplain.  The beds, channel and the areas adjoining a wetland, lake or watercourse, or other 

source which have been or hereafter may be inundated by the base flood. 

h.  Floodway.  The bed of a wetland or lake and the channel of a watercourse and those portions of 

the adjoining floodplain which must be reserved to carry or store the base flood discharge 

without cumulatively increasing the water surface elevation more than one-half foot. 
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i.  Manufactured Home.  A structure, transportable in one or more sections, which is built on a 

permanent chassis and is designed for use with or without a permanent foundation when 

attached to the required utilities.  The term “manufactured home” does not include the term 

“recreational vehicle.”   

j.  Recreational Vehicle.  A vehicle that is built on a single chassis, is 400 square feet or less when 

measured at the largest horizontal projection, is designed to be self-propelled or permanently 

towable by a light duty truck, and is designed primarily not for use as a permanent dwelling but 

as temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, travel, or seasonal use. Those vehicles 

not meeting this definition shall be considered a structure for the purposes of this ordinance. 

For the purposes of this ordinance, the term recreational vehicle is synonymous with the term 

“travel trailer/travel vehicle.” 

k.  Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE).  An elevation no lower than one foot above the 

elevation of the base flood plus any increases in water surface elevation caused by 

encroachments on the floodplain that result from designation of a floodway. These increases in 

water surface elevations are typically identified in the Floodway Data Tables, found in the 

Flood Insurance Study. 

l.  Structure.  A roofed building, including a gas or liquid storage tank, that is principally above 

ground, as well as a manufactured home. Recreational vehicles not considered travel ready, as 

detailed in Section 4.40, shall also be considered a nonconforming structure for the purposes of 

this ordinance. 

m.  Substantial Damage.  Damage of any origin sustained by a structure where the cost of restoring 

the structure to its before damaged condition would equal or exceed 50 percent of the market 

value of the structure before the damage occurred. 

n.  Substantial Improvement.  Any reconstruction, rehabilitation, addition, or other improvement 

of a structure, the cost of which equals or exceeds 50 percent of the market value of the 

structure before the “start of construction” of the improvement.  This term includes structures 

that have incurred “substantial damage,” regardless of the actual repair work performed.  The 

term does not, however, include either: 

i.  Any project for improvement of a structure to correct existing violations of state or local 

health, sanitary, or safety code specifications which have been identified by the local code 

enforcement official and which are the minimum necessary to assure safe living conditions.  

ii. Any alteration of a “historic structure,” provided that the alteration will not preclude the 

structure’s continued designation as a “historic structure.”  For the purpose of this 

ordinance, “historic structure” is defined in 44 CFR § 59.1. 

 

152.03 JURISDICTION AND DISTRICTS 

A.  Lands to Which Ordinance Applies.  This ordinance applies to all lands under the jurisdiction of 

the City of New Prague within the Floodplain, shown as Zones A or AE on the Flood Insurance Rate 

Map panels referenced in Section 3.2. 

a.  The standards imposed in this overlay district are in addition to any other requirements. In case 

of a conflict, the more restrictive standards will apply. 

b.  Where a conflict exists between the floodplain limits illustrated on the official floodplain maps 

and actual field conditions (as illustrated in Figure 1), the Base Flood Elevation (BFE) shall be 
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the governing factor in locating the outer boundaries of the one-percent annual chance 

floodplain. 

c.  Persons contesting the location of the district boundaries will be given a reasonable opportunity 

to present their case to the City and to submit technical evidence. 

B.  Incorporation of Maps by Reference.  The following maps together with all attached material are 

hereby adopted by reference and declared to be a part of the official zoning map and this ordinance: 

• Flood Insurance Studies 

o Flood Insurance Study for Scott County and Incorporated Areas, dated February 12, 

2021 

o Flood Insurance Study for Le Sueur County and Incorporated Areas, dated July 17, 

2024 

• Flood Insurance Rate Map Panels 

o Scott County Panel 27139C0280E, dated February 12, 2024 

o Scott County Panel 27139C0290E, dated February 12, 2024 

o Scott County Panel 27139C0295E, dated February 12, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0086E, dated July 17, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0087E, dated July 17, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0089E, dated July 17, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0091E, dated July 17, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0093E, dated July 17, 2024 

o Le Sueur County Panel 27079C0100E, dated July 17, 2024 

 

These materials are prepared by the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and are on file at New 

Prague City Hall.   

C. Annexations:  The Flood Insurance Rate Map panels referenced in Section 3.2 may include 

floodplain areas that lie outside of the corporate boundaries of the City of New Prague at the time of 

adoption of this ordinance.  If any of these floodplain land areas are annexed into the City of New 

Prague after the date of adoption of this ordinance, the newly annexed floodplain lands will be 

subject to the provisions of this ordinance immediately upon the date of annexation. Annexations 

into panels not referenced in Section 3.2 require ordinance amendment in accordance with Section 

8.0. 

 

152.04  PERMITTED ACTIVITIES AND STANDARDS IN THE FLOODPLAIN DISTRICT 

A. Permitted Activities.  A permit must be obtained from the Zoning Administrator to verify 

compliance with all applicable standards outlined in this ordinance prior to the following uses or 

activities:  

a.  Any addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration to a nonconforming structure as 

specified in Section 5.0 of this ordinance.  Normal maintenance and repair also requires a 

permit if such work, separately or in conjunction with other planned work, constitutes a 

substantial improvement as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance. 

b.  Any use that requires fill, excavation, storage of materials, or placement of anything that may 

cause a potential obstruction, as well as any other form of development as defined in Section 

2.0 of this ordinance. 

B Activities Not Requiring a Permit. Certain uses or activities may be exempt from obtaining a 

permit, such as planting a garden, farming, or other obviously insignificant activities such as putting 

233

Section 10, Item a.



 

up a mailbox or flagpole. Farm fences, as defined in Section 2.0 of this ordinance, are not considered 

to be an obstruction, and as such, do not require a permit. A local permit is not required if a public 

waters work permit has been obtained from the Department of Natural Resources, unless a 

significant area above the ordinary high water level is also to be disturbed. The continuation of 

existing uses, when the associated activities do not encroach further on the regulatory floodplain or 

trigger associated standards in this ordinance, do not require a permit. 

C. Minimum Development Standards. 

A.  All development must: 

a.  Be designed (or modified) and adequately anchored to prevent flotation, collapse, or lateral 

movement resulting from hydrodynamic and hydrostatic loads, including the effects of 

buoyancy; 

b. Be constructed with materials and equipment resistant to flood damage; 

c. Be constructed by methods and practices that minimize flood damage; 

d. Be reasonably safe from flooding and consistent with the need to minimize flood damage; 

e. Be assured to provide adequate drainage to reduce exposure to flood hazards; 

f. Not be detrimental to uses in adjoining areas; and 

g. Not adversely affect the efficiency or restrict the flood carrying capacity of the channel and 

adjoining floodplain of any tributary watercourse or drainage system. 

B. Buildings and Structures. No new structures, such as buildings or accessory structures may 

be permitted in the regulatory floodplain. Modifications and alterations of nonconforming 

structures is subject to the standards in Section 5.0. 

C. Subdivisions. All new lots must be able to accommodate for a building site with a natural 

grade outside of the floodplain. All subdivisions must have vehicular access both to the 

subdivision and to the individual building sites no lower than two feet below the Regulatory 

Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). 

D. Encroachment Analysis. Development in the following areas requires hydrologic and 

hydraulic analysis performed by a professional engineer, or using other standard engineering 

practices (e.g. projects that restore the site to the previous cross-sectional area). 

a. In a floodway, development may not result in any of the following during the one-percent 

annual chance flood: cause a stage increase of 0.00 feet or greater, obstruct flood flows, or 

increase velocities.  

b. In areas where a floodway has not been delineated, development may not allow stage 

increases more than one-half (0.5) foot at any point during the one-percent chance flood. 

This evaluation must include the cumulative effects of previous encroachments. A lesser 

water surface elevation increase than one-half (0.5) foot is required if, due to the water 

surface level increase, increased flood damages would potentially result. 

E. Fences not meeting the definition of farm fences are not permitted. 

F. Transportation Facilities.  Railroad tracks, roads, and bridges must be elevated to the 

Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE) where such facilities are essential to the orderly 

functioning of the area, or where failure or interruption would result in danger to public health 

or safety. Minor or auxiliary roads or railroads may be constructed at a lower elevation where 

failure or interruption of transportation services would not endanger the public health or safety. 
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All public transportation facilities should be designed to minimize increases in flood 

elevations. 

G. Public Utilities.  All utilities such as gas, electrical, sewer, and water supply systems to be 

located in the floodplain must be elevated and/or floodproofed to the Regulatory Flood 

Protection Elevation (RFPE), be located and constructed to minimize or eliminate flood 

damage, and be designed to eliminate infiltration of flood waters into the systems and 

discharges from the systems into flood waters. All public utilities should be designed to 

minimize increases in flood elevations. New solid waste management facilities, as defined in 

Minnesota Rules, part 7035.0300, are prohibited. Water supply systems are subject to the 

provisions in Minnesota Rules, part 4725.4350.  

H. Potential Pollutants. Materials that, in time of flooding, are buoyant, flammable, explosive, or 

could be injurious to human, animal, or plant life, as well as those likely to cause pollution of 

the waters, such as sewage; sand; rock; wrecked and discarded equipment; dredged spoil; 

municipal, agricultural or industrial waste; and other wastes as further defined in Minnesota 

Statutes, Section 115.01, are prohibited. 

I. Land Alterations. In areas within 25 feet of the ordinary high water level, land alterations 

shall be restricted to: 

a. the minimum required to accommodate beach and access areas, not to exceed a volume 

greater than 10 cubic yards; and 

b. the minimum required to accommodate for public utilities, roads, railroad tracks, bridges, 

and shoreline stabilization projects to correct an identified erosion problem, as verified by a 

qualified resource agency or the zoning administrator. 

J.  Recreational vehicles must be travel ready, meeting the following criteria: 

a. The vehicle must be fully licensed. 

b. The vehicle must be ready for highway use, meaning on wheels or the internal jacking 

system, attached to the site only by quick disconnect type utilities. 

c. No permanent structural type additions may be attached to the vehicle. 

K. Private On-site Water Supply, Individual Sewage Treatment Systems, and other Service 

Facilities shall be subject to applicable provisions detailed in Section 4.37. Replacement of on-

site sewage treatment systems are to be constructed to avoid impairment to them or 

contamination from them during times of flooding, shall not be located in a designated 

floodway, and are subject to the provisions in Minnesota Rules, parts 7080.2270. No new 

private service facilities may be permitted in the regulatory floodplain. 

 

152.05 NONCONFORMITIES 

A.  Continuance of Nonconformities: A use, structure, or occupancy of land which was lawful before 

the passage or amendment of this ordinance, but which is not in conformity with the provisions of 

this ordinance, may be continued subject to the following conditions: 

a.  Within the floodway, or where the floodway has not been delineated, any expansion or 

enlargement of uses or structures is prohibited. 

b.  Any addition, modification, rehabilitation, repair, or alteration shall be in conformance with the 

provisions of this ordinance, shall not increase the flood damage potential or increase the 

235

Section 10, Item a.



 

degree of obstruction to flood flows, and where applicable, must be protected to the Regulatory 

Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). 

c. If any nonconforming structure is determined to be substantially damaged or substantially 

improved based on the procedures in Section 5.3, it may not be reconstructed except in 

conformity with the provisions of this ordinance. 

d. If any nonconforming use, or any use of a nonconforming structure, is discontinued for more 

than one year, any future use of the premises must conform to this ordinance. 

B. Standards for Modifications and Alterations of Nonconforming Structures.  In addition to the 

standards identified in 4.3, the following standards and procedures apply to additions, modifications, 

rehabilitations, repairs, alterations, or maintenance of nonconforming structures: 

a. All structures, including manufactured homes, must be elevated on fill so that the lowest floor 

of the lowest enclosed area (including basement) is at or above the Regulatory Flood 

Protection Elevation (RFPE). The finished fill elevation shall be at or above the elevation 

associated with the base flood plus any stage increases that result from designation of a 

floodway. Fill must extend at the same elevation at least 15 feet beyond the outside limits of 

the structure. Elevations must be certified by a registered professional engineer, land surveyor 

or other qualified person designated by the Zoning Administrator.   

b. Electrical, heating, ventilation, ductwork, plumbing, and air conditioning equipment and other 

service facilities are designed and/or located so as to prevent water from entering or 

accumulating within the components during conditions of flooding.  

C. Substantial Improvement and Substantial Damage Determinations. Prior to issuing any permits 

for additions, modifications, rehabilitations, repairs, alterations, or maintenance to nonconforming 

structures, the Zoning Administrator is required to determine if such work constitutes substantial 

improvement or repair of a substantially damaged structure. A determination must be made in 

accordance with the following procedures: 

a.  Estimate the market value of the structure. In the case of repairs, the market value of the 

structure shall be the market value before the damage occurred and before any restoration or 

repairs are made. 

b.  Estimate the cost of the project. The property owner shall accommodate for inspection, and 

furnish other documentation needed by the zoning administrator to evaluate costs. 

i.  Improvement costs shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor, as well 

as the costs of all ordinary maintenance and upkeep carried out over the past one year. 

ii.  Costs to repair damages shall be comprised of the market rate of all materials and labor 

required to restore a building to its pre-damaged condition regardless of the work proposed, 

as well as associated improvement costs if structure is being restored beyond its pre-

damaged condition. 

c. Compare the cost of the improvement, repairs, or combination thereof to the estimated market 

value of the structure, and determine whether the proposed work constitutes substantial 

improvement or repair of a substantially damaged structure, as defined in Section 2.0 of this 

ordinance. 

d. Based on this determination, the zoning administrator shall prepare a determination letter and 

notify the property owner accordingly. Structures determined to be substantially damaged or 

substantially improved may not be reconstructed except in conformity with the provisions of 

this ordinance. 
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152.06 ADMINISTRATION 

A. Duties.  A Zoning Administrator or other official must administer and enforce this ordinance. 

a.  Permit Application Requirements.  Permit applications must be submitted to the Zoning 

Administrator. The permit application must include the following, as applicable: 

i.  A site plan showing all existing or proposed buildings, structures, service facilities, 

potential obstructions, and pertinent design features having an influence on the permit. 

ii.  Location and detail of grading, fill, or storage of materials. 

iii. Copies of any required local, state or federal permits or approvals. 

iiii. Other relevant information requested by the Zoning Administrator as necessary to properly 

evaluate the permit application. 

b.  Recordkeeping.  The Zoning Administrator must maintain applicable records in perpetuity 

documenting: 

i.  Encroachment analysis, as detailed in Section 4.34. 

ii.  Final elevations, as applicable, detailing the elevation to which structures and 

improvements to structures are constructed or floodproofed. Elevations shall be determined 

by an engineer, architect, surveyor or other qualified individual, as approved by the Zoning 

Administrator. 

iii.  Substantial damage and substantial improvement determinations, as detailed in Section 5.3, 

including the cost of improvements, repairs, and market value. 

iiii. All variance actions, including justification for their issuance, and must report such 

variances as requested by the Federal Emergency Management Agency. 

B. Variances 

a. An application for a variance to the provisions of this ordinance will be processed and 

reviewed in accordance with Minnesota Statutes, section 462.357, Subd. 6(2) and this 

ordinance. 

b. Variances must not be issued within any designated regulatory floodway if any increase in 

flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.  

c. Variances from the provisions in this ordinance may only be issued by a community upon:  

i.  A showing of good and sufficient cause,  

ii.  A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to 

the applicant, and  

iii.  A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, 

additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause 

fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances. 

d. Variances from the provisions in this ordinance may only be issued upon a determination that 

the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief. 

e. Variances must be consistent with the general purpose of these standards and the intent of 

applicable provisions in state and federal law.  
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f. Though variances may be used to modify permissible methods of flood protection, no variance 

shall permit a lesser degree of flood protection than the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation 

(RFPE). 

g. The Zoning Administrator must notify the applicant for a variance that: 

 i.  The issuance of a variance to construct a structure below the base flood level will result in 

increased premium rates for flood insurance up to amounts as high as $25 for $100 of 

insurance coverage and 

ii.  Such construction below the base or regional flood level increases risks to life and 

property. Such notification must be maintained with a record of all variance actions. 

C. Notifications for Watercourse Alterations:  Before authorizing any alteration or relocation of a 

river or stream, the Zoning Administrator must notify adjacent communities.  If the applicant has 

applied for a permit to work in public waters pursuant to Minnesota Statute, Section 103G.245, this 

will suffice as adequate notice.  A copy of the notification must also be submitted to FEMA. 

D.  Notification to FEMA When Physical Changes Increase or Decrease Base Flood Elevations:  

Where physical changes affecting flooding conditions may increase or decrease the water surface 

elevation of the base flood, the City of New Prague must notify FEMA of the changes in order to 

obtain a Letter of Map Revision (LOMR), by submitting a copy of the relevant technical or scientific 

data as soon as practicable, but no later than six months after the date such supporting information 

becomes available. Within areas where the floodway has not been delineated, a map revision is only 

required if development results in stage increases greater than 0.5 feet. 

E. Notifications to the Department of Natural Resources. 

a. All notices of public hearings to consider variances or conditional uses under this ordinance 

must be sent via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area 

hydrologist at least ten (10) days before the hearings. Notices of hearings to consider 

subdivisions/plats must include copies of the subdivision/plat. 

b. A copy of all decisions granting variances and conditional uses under this ordinance must be 

sent via electronic mail to the Department of Natural Resources respective area hydrologist 

within ten (10) days of final action. 

 

152.07  PENALTIES AND ENFORCEMENT 

A.  Uses in Violation of the Ordinance.  Every structure, fill, deposit, or other use placed or maintained 

in the floodplain in violation of this ordinance shall be considered a public nuisance.  

B.  Civil Remedies. The creation of a public nuisance may be enjoined and the maintenance of a public 

nuisance under this ordinance may be abated by an action brought by the City of New Prague or the 

Department of Natural Resources.  

C.  Enforcement.  Violations of the provisions of this ordinance constitutes a misdemeanor and is 

punishable as defined by law. The Zoning Administrator may utilize the full array of enforcement 

actions available to it including but not limited to prosecution and fines, injunctions, after-the-fact 

permits, orders for corrective measures or a request to the National Flood Insurance Program for 

denial of flood insurance. The City of New Prague must act in good faith to enforce these official 

controls and to correct ordinance violations to the extent possible so as not to jeopardize its 

eligibility in the National Flood Insurance Program. 
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152.08  AMENDMENTS 

A. Ordinance Amendments.  Any revisions to the floodplain maps by the Federal Emergency 

Management Agency or annexations of new map panels require an ordinance amendment to update 

the map references in Section 3.2 of this ordinance. 

B.  Required Approval: All amendments to this ordinance must be submitted to the Department of 

Natural Resources (DNR) for review and approval prior to adoption, for compliance with state and 

federal rules and requirements. The floodplain ordinance shall not be considered valid until 

approved. 

 

SECTION 3.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its publication, in accordance with Section 

3.13 of the New Prague City Charter. 

 

Introduced to the city council of the city of New Prague, Minnesota, the 6th day of May, 2024. 

 

The required 10 days posted notice was completed on the city website and city hall bulletin board on or before 

May 7th, 2024. 

 

Passed by the city council of the city of New Prague, Minnesota, the 20th day of May 2024 and to be published 

on the 30th of May, 2024. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

       Mayor 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       City Administrator 
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-05-20-01 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE #349 BY 

TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 

 

WHEREAS, on May 20th, 2024 the City Council of the City of New Prague (the “City”) 

adopted Ordinance No. 349, entitled “AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 152 

OF THE NEW PRAGUE CITY CODE AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW 

CHAPTER 152 REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ordinance is 10 pages long; and 

 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subdivision 4 allows publication by 

title and summary in the case of lengthy ordinances; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,   

 

1. The City Council of the City of New Prague has adopted Ordinance No. 349, 

entitled “AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 152 OF THE NEW 

PRAGUE CITY CODE AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 152 

REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS”. 

 

2. That the following summary clearly describes the subject matter of such 

Ordinance sufficient to clearly inform the public of the intent and effect of the 

Ordinance: 

 

The New Prague City Council adopted a newly revised 

floodplain ordinance (#349) at the May 20th City Council 

meeting. The ordinance was based off the Minnesota DNR 

“simplified” model floodplain ordinance, to satisfy the state 

and federal standards detailed in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 

103F; Minnesota Rules, parts 6120.5000 – 6120.6200; the 

rules and regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program 

in 44 CFR 59 to 78. The ordinance provides the general 

regulations for development in floodplains, as well as 

procedures guiding administrative responsibilities.  A copy of 

Ordinance #349 in its entirety is available for inspection at 

New Prague City Hall, 118 Central Ave. N., New Prague, MN  

56071 or www.ci.new-prague.mn.us.  

 

3. The City Administrator is directed to publish the summary contained in paragraph 

2 above in lieu of publication of the entire ordinance. 
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New Prague City Council: 

             

      ________________________________ 

      Duane J. Jirik, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua M. Tetzlaff, City Administrator 
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CITY OF NEW PRAGUE, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 24-05-20-01 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING PUBLICATION OF ORDINANCE #349 BY 

TITLE AND SUMMARY 

 

 

WHEREAS, on May 20th, 2024 the City Council of the City of New Prague (the “City”) 

adopted Ordinance No. 349, entitled “AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 152 

OF THE NEW PRAGUE CITY CODE AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW 

CHAPTER 152 REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS”; and 

 

WHEREAS, the ordinance is 10 pages long; and 

 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Section 412.191, subdivision 4 allows publication by 

title and summary in the case of lengthy ordinances; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,   

 

1. The City Council of the City of New Prague has adopted Ordinance No. 349, 

entitled “AN ORDINANCE REPEALING CHAPTER 152 OF THE NEW 

PRAGUE CITY CODE AND REPLACING IT WITH A NEW CHAPTER 152 

REGARDING FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS”. 

 

2. That the following summary clearly describes the subject matter of such 

Ordinance sufficient to clearly inform the public of the intent and effect of the 

Ordinance: 

 

The New Prague City Council adopted a newly revised 

floodplain ordinance (#349) at the May 20th City Council 

meeting. The ordinance was based off the Minnesota DNR 

“simplified” model floodplain ordinance, to satisfy the state 

and federal standards detailed in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 

103F; Minnesota Rules, parts 6120.5000 – 6120.6200; the 

rules and regulations of the National Flood Insurance Program 

in 44 CFR 59 to 78. The ordinance provides the general 

regulations for development in floodplains, as well as 

procedures guiding administrative responsibilities.  A copy of 

Ordinance #349 in its entirety is available for inspection at 

New Prague City Hall, 118 Central Ave. N., New Prague, MN  

56071 or www.ci.new-prague.mn.us.  

 

3. The City Administrator is directed to publish the summary contained in paragraph 

2 above in lieu of publication of the entire ordinance. 
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New Prague City Council: 

             

      ________________________________ 

      Duane J. Jirik, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua M. Tetzlaff, City Administrator 
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MEMORANDUM 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

FROM: JOSHUA TETZLAFF, CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

SUBJECT: 2024 BOARD/COMMISSION APPOINTMENTS 

DATE:  MAY 14, 2024 

On May 6th, May 13th, and May 20th, the City Council met to interview the below candidates for positions on 

the City’s boards and commissions. Now that the interviews have taken place, the City Council may appoint 

the people into the positions who it feels are the best fit for the open seats. 

 

• EDA Board – One 6-year term (expiring 5/31/2030) 

o Nick Slavik (incumbent) 

 

• Golf Board – Three 3-year terms (expiring 5/31/2027) 

o Graham Kuehner (new) 

o Bob Cunniff (incumbent) 

 

• Park Board – One 4-year term (expiring 5/31/2027), one 1-year partial term (expiring 5/31/2025); 

and one 1-year youth term (expiring 5/31/2025) 

o Shannon Sticha (new) 

o Youth representative (new) 

 

• Planning Commission – One 4-year term (expiring 5/31/2028) 

o Ann Gengel (incumbent) 

o Debra Tharaldson (new) 

 

• Utilities Commission – One 4-year term (expiring 5/31/2028) 

o Chuck Nickolay (new) 

o Debra Tharaldson (new) 

 

 

Recommendation 

Staff recommends filling the open board and commission vacancies. 

 

118 Central Avenue North, New Prague, MN  56071 

phone: 952-758-4401   fax: 952-758-1149 
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Public Hearing for Draft 
Lower Minnesota River 
East Comprehensive 
Watershed Management 
Plan 
New Prague, Minn.-Thursday, May 30th 
2024.  The Lower Minnesota River East 
Partnership has worked together in order to 
draft a comprehensive watershed 
management plan for the Lower Minnesota 
River East Watershed.   

A public hearing on the draft plan for the 
Lower Minnesota River East Watershed is 
scheduled for Thursday May 30, 2024 at 
5:30 pm.  The public hearing will be held at 
the New Prague Fire Department.  The 
physical address is: 505 5th Ave NW, New 
Prague, MN 56071.   

The public is welcome to come early at 
4:30pm to ask any questions about the 
Comprehensive Watershed Management 
Plan.  Additionally, there will be a short 
presentation about the Plan that will begin at 
5:00pm.  

The Lower Minnesota River East Policy 
Committee will hear public input on the 
draft comprehensive watershed management 
plan that sets goals and priorities for a 10-
year period.  The public can view the draft 
plan online on the Lower Minnesota River 
East Watershed website 
(https://www.lowermnrivereast.org/).  

Under the One Watershed One Plan 
program, the state aims to create plans based 
on watershed boundaries rather than smaller, 
political boundaries. This will ensure that 
the most significant threats to a watershed’s 
water resources, including surface and 

ground water, are addressed and provide the 
greatest environmental and public benefits. 
The plan provides a framework for local 
government units to work together across 
political boundaries in order to implement 
projects and practices that protect and 
improve watershed health. 

Partners in the One Watershed, One Plan 
effort include Le Sueur and Rice Counties, 
Le Sueur, Rice, and Scott Soil and Water 
Conservation Districts, and the Lower 
Minnesota River Watershed District.       

Questions?  Contact: Holly Bushman, Le 
Sueur County, 507-357-8540, Email: 
hbushman@co.le-sueur.mn.us  
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New Prague Park Board Meeting Minutes 

April 9, 2024 

Meeting Minutes 

New Prague Park Board 

Tuesday, April 9th, 2024 

6:00 PM 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order  

 

The regular meeting was called to order at City Hall at 6:02 PM by Chair Joe Barten. 

Members present were Joe Barten, Christine Wolf, Matt Becka, and Jessica Dohm. 

Absent was Al Hansen and Maggie Bass. Staff present were Ken Ondich – Planning / 

Community Development Director and Kyra Chapman – Planner.  

 

2.  Approve Previous Meeting Minutes 

March 12, 2024 Regular Meeting 

 

A motion was made by Wolf seconded by Becka, to approve the March 12, 2024, regular 

meeting minutes. Motion carried (4-0).  

 

3. Review Financial Reports 

 

Planning Director Ondich presented the March financial report. The park fees were 

collected from two commercial building projects and from two new residential home 

permits so far this year. Some of the park revenue is not reflected in the financial that’s in 

the packet. Approximately $5,800 needs to be added to the Park Equipment Fund 230. 

This will be updated for the next park board meeting.  

 

A motion was made by Becka, seconded by Dohm, to approve the financial reports. 

Motion carried (4-0). 

 

4. Creek Clean Up Discussion 

 

Planner Chapman explained that the creek clean up flyer and information has been posted 

on the City’s Facebook page and posted in the hallway on April 7th. Staff will also post 

this on the City’s news and announcements webpage. Property owners who signed the 

Temporary Access Agreements were also sent flyers, inviting them to the event.  

 

Barten explained that he posted the flyer on Facebook’s New Prague Happenings. He 

suggested that he could do some door knocking for gaps of property owners.  

 

Planner Chapman said she could print off Temporary Access Agreement forms. 

 

Barten stated that by Wednesday, there will be a better understanding of the number of 

volunteers. The Park Board will be able to split into separate group leaders. The public 

could be notified on the Friday before. 

 

Dohm stated that individuals could meet up and park at Autowash Systems Inc. 
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Dohm asked if the registration link for the creek clean up could be sent to the Park Board 

members. 

 

Barten suggested that all Park Board members should arrive at 9:00am at ASI parking lot. 

 

5. Wold Recreation Needs Study – Review Council Presentation 

 

Planning Director Ondich introduced the Wold Recreation Needs Study. Wold conducted 

a study that reviewed the existing athletic fields/facilities as well as their condition, 

scheduling, and usage. The objective of the study was to determine if the recreational 

facilities meet the needs of the community. In the study, peak usage was from 5-7pm and 

vacant for the majority of the day. The results of the study found that New Prague has 

adequate facilities based on the city’s population. The study will be added as an 

addendum to the Comprehensive Plan. As the City continues to grow, the City will look 

at the fields and determine their demand. In the future, the City and the New Prague Area 

School District may need to partner together to identify a potential field house.  

 

Barten mentioned that there is a lack of wayfinding field signs. For instance, the sports 

game may be held on field 4 but there is no signage that identifies this.  

 

6. Large Assembly Permit Requests 

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that the Chamber of Commerce will be hosting the 

Czech Out New Prague, Dozinky Festival, and Holiday Parade Event again this year. All 

the event details and conditions are the same as last except for date changes. 

 

Park Board expressed their gratitude for the good work that the Chamber of Commerce 

does to host these events. 

 

A motion was made by Barten, seconded by Dohm to recommend approval of the three 

large assembly permits to the city council. Motion carried (4-0). 

 

Planning Director Ondich provided an update on the Run New Prague Event which was a 

large assembly permit the Park Board approved earlier this year. MnDOT did not approve 

the permit to close highway 19 for the requested two hours. As a solution, runners will 

begin the race at Central Plaza. For the event, there will be temporary no parking signs in 

the south parking lane and people will run in the parking lane. MnDOT does not have 

control over the parking lane. 

 

7. Miscellaneous 

 

a. Possible Historical Society Improvement Near Centennial Cabin 

Planning Director Ondich shared that the New Prague Area Historical Society 

would like to add a raised concrete platform near the Centennial Cabin in 

Memorial Park. They intend to install it near north/northwest of the cabin near 

where an existing tree is marked for removal.  
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Barten inquired what kind of tree will be removed. 

 

Planning Director Ondich clarified that it’s an old oak tree that has a hole near the 

base of the trunk.  

 

Dohm inquired what the concrete stage will be. 

 

Planning Director Ondich replied that it would be a concrete pad that may be 

about a foot tall. They intend to put a tent on the pad during the demonstrations. 

 

Becka asked if the Historical Society hosts a lot of events. 

 

Planning Director Ondich believed that they wanted to host more events. They 

have school groups that go out there occasionally, and during Dozinky, and 

Parade of Lights. 

 

Dohm asked who would pay for the concrete. 

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that the Historical Society would pay for the 

concrete. 

 

Barten inquired what the master plan or the ultimate vision of the area. He 

believed that the northwest location of the concrete pad would be an odd place 

since it’s in the opposite direction of where you access the cabin. 

 

Wolf stated that concrete pad doesn’t go with the site. If it’s supposed to be 

historical, it takes away from the cabins. 

 

Becka stated that it would look better if the raised stage looked more natural. For 

instance, it could be gravel with landscaping and it would look better. 

 

The Park Board wanted a plan for what the site intends to look like in the future. 

 

b. POPS Update– Planner Chapman explained that in the most recent POPS 

newsletter, POPS Gala II will occur on Friday October 4th from 6:00pm-9:00pm 

at the Park Ballroom. There will be live music, and silent auctions. Last year’s 

gala raised $20,000 in funds. So far, POPS has received $830,000 in pledges. On 

Saturday June 1st from 1:00pm-4:00pm there will be an event called Bourbon and 

Broz, where there will be a live performance, whiskey tasting, 1319 appetizers, 

and cigars. 

 

c. Disc Golf Course Update – Planner Chapman stated that staff will begin 

ordering the vegetation, landscaping features, and baskets for the disc golf course 

in the next few weeks. Some landscaping features include blanket flowers, 

butterfly milkweed, small pavestone retaining wall, mulch, and rocks. This project 
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was made possible through the Southern Minnesota Initiative Foundation’s Small 

Town Grant. 

 

d. 2024 Tree Giveaway Update – Planner Chapman explained that as of 4/9/24 

there were only three Common Hackberry trees left. The American Plum and Red 

Oak trees are all sold out. Reminder emails will be sent out to residents who 

preordered a day or two before the event. The Tree Giveaway will occur on April 

27th from 10am-12pm. 

 

Barten explained that at Dakota County SWCD, if several people sign up for the 

landscaping for the clean water program, they’ll send out emails to those 

participants of future lake water monitoring volunteer events. For the past two or 

three years, there has been a lot of interest. The City could potentially send emails 

to people who have signed up for the Tree Giveaway regarding the creek clean p 

event.  

 

e. Dog Park Update – Planning Director Ondich explained that at no cost, the New 

Prague Utilities Commission agreed to provide a wooden light pole and lighting 

for the parking lot/entrance. Staff contacted Scott County regarding the possibility 

of creating a pedestrian crossing to the dog park area. Scott County replied that 

they do not want a painted/signed pedestrian crossing at uncontrolled (non-stop 

condition) intersections, especially at multi-lane environments. They would 

consider permitting them, subject to a pedestrian engineering study that would 

determine if a crossing is appropriate. If the study found that a crossing was 

needed, it would require advanced signage and a rapid flashing beacon sign 

(similar to what the city just installed via a grant at 10th Ave SE/1st St SE). 

 

Dohm inquired if the speed limit could be reduced.  

 

Planning Director Ondich responded that the City could request a traffic study. 

Speed must be set by what the 85th percentile of traffic is going. He suggested that 

city staff could set up the traffic counter to see how fast vehicles are traveling to 

get an idea of current speeds of vehicles. The County would have to do their own 

speed study to lower or increase the speed limit. 

 

Dohm has heard that residents have shared their concerns regarding speed since 

it’s near residential properties, it’s approaching two school zones and a 

roundabout. The turn lane would be a good location to decrease the speed limit. 

She inquired what the process of reducing the speed limit. 

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that the traffic study would have to be done by 

Scott County. According to state law, if the study finds that the vehicles are 

driving faster than the posted speed limit, the speed limit would increase. 

However, if the vehicles are found driving slower, the speed limit would decrease. 

The current posted speed limit along 12th St NE is 55 mph.  
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Planning Director Ondich added that the waterline at the dog park is nearly 

complete. The waterline work was taking longer to complete. There is a sanitary 

sewer line from Ceder Lake that comes in near the dog park site. There was no 

tracer wire on it and staff were guessing when doing borings. If the city had hired 

out, it would have likely cost between $12,000-$14,000 for boring. 

 

f. Settlers Park Prairie Restoration Update – Planner Chapman explained that the 

city received three RFPs for the Settlers Park project and is in the process of 

reviewing them. The three firms are RES, Rock Leaf Water Environmental, and 

MNL Heal the Earth. Staff intend to make a recommendation to City Council for 

their April 15th meeting.  

 

Barten asked how the firms are ranked or scored. 

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that the City will consider the lowest bids and 

review their references. 

 

Barten recommended that the City should consider getting estimates of 

maintenance plans for three years after the work is completed.  

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that Settlers Park had a lot of internally rotting 

trees that were in need of removal. 

 

Barten inquired how much money the grant has set aside for contractor work. 

 

Planner Chapman stated that there is about $39,000 in grant funding for 

contractor work and the purchase of seeds.  

 

A motion was made by Barten seconded by Becka to allocate a maximum of 

$15,000 for establishment period and maintenance for up to 3 years. Motion 

carried (4-0). 

 

g. Comprehensive Plan Update / Small Area Plan – Planning Director Ondich 

stated that the Comprehensive Plan update is on hold while the Sanitary Sewer 

Feasibility Study and Small Area Plan are completed. The second Steering 

Committee meeting for the Small Area Plan will occur on Wednesday April 10th 

at 6pm at City Hall. 

 

Barten asked if there have been discussions with adjacent landowners.  

 

Planning Director Ondich stated that staff will start discussions soon. As of right 

now, some of MSA’s concept maps of the city center have shown the use of the 

adjacent landowner’s property. 

 

8.  Adjournment 
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The meeting was adjourned at 7:09 PM by order of Chair Barten.  

  
Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Kyra J. Chapman 

Planner 
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